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pafs -upon him, 'but an Attainder of High-

Treafon. |
ool Welly if it be fo, I cannot help it. 1

thank:God, :I am innocent of any Treafon, or
any {uch thing, ‘
7. C.¥. Why don’t you plead Not Guilty,

then? .
ol 1do not refufe to plead, T am willing

to plead with all my Heart, if -1 may have my

ight.
R‘E/Ir. J. Fones. 1f youdo net plead, you refule
to plead. ‘

Colledge. Pray, my Lord, let me have my
-Papers.

M. Att: Gen. Pray give the Court an Account,
where had you thofe Papers,

'L. C.F. Nay, we will not enter into any Exa-
mination of: that ‘Matter now, Mr. Attorney 3 he
can have no Ufe of Papers to fee whether he

fhould plead Guilty, or Not Guiley.,
Mr, Serj. Fefferies. We know. nothing of thole

Papers, ‘we defire that he -may anfwer to the
Queftion fhortly, whether he be Guilty or Not
Guilty; if not, we:pray your Lordfhip’s Judg-
ment.

Colledge. 1 had them not all from one Perfon,
they were received from my own Hands, fome
of them in the Tower ; and being brought back
to-me, they were taken from me to:Day let
‘me have but-one of them: The Paper of In-
- @ructions in -Point of Law, that I may know
what is my-Right: 1 would not throw away my
Life, -if I'have any thing that is-my Right that
can preferve i.

L.C.%. You-are to give a plain Anfwer,
whether you are Guilty .or Not Guilty, now
for that.you have no Ule of Papers: For you

can beft tell -whether you be Guilty or Not, If

you can propofe any Matter of Law that you can
have to plead, do'i.

.ol If T have -any Plea, that I may plead
- befides Not Guilty,. I defire 1 may have my Pa-
: pers to confider of it, and that 1 may have Council
- affigned me.

L. C.¥. 1fyouhave any fuch Plea, tell us the
Matter and Subftance of i.

Cilledge. 1 do not know what really are Mat-
cers of Law; if I had thofe Inftrutions that are
in my Papers, I could give you 2 direct Anfwer
prefently.

L. C.¥. You ought not to have any Advice
to decline your T'rial : When you propole Matter
of Law yourlelf, you may have advice upon it.
But you ought not to have Advice to decline your
Trial before-hand. .

Cl. of Cr. Areyou Guilty, or Not Guilty?

Coll. Mr. Attorney, pray let me have a Copy
of the Indictment.

My, At Gzin.  Apply your felf to the Court
for it, we muft receive our Directions from

thence,

L.C.¥. You have had the Opinion of the
Court, you can’t have It.

Mr. J. Levinz. You have been told nothing
can be received from you, buta Plea of Guilty,
or Not Guilty, and the Court have given you
their Opinion, and that you cannot have a Copy
of the Indi€tment, nor Council afligned you,
till you offer fomething for them to be afligned
upon.

PL. C.¥. And that was it which was done in
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the King’s-Bench in the-Cafe of Fitz-Harris, which
I fuppofe you.meant when you {peak of the Judges
Opinions.

Mr. Juftice Fones. Nothing was done .ther
till he himfelf afligned the Matter in Law that
he would plead, and then Council was affigned
him.

Mr, Serj. Fefferies. Mr, Golledge was in .the

Court at that Time, and can tell what was

done, -
L. C. F. If you defire the Indictment read over
again diftinétly, . that you may have. |
Mr. Att. Gen. Ay, with all my Heart.
Colledge. Pray let me hear it again, my Lord,
if you pleafe.
L.C.¥. Read it over again to him, and read
ir ditinclly.

Cl.of Cr. Thou art indicted by the Name of

Stephen Colledge, late of Oson, :in the County of
‘Oxon, Carpenter, as a-falle Trautor,

Colledge. 1 have obferved one Thing already,
my Lord, I pray I may-have.Pen and Ink.

L.C.¥. Ay, give him Pen.and Ink, let him
make what Oblervations he can,

Then the Clerk read the Indifiment through,

Clerk of Crown, Art thou Guilty of this High-
Treafon, or Not Guilty ?

Colledge. This Indi¢tment, if ‘T underftand 1,
fays, there was a Plot and Confpiracy by me
and others; now I know when my Lord Stafford
was tried, they did proceed to prave, firft, that
there was fuch a Plot, and then that my Lord was
guilty of it; firft, that there was fuch a Conipi-
racy by the Papifts, is it not requilite they fhould
firft prove fuch a Plor and Conlpiracy there -was,
before they go to prove me guilty of 1t?

Mr, J. Fones. What before you have pleaded?

L.C.¥. When you have pleaded, the next
thing is to try you, and to give the Evidence;
but what Way the King’s Council will take o
manage your Lrial, that we can’c tell.

Mr, Juft. Fones. But they are not to be direted
by you, Mr. Colledge.

Colledee. It was fo done, I fay, in my Lord
Stafford’s Cafe. '

L. C. 7. He pleaded firft, however, you have
not yet pleaded,

Cl. of Cr. Are you Guilty or not Guilty ?

L. C. 7. Do not trifle any longer, *tis a plain
Matter, and requires a very fhort and plain. An-
{wer,

Colledge, Your Lordthips are my Council, as
well as my Judges, and 1 do defire if 1 have any
Right to plead any other Matter, you will be
pleafed to declare it to me, for I am ignorant.in
the Law.

Mr. Juft. Fones. We have declared our Opinion
already, that you have no Right to have any
Solicitor or Council, till Matter of Law do arife.

Colledge. Is it your Lordfhips Opinion, that 1
have no Plea in Law?

Mr. Juft. Fones, Have youno Plea in Law?

L. C. 7. He would have our Judgmen,
whether there be any or no.

Mr, Juft. Fones. You yourfelf know beft; we

know nothing you have to plead.
Colledge. 1 cannot, unlels I have Council, and

my Papers, 1C
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L. C. ¥. There does nothing appear to us.

Coll. I'know nothing of the Law. |

L.C. ¥. Then plead Not Guilty, that 15 a

.

realslyr.P_lTﬁuﬂ. Fones. You have had our Opinion
over and over again, You have as much Council
+s is allowed in thefe Cafes, for every Man is beit
Tudge of his own Cafe, what to plead, whether
Guilty or Not Guilty : You have had as fair Play
as ever any Man had.

M. A1, Gen. Mr. Colledge has faid, he knows
of no Plea in Law he has, and therefore there is
none 5 for de non apparentibus & non exiftentibus,
the Realon 15 the fame.

L. C. ¥. In Matter of Fadt, there is no Plea,

but Not Guilty, _
Coll. ‘The Court are Judges in Matter of Law,

and they are my Council,
Mr. Jult. Fones. And the Court haveall of them
declared, they know of nothing in Law that you

have to plead. .
Coll. Is not Council to be allowed to one under

my Circumitances ? _ |

L. C. ¥. If you have any thing for Council to
be afligned upon, you fhall have them.

Cilledge. 1F T am ignorant of that, and cannot
propofe it, fhall T not have the Affiftance of
Council?

Mr, Jult. Foues. No, we have told you the
Law plainly, and that which is frequent in Practice
in like Cafes, and you muft be contented with the
fame Mealure.

Colledge, My Lord, I am ignorant of the

Law.

L.C. ¥. Then rely upon the Faét, and plezd
Not Gutley.

Coif, Bur if I have a Right to any Point in Law
let me have it.

Mr. Juft. Fores. You have a Right if you will
propofe any Marter of Law, but we cannot pro-
pofe it for you.

Mr. Ait. Gen. Mr, Colledge, no Man ought to
propole your Plea for you; fguorantia juris non
excufal,

Col. Shall my Ignorance deftroy me, Mr, At-
torney ¢

Mr, 84, Gen.  You have heard the Opinion of
the Court, you have a Right to propofe any other
Plea that you can yourfelf 5 but you have no Right
to afk Council before you have pleaded,

Mr, Serj Feff. 1f Mr. Golledge have luch a thing
as a Solicicor, I fhall crave leave to put that So-
licitor in mind of the Cafe of one that was In-
dicted of High-Trealon,

My, A, Gen. We fhall talk of that by and by.

L. C.¥. The fame Methods are ufed in our
Cafe, as are in all Cafes of the like Nature, as far
as my Knowledge reacheth.

Coll. If 1 have a Righet to the Law, I muft
not lofe it for my own Ignorance of the Law;
but if you deny me both my Council and my Pa-
pers, you take away the Means of my coming
to that Right, and make me uncapable of msk-
ing my Defence, L

L.C.¥. You have been told you muft plead
before you do any thing, |

Coll, This is the Perfon (pointing to a Perfon by
him) that had the Papers. Be pleafed to com-
mand him, that I may have them again : He faid,
he had Orders to take them from me, and bring
them to your Lordfhip,

Vor, III.

for High-Treafon.
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- L. C.%. T know of no Ufe you could have of
any Papers, to plead Guilty.or Not Guilty.

Mpr; Sol. Gen. If there be in thofe Papers Ad-
vice in Matters of Law, that you have been told
you ought not to have, till the Court has affigned
you Council to give you Advice, J

Colledge. Then if there be a Right in Law,
and a privilege which 1 ought to have, I muft
lofe it by my being ignorant of it, and have no
one to advife me about it neither.

L. C. ¥. You may propofe it, if you have any,
if not, you muft plead to the Indictment,

M, Sery. Feff. My Lord, it has not been ufual
for us, that are of the King’s Council, to enter
into Dialogues with Prifoners at the Bar, The
firft thing that is to be done in fuch Cafes, is for
the Prifoner to plead Guilty or Not Guilty, or to
offer {omething to the Court that may be a
matter in Law fit to be debated; and this we
pray may be done in this Cafe, and that the
Prifoner may plead prefently, or elfe we defire
your Judgment,

Coll. Pray let me have my Papers again, my
Lord.

L.C.7. Yougoin aCircle, and run round
from one thing to another, and will receive no
Anfwer. 'We have told you our Oprmion, and
we mult tell you, though you hold long Dil-
courfes, yet you will be judged loft and mute,
if you plead not a legal Plea: Therefore you muft
plead Guilty or Not Guilty, or offer fomething
that may be a Plea in Law, and then you fhall
have the Affiftance of Council, but you mult have
none till then.

Coll, But fhall I not have my Papers, my Lord 2
- L. C.#. We know nothing of them.

Coll. Pray, my Lord, order the Man to give
them to me, that took them from me.

L. C. . We will order no fuch thing, He may
be a Criminal perhaps that did give them you at
firft ; but when you have pleaded, we will hear
any Motion you will make about them.

Coll. It may be I ought to plead, that Words
were {poke in another Place than the Place laid
in the Inditment.

L. C. ¥ You will not need to plead any fuch
thing ; for if there be nothing proved of Treafon
that you faid or did in Oxfordfhire, you muft be
found Not Guilty.

Coll. Here is another thing, my Lord, Iam
indicted by the Name of Colledge, Carpenter.

- L.C. 7. What then?

Coll. T am not a Carpenter, buta Joiner; is
that any Bar to 1t?

L. C. 7. The Addition fignifies nothing, I do
not'know any Difference betwixt a Carpenter and
a Joiner in Law. .

" Mr. Juft, Fones. They might have indited you
by the Name of Labourer, and it had been good.

Coll. Pray, my Lord, either give me my Papers
or affign me Council, or elfe I may throw away
my Life, for I am wholly ignorant of the Law.

* L. C. ¥. When you have pleaded, we will hear
any Motion you will make, and do that which 1s

juft upon it; but I fee no Ufe you can have of

Papers to plead Guilty or Not Guilty, which is
the only Queftion is afked you. .
Cl. of Cr. Are you Guilty or Not Guilty ¢
Coll, Will you promife me, my Lord, there
fhall no Advantage be taken againft me, if I

do plead fo?
| Yy2 L.C. 7.
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L. €. ¥. We will make no Bargains with you.
Plead as you ought by Law to do.

"Gl If Matters of Law arife, fhall T have
Council to fpeak to them ¢

M. Jut. Fones. Yes, you fhall, you need not
doubt it. Propofe any Matter now fit to be ar-
gued, and you fhall have Council to I,

Call, T am not capable of doing it. I know
not when I have any Right. |

Mr, Juft, Fones, The Court is of Council to

ou.

! Coll, If you are my Council, then have
Plea in Law to make? _

M, Juft, Fones. You have heard the Indictment
tead, what fay you? For you muft propofe the
Matter. |

L.C.¥. We know of none but Guilty or Not
Guilty ; if .you can tell any, do. o

Coll. 1 pray I may have my Papers again s if
there be no other Plea for me, pray let me have
my Papers again. N

L. C.¥. You have heard the Opinion of the
Court, you muft plead. ,

M. Att. Gen, Certainly, Mr, Colledge, youcan't
be guilty of thefe things, you need not to fcruple
it, to plead Not Guilty, fure. _

Coll. My Lord, having been kept a Prifoner,
as I have been, without Pen, Ink, or Paper, no
Converfation with my Friends, or Knowledge of
the Fa&, and being ignorant of the Law, not
knowing where I have a Right, nor when 1 have
a Right, if you do force me upon this Plea, and
it coft me my Life, at your Doors lie 1t,

M. Juft. Fones. You will lofe your Life if you
do'not plead ; if you plead Not Guilty, and are not
proved Guilty, you will fave your Life by this Plea,

Coll, T am willing to plead what the Law re-
quires of me to plead, and if I have a Right in
Law, I would not lofe it.

Cl, of Cr: Are you Guilty or Not Guilty ?

Coll. Why then as they have laid it in that
Indi®ment, in Manner and Form as ’tis there
laid, Tam Not Guiky.

Cl, of Cr. Culprit, by whom wilt thou be tried?

Coll, By God and my Country,

Cl. of Cr. God fend thee a good Deliverance,

Mr. Juft, Fones, Not Guilty is his Plea.

L.C.¥. Now he has pleaded, Mr, Attorney ;
he fpeaks of fome Papers, if there be any Me-
morandums, 6r any Thing that muft afilt him,
that is neceffary for his Defence in his Trial in
thofe Papers, 1t will be hard to deny him them,

- Mr. A, Gen., If your Lordfhips pleafe to give
me Leave, I will give you an Account of them,
The Meflenger juit now did deliver thefe Pa-
pers to be delivered to the Court.

Coll. Pray fpeak out, Mr, Attorney, and let
me hear. .‘ .
- M. Ait. Gen, When he came to Prifon he bad
none, but Mr, Aaron Smith, the Meflenger in-
formed me, did deliver them to him.

L. C.¥. Whofe Hand-writing are the Papersin?
" Cill. He received them from mie in the Tower.

M. J. Fones. You received them from him firft.

Coll. No. , . p

Mr. A, Gen, What were' the Papers you deli-
vered to him in the Tower ¢ |
Colledge. The three Pieces joined together
that contains Direftions how to goverh’ myfelf ;
there is another to the fame Purpofe, which in-
ftrufts me to demand a Copy of the IndiCtment,
and of the Pannel of the Jury, and thele were

I any
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Inftructions to tell me what the Law allows me,

Myr. At Gen. Here is a Speech made for you
that begins thus ; Before you fpeak, fpeak 1o this
Purpofe. Pray, my Lord, T defire that may be
examined, and Mr, §mith may be called to give
an account how he came to give the Prifoner thofa
Papers 3 for here are Abundance of Niceties pro-
poled for him to move, and there will bea ftrange
Sort of Proceedings at this rate, if Men go abou
to efpoufe the Caufe of Traitors.

Colledge, 1 am no Traitor, Mr. Attorney.

Mr., Att. Gen.  You ftand indicted of High
Treafon.

Colledge, That 13by a Grand Jury made up that
Morning, as I am informed.

M. At Gen. Hereis a Lift of the Names of
feveral Men of the County returned to be of the
Jury, and particular Marks fet upon them, who
are good Men, and who bad Men, and who mo-
derate Men,

Coll. Ought I not to have that Paper, my Lord ?

Mr. Ait, Gen, No, 1hope not.

L. C. 7. Whether they are material, or not ma-
terial, if we fhould judge them not material for
his Defence, yer it will look like an hard Point
upon the Prifoner 5 and to deliver them nto an
Hand that they may be carried away or f{tifled,
in cafe there were a Crime in the delivering of
them, that would not do well on the other Side:
Therefore I would have thefe Papers put into
fome fafe Hands, that what may be for the Pri-
foner’s Ufe he may not want, and yet they may
not be taken away, if there be Occafion to ule
them upon another Account,

Mz, A, Gen. Butif it pleale your Lordfhip, 1
defire you would enter into the Examination of
this Matter 5 for I have an account from London
by a {pecial Meflenger, that there are feveral
Perfons go up and down to procure Witnefles
againlt the King’s Evidence, making 1t a pub-
lick Caufe 5 and here, my Lord, isanother Paper
which is a Lift of Men as Witneffes picked up to-
aether againtt the King’s Witneffes.

L. C.7. He muft have that, deliver him that
Prefently.

My, Att, Gen. But, my Lords, others have
gone about and framed Witnefles for him,

L. C.¥. You muft give him the Lift of his
Witnefles, for I fee not what Ufe you can make
of it.

M, Serj. Feff. This no Man will oppofe {ure,
if any Thing that is delivered to him be fit to be
delivered, the Perfon that delivers it muft come
and own it 5 but before any Perfon delivers any
Papers to the Prifoner, for him to make ufe of
againft the King’s Evidence, we defire to know
what thofe Papers mean, and who gave them.

L. C. 7. Look you, Brother, we will have no-
thing of Heat till the Trial be over, when that is
over, if there be any Thing that requires our Ex-
amination, it will be proper for us to enter Into
the Confideration of it, But in the mean while
what hurt is there, if the Papers be put into fome
trufty Hands, that the Prifoner may make the belt
Ufe of them he can, and yet they remain ready
to be produced upon Occafion : 1fa Man be fpeak-
ing for his Life, though he {peak that which 1s not
material, or nothing to the Purpofe, there wili be
no harm to permit that.

M. Serj. Feff. With Submiffion, my Lord, that
is affigning him Council with 2 Witnefs,

My, A1, Gen,
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M. A, Gen. 1F People are permitted to go up
-nd down and afk Counfel of Perfons, and bring

it in Papers to the Prifoner, ’tis the fame Thing
as if Council came to him, Here is a bufy So-
licitor, and he gets Advice from Council, and
then he delivers it to the Prifoner 3 °tis the firft
of that Kind certainly that ever was allowed ; and
if this be not to affign him Council, I know not

what 1s. _
L.C.F. What think you of our perufing the

Papers ¢ .

My, A, Gen,  With all my Heart, my Lord.

Coll. If youtake away all Helps from me, you
had as good condemn me without a Trial,

Mr. Att. Gen, You ought not to have Helps to
plead Dilatories.

Coll, Not to help me to my right in Law ?

Mr., Ait. Gen, Weare to go upon the Faét now :
And, my Lord, I pray your Judgment abou
them, when you have perufed them,

Then the Fudges leoked upon that Paper that was
called the Speech,

L.C.F. We have read enough of this to fup-
prefs it, and to examine how this came to his
Hands. |

Mr, Jult. Fones. Where is Aaron Smith 2

Mr., Att. Gen, My Lord, here i3 another that
is worfe than that, charging the Juftice of the Na-
tion. Pray call Mr, daren Smith, and Mr, Henry
Starkey.

Mr. Smith appeared.

Mr. At Gen. Mr, Smith, did you deliver thefe
gwo Papers to the Prifoner 2

Mr, Smith, Does any Body accufe me that I did ?

Mr, Att. Gen,  You are acculed of it,

Mr. Smith, 1 delire Proof may be made againft
e,

Mr, Att, Gen. "That will be done,

L. C. 7. Look you, we will not interrupt the
Trial with it.  Mr, Smith mulk be taken into fafe
Cultedy, only to fecure him till we can examine
it, not as charged with any Crime, but only that
he may be forth-coming to be examined.

Mr. Ait, Gen,  You do not make a dire€t Anp-
fwer, Mr. Smith, in the Cafe, it will be proved
tipon you.

Mr, Smuth.  Mr. Attorney, I know not what
Anfwer to make better than I have given 5 our
Law fays no Man is bound to accule himfelf,

Mr. Ait, Gen. But our Law fays, you fhall
be examined.

Mr, Smith. 1 come to give no Informations
here, Mr, Attorney 5 if I did I fhould be then
examined.

Mr, 4it. Gen,  Here are Inftructions given to
the Prifoner, they fay you gave them.

Mr. Smith. 1 defire to have it proved,

L.C.7. Mr. Attorney, you will take a Recog-
nizance of Mr. Smith, to be forth-coming during
this Seffions,

Mr. Smith, Twill not depart, my Lord, I affure
yous and I hope Mr. Attorney will take my word,

Mr. Ait. Gen. Indeed I will not Mr, Smith, be-
caufe you have broken it with me alreddy 3 when
1 gave you leave to go to the Prifon, I did not
think you would have abufed that Kindnefs, to
give him Papers,

L.C. 7. Well, take his Recognizince,

Mr. Smith. *Tis high Time to have a care, when
qur Lives and Eftates, and all are befet here,

i
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L.C. 7. What dojoti meah by that, Mr. Smith?
~ Mr., Smith. 1 faid it not; meaning by it the
Court, for I declare I abhor that Exprefiion to be
fo interpreted, that I refle&ted upon the Couirt, .

L.C.7. Whydo ;rou ufe fuch loofe Expref-
fions then, Mr. Smith : |

Mr. Smith. Becaufe 1 have been thréatened
fince I came to Town, though I have not fpoke
one Word in any publick Company fince I carme,

Mr. Juft, Fomes, 1t feems you will refle¢t here
in the Face of the Court, and in thé Face of the
Country, upon the Government, upon the Juftice
of the Kingdom. ,

Mr, Smith. No, my Lotd, I have told jou
what I meant by it 5 I neither refle®ed upon the
Court, nor upon the Government, nor upon the
Juflice of the Kingdom.,

L. C.%. You fhould have done well to have
forborn fuch Expreffions as thofe were,

Coll,  Shall I not have the Ufe of my Papers,
my Lord : Will you not pleafe to deliver them
back to me now you have perufed them?

Mr. Juft, Fones. One of them 1s a Speech, and
a moft feditious libellous Speech, to fpit Venom
upon the Government in the Face of the Coun-
try. 'We cannot tell who made it, but it feeins
to be beyond your Capacity 5 and therefore we
muft enquire into it : But we do not think fit to
let you have the ufe of that Paper.

L. C. 7. For that which contains the Names
of the Witneffes, that you have again : For the
other Matters, the Inftru@ions in Point of Law,
if they had been written in the firft Perfon, in
your own Name, that we might believe it was
your writing, it would have been fomething s
but when it is written in the fecond Perfon, you
fhould do fo and fo, by which it appearsto be
written by another Perfon, it is an ill Precedent
to permit fuch Things 3 that were to give you
Council in an indiret Way, which the Law gives
you not direétly. ,

Coll.  1f I am ignorant what Queftions ‘to afk
of the Witnefles, fhall not"my Friends help me,
my Lord ?

L.C.7. We will fift out the Truth as well as
we can, you need not fear it.

Coll, Some of thofe Things I took out of the
Books mylelf : And if you are refolved to take
away all my Helps, I cannot help it; I know not
that Mr. Smith wrote one of thofe Papers,

Mr. Adttor. Gen. But Mr, Smith would have
given four Guineas, it feems, as a Bribe, to the
Goaler, and he offered four more to let him have
the Liberty to come to him,

Mr. Ser), Feff. *Tis Time indeed for Mr, Smith
to have a care.,

Keeper. It was Mr. Starkey that offered me the
four Guineas.

Mr, 4it, Gen, Pray call Mr, Henry Starkey.

(But be did not appecr,) _
Then the Court took a Recognizance of 1001, of

Mr, Smith 2o attend the Court during the Seffion.

Coll. Pray, my Lord, let me have my Papers
delivered fo me, I cannot make my Defence eife,

L.C.F. We are your Council in Matter of
Fatt, and to give you your Papers were to affign
you Council againft Law, they being not your
own Papers, but coming from a third Hand,

Colledge, Will you pleafe to give me the Pa-

per that has the Queftions in it, to afk the Wit-
nefles ¢

LC. ¥
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L.C. ¥ ‘Thereare no.Papers with any parti-
cular Queftions to any one Witnefs, but only Jn-
ftruétions how to carry yourfelf mn this Cafe,

Colledge. A greal deal of it is my own, my
Lord. o |

L. C. 7. Mr. Arorney, truly I think, that
which does not contain Matter of Scandal, may
be tranfcribed and given to the Prifoner.

Colledge. My Lord, I defire I may have that,
that has in the Margin of it, the Cafes of Lilburne
and Stafford.

Mr. Juftice Fones. You {hall not have the In-
{tructions to {candalize the Government, all that
15 neceffary for your Defence, you fhall have.

L.C.% If he had writ it himfelf I cannot
well fee how you could take it from him ; and
truly as ’cis, I had rather let him have too much
than too little,

Colledge. My Lord, I thought I might have
had Council to have affifted me, butif I may have
Council neither before my Plea nor after, 1 that
am an Ignorant may be loft by it, but can’t help it.

L. C.F. If Matter of Law arile, you fhall
have Counci] to it.

Colledge. 1 know not but it might have admit-
ted of an Argument, that which, if I had had my
Papers, I fhould have offered to you,

L. C. F. Mr. Colledge, we fhall not goany far-
ther now, I know not how many Witnefles will
be produced either of one Side or another, but
"tis too late to go on this Morning, and becaufe
we attend here only upon this occafion, we fhall
go on with the Trial at two o'Clock in the After-
noon.

Colledge. My Lord, will you be pleafed to order

the Papers for me to perufe in the mean Time,

L.C.7. Wehave ordered that you fhall have
a Tranfcript of the Paper of Inftruttions, leaving
out that which 15 fcandalous,

Colledge. 1 defire I may have a Copy of the
Whole.

Mr, J. Fones. No, we donot think fit to do that.

Colledge. Pray let me know which you do
except againit,

L.C. % Look you, Mr. Attorney, 1 think
we may let him have a Copy of the Whole.

Mr. Ait. Gen, My Lord, before you rife, I de-
fire you would be pleafed to take the Examination
of Mr. Gregory about Mr, Starkey.

L.C.}. Swear him, (Which was done,)

Mr. Att. Gen. What do you know concerning
Mr. Starkey, and what did he offer you ?

Gregory. When they came by your Lordfhip’s
Permiffion to Mr. Colledge, they brought {ome
Papers which they delivered to him : And after-
wards' Mir. Starkey took me afide, and told me, it
was hard Ufage that the Prifoner could not have
his Council permitted to come to him : Do him
what Favour you can, and 1 thall not be un-
grateful 3 fo he clapped four ‘Guineas in my
Hand, but I immediately laid them down upon
the Table, and would not take them. |

Mr. A, Gen. My Lord, I defire you would
pleafe to fend for Mr. Starkey. '

L.C.J. Let him be fent for,

CL. of Cr. You muft goand take up Mr. Starkey,

Meflenger. Muft' 1 keep him in Cuftody ? I
don't know him. |

Cl. of. Cr. No,

you muft order him from the
Court to attend here, e g
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Mr, Juflt. Fones. Thefe Papers Colledge thall
not be debarred of for his Defence, nor you Mr,
Attorney from profecuting upon them,

L.C.F. No, we will put them into fuch
Hands as fhall take care of that.

Colledge. Very few, my Lord, have appeared
to do me any Kindnefs, fome have been frightened
and imprifoned, others are now in Trouble for i,

L. C.F. Well, you fhall have the ufe of your
Papers.

Colledre. May 1 have any Friends come to fee
me in the mean Time?

L.C.¥. They meft not come to you in the
Prifon, to give you Advice ; but T'll tell you,
fince you move 1t, if my Brothers think it con-
venient, whilft the Court does withdraw, any
Body of your Friends may come to you, in the
Prefence of your Keeper,

Mr. Juftice Fones.  Certainly you cannot think
you can give a Privilege to any Friends of yours,
to commit any Mildemeanor to offer Bribes to any
Perfon.

Colledge. 1 know not of any fuch Thing.

Mr. Juftice Fones, We do not charge you with
it, bot Mr, Starkey did.

Colledge. I have been kept a {trict clofe Prifo-
ner, and if my Friends are fo kind to me, as to
help me i order to my Defence, I hope you will
not be againft it.  Pray, my Lord, let me have
my Papers.

L. C, F. You fhall have them, but they fhall
be put into fuch Hands as the Court may have
command over ; they fhall be in the Sheriff’s
Sons Hands, and you fhall have the immediate
ufe of them.

Colledge. 1f there be any Thing elfe in thofe Pa-
pers neceflary for my Defence, I pray I may have i,

L.C.7. The Speech is not fit for you ; what
other Papers would you have?

Colledge. Another Paper there is, that is fome-
thing of Law.

Mr. J. Jones.  Nothing but libellous, and what
is a Scandal to the Government,

Mr. A1, Gen. You are to have nothing of Mat-
ter of Law, but what you are to propofe yourfelf.

Colledge. If you take away all my Helps, I can-
not propole any Thing,

Mr, Ser]. 7eff.  To allow you thofe Papers, is
to allow you Council by a fide Wind,

L. C. ¥. Look you, the Papers of Inftructions
fhall be delivered to the Sheriff’s Son, who fhall
let you perufe it in this Interval, and make ufe
of it in your Trial; but it muft be in fafe Cuftody
to be ufed upon further Occafion, as the King’s
Attorney fhall think fit,

Then the Court adjonrned till wo in the Afternoon.

Poft menidiem, At two o’Clock the Cours rettrn-
ed, and Proclamation was made for Attendance,
and for the Under-Sheriff to return bis Jury.

Colledge. My Lord, ought not I to have a
Copy of this Jury ?

L.C.7. No. * They are to look upon you as
they come to be fworn, and then you are to chal-
lenge thém,

C.of Cr. Stephen Colledpe, hold up thy Hand,
and hearken to the Court ; thofe good Men that
you fhall hear called, and perfonally appear, are
to pafs, &I,

~ ® Chief Juftice Pinsberton {2id in Lord Ruffels Cale,. p. 630, it was never denied in Cafe of Life, that he knew of, it

was allowed to Count Coningfmark, Vol. III, p. 463.

I Colledge,
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Colledge. Pray, Sir, let the Way be clear, t_hat-

I may fee them.

Cl. of Cr. Ay, ay.

Cilledge,  Pray, Sir, how many are there of
the Jury that appear ¢
M. Ait. Gen,  There are enqugh,

Cl. of Cr. Make Proclamation for Informa-
tion, (which was done. )

Cl. of Cr. Hepry Stapdgrd, (who was fiworn,)
Richard Croke, (who was challenged by the Pri-
foner,) William Bigg, (challenged.)

" Mr. J. Fones. Do yau challenge him Peremp-
torily, or with Caufe ?

L.C. 7. 1f hedonot thew Canfe, it muft be
{uppoled it is Peremptory.
~ Gll. 1fuppofe he was upon the Grand Jury,

L. C. . That would be a Challenge with Caufe,

Mr. Bigg. No, 1 was not. '

Colledge.  Then I do not challenge him 4 I
know him not. (He was fryorn.)

Cl.of Cr. Themas Maifh, (challenged,) Tho-
mas Martin, (did not appear, ) Gabriel Merry, (be-
ing almoft an hundred Years of Age, wasexcufed,)
Robert Bird, (Tworn,) Fobn Shorter, (worn, )Pil-
liam Windiow, (Iworn) Edward dyres, (challenged)
William Ayres, (challenged,) and Richard Ayres,
(challenged,) Charles Hobos, (fworn, ) Roger Brown,
(fworn,) Timoihy Doyley, (1 worn,) Richard Dut-
tojt, (challenged,)  Ralph Wallis, (fworn,) Yohy
Naofh, (ch_:lllenged,)[jgzgm Benfour, (fworn,) . Fobs
Picier, ( 1'u5'prﬁ,j!ff7f liam IVch, (challenged,) and
Jobi Lawrence, (fyarn.)

Ty were connted, apd their Names in Order thus,

Reger Browie,
Timothy Doyley,
Ralph W allis,
Fobu Beufon,
Fobn Piercy,
Yobin Lacwrence.

William Bigg,
Robert Bird,
Joln Soorter, . ‘

Henry Standard, I

l’VHﬁfl’ﬁl IIJE”d!G'ZU, |
-Gharles Habbs, |

L,C. 7. Mr, Sherifl, there are a great many
of the Jury that are not {worn, they are dif-
charged, let them go out of the Court, and fo
you will make room for the Witneffes,

Cl of Cr. Gentlemen, you, of the Jury, look
upon the Prifoner, and hearken to. his Charge.
He ftands indicted by the Name of Stephen Colledpe,
late of Oxford, in the County of .Oxford, Carpen-
ter 5 for that be as.a falfe Traitor, &¢. prowt in
the Indictment, .Mutatis Mutandis, and upon this
IndiCtment he hath been arraigned, £,

Mr. North, - May it pleafe your Lordfhip, and
you Gentlemen, that are fworn, this is an In-
dictment againft Stepben Colledge, the Prifoner at
the Bar, for an Endeavour to raife a Rebellion
within this Kingdom, wherein he is accufed, and
the Jury find that he as a falfe Traitor, againft the
King's Majefty, contrary to the Duty of his Al.
legiance, on.the 10th of March, inthe 33d Year
of the King’s Reign, at Oxon here did traite-
roufly confpire, and compafs the Death of the
King, and the Subverfion of the Government,
and to raife a Rebellion in the.Kingdom, and to
laughter. his, Majefty’s Subjets, to put the King
0 Death, to levy. War againft him, and to' de-
prive him of his Royal State and Government,
-and to alter the Government at his own Will and
Pleafure ; and to accomplifh this, he did at Oxor
here prepare Arms for the carrying on the War,
,and excited one Edward Turbervile and others, to
I

Jfor High-Treafon.
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arm themfelves againft the Accomplifhment of
this Defign (and did declare his Parpofé wis to
feize the King’s Perfon at Oxos, and that he was
one of thofe that was to do it ; and to bring the
faid Turbervile and other Subje@s to his Purpofe,
did falfly, malicioufly, and” traiteroufly declare
in their hearing, ‘That thefe was no good' to be
expected from the King, that he minded nothing
bu the Deftrution of his People, and arbitrary
Government, and to introduce Popery, And
this is laid to be againft the Duty of his Alleg-
ance, againft the King’s Peace, and againft the
Form of the Statutes in thofe Cafes made and pro-
vided. The Prifoner, you hear, upon his Ar-
raignment hath pleaded Nor Guilty, which Iffie
youare to try, and if the Evidence for the King,
which are ready to be produced, prove that which
s laid to his Charge, you'are to find it accord-
ingly. T

Mr. 4. Gen. May it pleafe your Lordfhip,
and you Gentlemen of the Jury 5 The Prifoner
at the Bar ftands indicted of a very high Crine,
no lefs than High Treafon, and that too -of 'the
deepelt Dye’; it is for an Endeavour to deftroy
the King, to fubverr the Government, to raifa
2 Rebellion among the King’s Subje@s.” And,
Gentlemen, thefe Inftances that’ we fhall give
you, and produce our Evidence to, for the Proof
of that, are thefe : He laid ‘his Defign to feize
the King at Oxon and he did not want his Ac-
complices to do it; but they were nor Men,
Gentlemen, that were Proteftants; but Men ‘that
were Rebels in the late. War, thiey were Men' of
fuch a Kidney," that he affociated himfelf with,
and thefe were the Perfons that were to affift in
this Attempt. In Orderto this'he had prepared
Arms in an extraordinary’ Manner, Atms of a
great Value, for one of his Condition, ‘who is
by Trade a Joiner; for if a true Eftimate were
taken of the value of the Arms, I belicve ‘they
were worth twice his whole Eftate ; he preparéd
a good Horfe, extraordinary Piftols, a Carbine,
a Coat of Mail, an Head.piece ; and o being
armed Cap-a-pee, with that Defign he came hi-

*

ther to Oxon. And you will judge whether thefe
be fit Tools for a Joiner. © |

Colledge. 1 befeech you, Sir, have you any Bo-
dy to prove this? If you have not, you do hurt
to the Jury as well as ine, to fpeak it.

L. C. ¥, Be patient, Mr. Colledge, and let Mr.
Attorney go on to open the Charge, 1 will tell
you and the Jury too, that what he fays further
than he makes good by Proof and Witneffes, will
ferve for nothing, ’ '

Colleage. °Tis hard the Council fhould plead
againit me, and open Things that he canniot prove.

L.C.7. I will do you all the Right imagina-
ble, and therefore I do tell youagain, if they do
not prove it, all he fays is nothing, -

Colledge. But I befeech you,- my Lord, fince
there hath been fuch extraordinary Means and
Methods ufed to contrive my Death, that the

Witnefles may be examined apart, and far from

‘the hearing of one another.

L. C, j. That we will take care of by and by,

Mr. dst. Gen. * Mr. Colledge, this thews your
Temper, you are inordinate in your way of ex-
prefling yourfelf, o

Colledge. Mr. Attorney, I fhould not inter-
rupt you, if I were not afraid this was fpoken to

prepofiefs the Jury.
My, A4t Gen.
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My, Ait. Gen. 1 hope to prove what I have
faid, or every Word of it fhall pafs for no-
thing,

Colledge. *Tis impoflible for all the Men on
Earth to prove it. |

Mr. Attor. Gen, Gentlemen, Thefe were the
Particulars I was opening to you, in what man-
ner he was armed, and how accoutred he came
hither, We fhall likewife fhew you that he
made it his Bufinefs to perfuade others to under-
take the Defign, and join with him, as if open
War was already declared ; he gave outa Sign,
which was a blue Ribbon, a wrought Ribbon
with Letters in it, and this was the Mark and
Sign they were to know one another by. This
was given out by him frequently ; and that it
may not feem an extraordinary Thing, Gentle-
men, though indeed it was a wild Atempt, yet
you will ceafe to wonder when you have heard
of the Exploits of Veuncr, who with a few Men
raifed fuch a Commotion, foon after the King’s
coming in, and the feveral Exploits that have of
fate in Scotland been carried on by a few dif-
contented Perfons. So that Men of the like
Principles, as we fhall give you an account of
this Gentleman’s Principles what they were,
may well be thought to engage m fuch an ex-
traordinary Exploit. And we fhall prove what
the Encouragement was he was to have; for
he boafted of himfelf, that he fhould be in a
Jittle Time a Colonel,

Colledpe. What, Sir ?

Mr, Att, Gen, A Colonel, a great Preferment
for a Jolner,

Colledge. Yes, it wasfo.
Mr. At Gen. We {hall fhew to you that this

was not a fudden unpremeditated Thing 3 for
we fhall prove that he had entertained the hor-
rideft Malice againft the King, that cver Subjeét
entertained againft his Sovereign : IFor we fhall
give this Evidence, and his Front will not oppofe
it, that he had made it his common Difcourie in
Coffee-Houfes, and Publick-Foufes, (and I believe
I could bring you 40 :nd 40 Witneffes to it) to
defame the King, and murder him in his Repu.
tation, and was one of the Accomplices with Fisz-
Harris, who was lately executed for that veno-
mous Libel : We thall prove that he juftified i,
and maintained 1t to be as true as the Gofpel,
We fhall give Evidence that he carried on the
fame Defign with that Arch-Traitor who wasa Pa-
pift; and I believeif this Gentleman were examined
thoroughly, he would be found to be one of the
fame Stamp, and acted by the fame Principle ; for
I think that no Proteftant Subject would attempt
fuch Things as we fhall prove to you. I believe,
Gentlemen, you have frequently heard, as none
of us but have, that the King has been traduced
as a Defigner of arbicrary Government, and
his Reputatwon blafted malicioufly and falfly, as
an Introducer of Popery: Whence comes alf this
generally, but out of the Popith Quiver 3 who
make it their Bufinefs to fer the King’s good
Subjelts at Variance amongft themfelves, and
againtt therr Prince, by fhling the King a Papilt,
as this Prifoner hath done 5 nay, he hach been
{fo impudent as to report that the King was in
the Plot againft his own Life, We fhall prove
to you, how here and at other Places he hath
frequently dome thiss to go further, we fhall
produce to you the Evidence that he drew the
King’s Picture, and expofed him in all the re-
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proachful Charaters imaginable, and that the
Piture might be the better underftood, he adds
a Ballad to 1t : And that he may not have the
Confidence to fay this is not true, we fhall pro.
duce to you a whole Bundle of thefe Papers, 3.
mong thofe which his Son made a Difcovery of,
when they were fent to his Uncle to be hid,
and we fhall prove him to be the Auther of them s
and yet this Man fhould have the Confidence to
fay he is a good Subject, and a good Proteftant,
when by all Ways imaginable he goes about (o
rain the Government and defame the King 2
And Gentlemen, when we have given th:: Ac.
count by Witnefles, for I would have you believe
me in nothing, but according as 1 prove it, you
will not wonder then that he fhould fay his Life
was in Danger, (for fo it is indeed ?) And if any
Man ever was Gulty of High-Treafon, fure he
is, and bemng Guilty of the greatelt Treafon, he
deferves the greateft Punithment,

Colledge. Pray, Gentlemen of the Jury, take
Mr. Attorney General at his Word, and remem.
ber, Sir, you defire not to be believed yourfelf,
but what you prove.,

Mr., Serj. Holloway, May it pleafe your Lord-
fhip, and Gentlemen, purfuant to what Mr. At-
torney hath opened, we will call our Witneffes,
and we will begin with Mr, Dudgale, who was a
Witnels againft my Lord Stafford, at his Trial
in Parliament, whofe Credit Mr. Colledge did at-
teft ac that Tmal, afferting him to be an honeft
good Man, and 1 believe his Evidence will go
in a good Meafure through all that Mr, Attorney
hath opened, and when we have done with him,
we hope to fecond him with other Witneffes of
as good Credit, and that will fay as much to
the Purpofe,

Then Mr, Dugdale was fworn,

Mr. Att. Gen. Mr, Dugdale, look upon the
Prifoner, and tell the Court whether you know
him,

Mr. Dugdale.  Yes, 1 do know him, Stir.

M. Att. Gen.  Will you give us an Account
of your Knowledge of him?

Colledge, My Lord, I humbly defire they may
be examined a-part, and not in the hearing of one
another.

Mr. A, Gen,  That, with Submiffion, ought
not to be 10 the King’s Cafe, though we think there
are none of them, that will fpeak any more than
the Truth.

Colledge.  Here are feveral of them, my Lord,
they are all of a Gang,

Mr, Serj. Fefferies. Not of your Gang, Mr.
Colledge.

Colledge. 1 pray they may go out, my Lord
(which gvas nrdréreg acc};rdin}é]?.) g ?

Mr, Dygdale,  1f your Lordihips pleafe, whe-
ther or no [ may deliver in thefe Papers?

Mr, Ait, Gei, By and by, Time enough,
when we afk for them ; {peak your own Know.
ledge.

Mr. Dugdale, My Lord, I have been, I think,
acquainted with Mr. Colfedge two Years or there-
abouts, I have been {everal Times in Mr, Colledee’s
Company, and truly f{ometimes he hath been
mighuly bent againft Popery ; he hath at fome
Times uttered himlelf, becaufe the King did not
prolecute the Papifts according as he thonght
fufficicntly, that the King was a Papit himfelf,

;5 that
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that he was as deep in the Plot as any Papift of
them all, that he had an Hand in Sir Edmendbury
Gadfrey's Death, This Mr. Colledge, 1 appeal to
yaurfelf, whether you have not faid it: And in
this Town of Oxford you have feveral times told
me, that nothing was to be expeéted from him,
he would do nothing.

Mr. Juft. Leving, Who did tell you fo?

Mr, Dugdale. Mr. Colledge did tell me, that there
was nothing to be expected from the King, but
the introducing of Popery and arbitrary Govern-
ment 3 this 1 believe Mr. Colledge will acknow-
ledge to be true, |

Colledge. 'Where was this {poken?

Mr. Dugdale. This was fpoken at a Coffee-
Houfe, called Combes Coffee-Houfe 1n this Town,
and at the Awgel-Inn in this Town at a Barber’s
Shop ; that Day the King went out of Town, we
were in the fame Shop,

Colledze, Who was there befides?

Mr. Sery. 7eff. Do not interrupt our Witnefies,
Jet us have done with him, and you fhall have
your Time to afk him Queftions after,

L.C. 7. For your Inftruction I will tell you,
vour Time 1s not yet come, if you chop in and
interrupt the Witnefles, you will difturb any Man
living s but your Way 15 this, when he hath de-
livered his Teftimony, afk him any Queftions
then 5 and he fhall be bound to anfwer you, and
in the mean time you fhall bave Pen, Ink and
Paper, to help your Memory.

Mr. Dugdale. That Day the King went out of
Town, prelently after he went, you and 1 went
into the Angel-Inn 5 and we went into the Barber’s
Shop that is juft within the Inn, and being charg-
ing your Piftols there, you faid, Rowley was gone,
the Rogue was afraid of himlelf, he was fhirked
away, and here I appeal to your own Confcience,
whether you did not fpeak of it?

Colledge, 1 know nothing of .

Mr. A, Gen. Don’t appeal to him, ’ts no-
thing for that,

Mr. Sol. Gen. Who did he mean by Rewley ?

Mr. Dypdale. The King,

Mr. Serj. Holloway. Was that his common Ap-
pellation for the King ¢

Mr. Dugdale. It was his common Word con-
cerning the King,  And at other Times {peaking
that the King did not do thofe Things that were
fair, he hath given mighty great Words againft
him+ He hath told me, that there was no Truft
to be put in him; for it was the People we muft
ruft to, and we muft look to arm our felves,
and that he would arm hunfelf, and be here at
Oxford 3 and he told me here in the Town ac-
cordingly when I came out of the Country, and
he faid that he had feveral ftout Men that would
ftand by him init, Their Intention was, as he
faid, for the rooting out of Popery, by which
Name he always termed the Church that 1s now
eftablifhed by Law, as to be of the fame Nature
the Papifts were, This I believe Mr. Colledge will
acknowledge.

Mr. A, Gen. Well, go on, Sir,

Mr. Dugdale. And at a Time when he had
Dr, Tongue at his Houfe, he told me, that as for
Dr. Tongue, he had much ado with him, and he had
been ‘at a great Charge to keep him in order,
that he was forced to negle€t his own Bufinefs
to look after him; for if he had not done fo,
the Rogue, as he faid, had a mind to fling all

Vou. IIL. |
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npon the Proteftants, thatis, the Diffenters, for
he does not count the Church of England to be
fo ; that he had much ado to keep him in Order;
for he had faid he had drawn Papers for that Pur-
pole, but thofe Papers are fecured, for where they
are I can’t tell.

Mr, Att. Gen. Who were they that were to be
with_him in that Defign of his ? |

Mr, Dugdale.  He told me, Captain Chiston,
Captain Brown, and one Doflor Lewes, and he
Erought them 1nto Town here, when he came with

im,

My, Ait. Gen. To what Purpofe did he bring
them ?

- Mr. Dugdale. Expelting there would be =2
Rifing.

Mr. Juft, Fones. Did he tell you that here?

Mr. Dugdale, Yes, the Friday, I thinkit was,
after the firft Parliament fat.

Mr, Juftice Fones. How did he exprefs himfelf
what they had to do?

Mr. Dugdale. They were to be here, in cafe
there were any rifing, which he expeéted.

Mr, Juftice 7oires. What Ufe did he fay he
would make of them?

Mr, Dugdale. For the Deferce of the Pro-
teftant Religion, againft the King and all his Ad-
herents,

Mr. Jult. Fones, What did he fay he would do
tothe King? I would not lead you,

Mr. Dugdale. He did not fay what particularly,

Mr, Jult. Fones. What did he fay, it the King
did not yield to the Parliament?

Mr, Dugdale. If the King did not yield to the
Parliament, he fhould be forced to it.

Mr, Juft. Fones, Where did you hear him fay
that?

Mr, Dugdale. At Oxford. |

Mr, Serj, Holloway. Did you hear him declare
this at London ?

Mr, Dugdale. He did fay at Loudon, he ex-
pected there would be fomething done at Oxford,
and that he would go thither with his Horfe and
Arms, and thofe Gentlemen 1 named before would
go with him. And he faid, let them begin when
they would, he did not care how foon, his Party
was.the greateft Party.

Mr. Ait. Gen. What was that Captain Brown ¢
Did you know him?

Mr. Dugdale. Yes, I knew him very well ; he
did much frequent Mr, Colledge’s Company ; he
was 1n the late Army againft the King.

Mr., Ser). Feff. Did you fee him have any
Piftols ¢ |

Mr. Dugdale. Yes, Ihave feen him carry Piftols
about him.,

Mr, Serj, Feff. Where, in his Pocket ?

Mr. Dugdale. 1 faw them in the Houfe,

Mr. Serj. Jeff. At Oxford ¢

Mr, Dugdale. Yes.

Mr. Serj. Holloway. Did you fee them in his
Hand?

Mr. Dugdale. 1 cannot tell that, he had them
in the Houfe, I faw them there.

Mr. Ser). Holloway. Did you [ee him in his
filk Armour about the Parliament-Houfe, the
Lobby, or any Place?

Mr. Dugdale. 1 cannaot fay that.

Mr, Att. Gen. What did you know of his
delivering any Marks or Signs for Perfons to be

diltinguifhed by ?

Z z Mr. Dugdale,
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Mr. Dugdale. 1 had as much Ribband from
himi as came to 405, with No Popery, NoSlavery,
wrought in it; and he gave it me to diftribute
among my Friends in the Country, that they
might be known by other Perfons that would
wear the fame,

Mr, Joft, Fones. Where had you it?

Mr. Dugdale. At London, from Mr. Colledge.

Mr, Juftice Fomes. Where was 1t to be diftri-

buted ?
Mr, Dugdale. Among thole that I knew to be

Diffenters in the Country.

Mr, Juft. Fones. Were you to come to Oxford,
by Agreement, with Mr. Colledge ¢

Mr, Dugdale. 1 promifed him to come to Ox-

ford, and did fo.

Mr. Aitor. Gen.  Well, go on, What more
do you know? |

Mr. Dugdalz. At London, 1 was once at a Coffec-
houfe with Mr, Colledge, and with fome of the
Members of the Houfe of Commons; 1t was a
little before they met; and they were earneftly
talking of the Parliament at Oxford, and of fome
Difturbance that was likely to happen here. And
it was then fully agreed, and Mr, Colledge was by,
That it would® be the beft Way, out of every
County, where the Parliament had the beft In-
tereflt in the People, to leave one in every Coun-
ty that might manage the People. "T'his I appeal
to Mr, Colledge, whether it be true.

Colledge, You appeal to me, fhall I fpeak now,
my Lord,

Mr. Juft, Founes. No, you will remembef 1t by
and by ¢

Mr. Attor, Geir, What do you know of any
Pictures ?

Mr. Sol. Gen, Pray let him {peak that over again
which he mentioned lalt.

Mr. Dugdale, Being in a Coffee-houfe with
Mr. Celledge, there were fome of the Members
of the Houfe of Commons by ; and fpeaking of
a Difturbance that might happen here at Oxford,
it was then agreed, That in every Quarter where
the Parliament had the moft Intereft in the Peo-
ple, they fhould not all come up, but fome re-
main there to manage the People.

My, Att. Gen. What do you know of any
Pictures or Papers, have you any about you ?

Mr, Dugdaie. Yes, 1 have one thing I received
from Mr. Colledge, that is, the Letter pretended
to be intercepted to Roger L' Eftrange.

Mr. Alt. Gen. Pray, what Account did he give
you of it? Who made 1t?

Mr, Dupdale. He told me he was the Author
of it himfelf, and he fhewed me it in Manufcript
before it was printed ; and he told me, he got one
Curtis, or his Wife, to print it; but he would
never truft them again, for they cheated him of
fome of the Gain,

Mr, Ait. Gen,
fay?

Mr, Dugdale. e himfelf,

Mr, Ant. Gen.  Pray produce it, Sir.

Mr, Dugdale. This and others he delivered to
me to difperfe,

L. C. ¥. What is it, Mr. Attorney?

Mr. Ast, Gen, Itis a Letter, and a great Part
of Fitz-Harris's Libel 1s taken out s it feems Col-
ledge was the Author, and this is the Original of
the Libel,

L.C.7. Did he tell you, this was of his own
making ?

Who was the Author, did he
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Mr. Dipdale, Yes,

My, At Gen. Did he difperfe them to any
body elfe? ’

Mr, Dugdale. Yes, there was fome given tq
one Mr. Bofon, he had fome at the fame Time, and
Mt. Baldwin had fome.

Then the Paper was read.

Cl. of Crown. Firlt Q, Thether thep that
taffi———

Mr. At Gen, Pray give my Lord an Account
what more Papers and Libels he delivered to
you.

Mr, Dugdale. 1 received one like this, I
cannot fay it was the fame, where all the
Bithops were changing their Hats for Cardinals
Caps.

Mr, Sery, Feff. Where 1s Rary Shew, for it
feems he hath expounded the Meaning of that?

(Then it was produced.)

M, Ser). ¥eff. 1 {uppofe ’tis his own cutting
too.

Mr. Dugdale. 1 heard Mr, Colledge fing it,

Mr, Serj. Jeff. Where?

Mr, Dugdale. In Oxfordfbire, and in Oxford-
Town, at my Lord Lovelace’s.

Z Mr, Ser). Fefferies. Where, at my Lord Love-
ace’s ?

Mr. Dugdale. At his Houfe in the Country.

Mr. Serj Fefferies. Who were in the Company
there ?

Mr. Dugdale,  Sir Robert Clayton, Siv Thomas
Player, Mi. Roufe, Mr. Gollzdge,

Mr. Serj. 7ef. You fuy, you heard him in
Oxford, and in Orferdfbire, and at my Lord
Levelacss, where s that?

L.C 5. My Lord Lovelace 1s here himfelf,
and hears what he fays,

Mr. Dugdale. 1 might miftake the County, but
I heard lim fing 1t at Oxford Town, and at my
Lord Levelace’s Houfe ngain,

L. C. ¥, Where is that ?

Mr. Dugdale. 1 cannot tell the Town.

Mr. Serj. 7eff. How came you there?

Mr. Dugdale. Sir Thomas Player did invite me
thither.

Mr. Serj. Fefferies. Where is it in Oxford-
fhire ?

Mr. Dugdale. 1 cannot tell, *tis four Miles from
Henley.

Mr. Ser). ¥eff.  Was my Lord at home?

Mr. Dugaale, Yes, he was.

Mr, Sery. 7eff. Now for the Cut, then; Did
he fhew you this Cut?

Mr. Dugdale.  Yes, hetold me he would get
It printed.

Mr. Sery. Feff. Was it before it was ffrinted
then that he fung it ?

Mr. Dugdale.  Yes, it was.

Mr. Serj. Fefferies. Who did he tell you did
make it ?

Mr. Dugdale. He told me he was the Au-
thor of this Cut, and he gave me one, and
we¢ fang it together prefently after it was
printed, |

Mr, Att. Gen, How did he deferibe it to you,
when he fhewed it to you?

Mr. Dugdale. That which hath the Pack on
the Back of 1t, he defcribed to be the King ;

thole



1681. Oxford.

thofe that follow him were Zopbam, Cooper, Hugh
and Siow, and that Company of Men there is the
Houle of Commons,

Mr. Serj. Holloway. What was meant by the
Pack ?

Mr. Dugdale. The Parliament and all his
Retinue; and then here is the King in the
Mire again, according as ’tis reprefented in the
Sopg——

Mr, Serj. Fefferies. Ay, hegoeson well, And
this here is the Bithops which they thruft into the
Pack when they have got him down in the Mire,
and then they chruft them all away, asitis in the
Song, to hoot them away.

L.C. 7. Did he make this Explication to
you ©

Mr. Dugdale,  Yes.

Mr. Serj. Fefferies. Who were the Al 2

Mr, Dygdale, King and Clergymen, and all.

Mr. Serj. Feff. Where was this that he ex-
plained 1t?

Mr., Dugdale. At London,

Mr. Serj. Holloway. s there any thing re-
lating to Fbite-Hall?  What Name did he give
that?

Mr. Dugdale, Yes, he faid, Loufe-Ilall was
IVhite-Hall, becaule of its Poverty.

Then the Ballad <was read,

Cl.of Cr. Rarp Shew, To the Tune of, I

an: o Senfeiefs Thing

Mr, A, Gen. This fhews you what a fort of
Man he s,

Mr. Ser). Fefferies, Here you fay he explain-
ed this with the Pack ar the Back to be the
King ¢

Mr. Dugdale. Yes, he told me fo.

Mr. Serj. Feff. What did he mean by the two
Faces?

Mr. Dugdale. That he was half a Proteftane,
and half a Papitt.

Mr. T, Fones,  Did he make any Comparifon
between his own Party and the King’s Party ?

Mr, Dugdale. He faid, they were but a Hand-
ful to them,

Mr, Juft. Fores. To whom?

Mr. Dugdale, To his Party, that was the
Difiznters.

Mr. A, Gen. Speak that out.

Mr. Dugdale, T hat their Party was but 2 Hand-
ful to theirs.

M, A, Gen, Theirs and Theirs, who did he
mean ¢ .

Mr. Dugdale, He meant the Dilfenters, for
the Church of Ewgland he reckoned among the
Papilts.

L. C.¥. Tell us the Words he faid.

Mr. Dugdele. e faid, his Party wa: the
troe Church of England, and that which is effa-
blithed by Law, were but Proteftants in Maf-
querade,

Mr., Juft, Fenes, Tell us when he made the
Comparifon, what Words he did ule, and upon
what Occalion.

Mr. Diugdale. When he percetved the King
at Oxford would not yield to the Houle of
Commons, he faid, Let him begin as foon as
he would, he did not care how foon he did begin,

for their Party, meaning the Kirg and his Party,
Vor. 1l
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was but an handful to him and his Party, calling
them the true Proteftants 3 the others were Pro-
teftants in Mafquerade, |

Mr. At Gen. 'What did he defire you to do?
To be affilting in any thing ?

Mr. Dugdale. He always defired me to be true
of that fide, he hoped I was, and to get good
Arms for myfelf.

Mr. Serj, olloway. Did he in Oxford delire this
of you?

Mr. Dugdale. No, he did not.

M. Sol. Gen. For what Purpofe did he defire
you to arm yourfelf?

Mr. Dugdale. He faid, the King had a Defign
on the People to mtroduce Popery and arbitrary
Government, and he expefted every day when
they would begin, and the fooner the better, he
would be provided for them.

Mr, Jult. Fones. Was that in Oxford ?

Mr. Dugdale. He {poke it in Oxford, and mn
the City too.

Mr, Juft, Foues. Did he tell you of any that
were lifted ¢

Mr. Dugdale, He {poke of Captain Brown, and
Captain Clinton, and Don Lewes, and abundance
more he faid he had.

Mr. Juft, Fones. Did he tell you he had them
here ?

Mr, Dugdale, Yes, about forty of them were
there, he faid.

Mr. Serj. Holloway, Did he tell you of any that
were lifted, in order to the coming down of the
Parliament at Oxford.

Mr. Dugdale, Not lifted, but were intended
to come down; and at Oxford he told me they
were come down.

Mr, Juft. Fowes. Were you in thetr Company
in Oxford here ?

Mr. Dugdale. Yes, I was.

Mr, Juftice Fones. In the Company of whom?
name them,

Mr., Dugdale, Of Captain Brown, Don Lewes,
and feveral others of that Gang 3 I know not their
Names, but I know their Faces,

Mpr. Sol. Gen. Did he take Notice to you that
they were come down?

Mr. Dugdale. Yes.

M, Sol, Gen, To what Purpofe !

Mr. Dugdale. He expeéted there would be a
rifing in Oxford, and to this Purpofe ; Mr. Colledge
was one that debated 1t at Richard’s Coltee-houle,
and it was to be carried from thence to the King’s-
Head Club, Whether it were not beft to leave a
Parliament-man in every County ?

Mr, Att, Gen. Where was this?

Mr. Dugdale. This was at Richard’s Cofice-
Houfe in London, againft they met here,

My, Att. Gen. We could give you an Account
of a Volume of thefe Things, abundance of fcan-
dalous Pamphlets, both Songs, Libels, and Bal-
lads, that were made by this Gentleman, and all
{eized in his Cuftody.

Mr, Juftice Fones. But he fung this Libel?

Mr. At Gen. All thefe, Gentlemen (fhewing
a great Bundle) were to be difperfed over Eig-
land,

Mr, Serj. Fefferies. It was, it feems, expounded
and fung by the Prifoner ac the Bar; he gave
you the Ballad at Oxford, you fay, Mr. Dug-
dale.

Mr, Dugdale. No, I heard him fing i here,
Zz2 M.
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Mz, Juft, Fores, Pray, Mr. Dugdale, what was
the Ufe was to be made of this Ballad ?
My, Ait. Gen. Come go to the next, we call
this Evidence to fhew you the Malice of the

ivian,
Colledge. Pray, my Lord, let me afk fome

Queftions of Mr. Dugdale.

Mr, Serj. Feff. Ay, now let the Prifoner afk
his Queftions (to do him right) before we go to
another Witnefs,

Mr. Dugdale. My Lord, Ihavea Word ortwo
more about a Libel in Manufcript, that very Day
the Sheriffs were to be cholen, it was to be printed,
and he told me the Printer durft not print it, it
was fo dangerous.

Mr, Ser). Feff. What was it, can yoo remem-
ber any Parc of it 2

Mr. Dugdale. No, but it was the worft I
ever heard in my Life againft the King and Go-
vernment.

L.C. 7. Now afk him what Queftions you
will,

Colledge.  Pray, when was the firft Time you
gave this Evidence ?

Mr, Dugdale. Truly, Mr, Colledge, 1 don’t
keep an account of Time, [ cannot give an ac-
count of Time.

Mr. Attor. Gen,
him,

Mr. Dugdale. 1 cannot tell whether it might
be in Fune, I think it was.

Colledze.  How long before T was taken ?

Mr. Dugdale. 1t might be about the Time you
were taken,

Colledge.  Pray, who did you give it before ?

Mr. Dugdale. 1 gave 1t to Sir Lionel Fenkins.

Colledge.  Where did you {wear thefe Things
were done then ?

Mr. Dugdale, What was done in the City, I
fwore to be done there,

Colledge. What City ?

Mr. Dugdale,  London 5 the fame Words were
faid in the City of London, and over again here,
I have repeated, for the moft Part, only the
Words you faid here, but more was in the City
than here,

Colleage.  Did you fwear then, that the Words
you fwear now were {poken at London 2

Mr. Dugdale. 1t may be we might not name
Oxford then.

Mr. Serj. 72ff. He fays well, it might not be
named then.

Colledge.  Then you did give in your Informa-
tion, that I {poke thefe Words at Oxford,

Mr. Dugdale. 1 was not examined about what
was done at Oxford 5 1 believe I have heard you
fpeak the fame Words to me at my Lord Love-
lace’s, but I do not know what County that is in.

Colledge. 1 afk you pofitively, Whether you
did not fwear that what you now fay was fpoken
at Oxfoid, was {poken at London.

Mr. Dugdale. 1 did not name Oxford then,

Cofkzdge. But did not you fay that was done
at London, that now you fay was done here ?

Mr, Dugdale. Truly, you faid them both at
London, and here,

Colledge. Pray, Mr. Dugdale, what had you
to give tliis your Information ?

Mr. Dugdale, Truly I can’t fay I have received
the worth of a Groat,

Colledge,  Nor was ever promifed any Thing ?

As near as you can tell

106. The Trial cf Stephen Colledge

53 Car. 11,

Mr. Dugdale. No, I never received any Thing,
nor ever was promifed, but only what the King
gave me for going down into the Country for my
Charges.

My, Att. Gen. Was that the fame Allowance
you had when you were Witnefs for the popifly
Plot ¢

Mr, Dugdale, Yes.

Mr. Setj. Jeffertes. Flave you any other Al-
lowance than what you had’ before, when you
gave Evidence at my Lord Sfafford’s Trial ?

Mr. Dugdale. No, nor have got all that yet
neither,

Colledge.  But pray obferve my Queftion, Mr,
Dugdale, and anfwer ir.  Did you not fwear ac
London that 1 fpoke thefe Words there, which
now you fay I fpoke here 2

L. C. 7. Pray oblerve, he fays he did not
then narme Oxford 3 but in the giving of his Evi-
dence now, he tells you a Series of what paffed
between London and Oxford 5 and I muft tell you
further, if a Trealon be committed, and the I-
vidence prove it to be in two Countics, the King
may choofe which County he will profecute and
bring his Indi€tment in, and give in Evidence
the Fats in both Counties. But you fhall have
your Qbjetion to it afterwards, and we will
take 1t into Conlideration. I teli you this, that
it may not feem to you that the Witnefles f{peak
impertinently of what was done at  Louden 5 but
if nothing was done or faid at Oxford, then it will
be taken into Confideration, you fhall have it
faved afterwards, 1 only hint it now, that you
may not think it impertinent,

Colledge. 1 befeech your Lordfhip give me leava
to {peak one Word : When he made his Affida-
vit before Sir Lionel Fenkins there about feizing
the King, about the Party [ had, and the Arms
I had provided, ought not heat the fame Time
to have faid where 1 faid thofe Words to him ?
But he did {wear then it was in Loudosn that I faid
thofe Words to him 3 and coming before a Grand
Jury of honeft Gentlemen in London, they were
fo wife and honeft as to do me Juftice, and not
find the Bill 5 {o their Defign failing there, then
they changed 1t to Oxford,

L. C.F. Youdid not come to your Trial there,
if you had {o done, then they would have afked
him i particular what was faid at Oxford, and
what at Loudon, as *tis now, being done in both
Counties, But look you, if you will afk any
particular Queftions, do, for they have other Wit-
nefles to produce,

Colledge, My Lord, I only afk this Queftion,
Wlether it be not raticnal to think, that when
he {wore before Sir Lionel Yenkins, he {hould
not lwear the Words were {poken, and Things
done ¢

Mr. Dugdale. He hath faid the fame Words to
me at my Lord Lovelace’s, as 1 lay in Bed with
bim, and this I never mentioned but now in my
Evidence,

Colledge. "What Words did I {ay there ?

Mr, Dugdale. If you muft have them repeated,
they were about the King,

Colledge. 'What were they ?

Mr, Dugdale, That he was a Papift, and de-
figned arbitrary Government,

Colledge. Did 1 fay fo to you at my Lord
Lovelace’s ?

Mr.
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My, Dugdale.  Yes, as we lay a-Bed.
Mr. Soll. Gen. Did you lie together 2
Mr. Serj. Fefferies. Yes, yes, they were Inti-

Mates. | _
Colledge. T had not fix Words with you when

you went to Bed, for you faid you were weary;
and went afleep prefently.
Mr. Dugdale. I {ay you furd this in the Morn-

ing, for we had an Hour’s Dilcourfe when we
were a-Bed, and all our Difcourfe was about the
Parliament and the King,

Cilicdge, Where was it I faid thefe Words in
Oxford ¢

Mr, Dudgale. At Comb’s Collee-Houfe was one
Place.

Colledge. Was there no Body by ?

Mr. Dygdale. No, but at the Angel-Inn there
were feveral Perflons ftanding by ?

Colledge,  Surely then fome of thofe heard the
Words as well as you.

Mr. Dugdale, It may befo, Iam fure many at
London have been by, as Mr. Starkey by name, Mr.
Bofom, Mr, Baldwin ; they have rebuked you for
it, and I have rebuked you too,

Coll. What Words have they and you heard,
and reboked me for ?

Mr. Dugdale. 'When you have been railing
againft the King, and faid, Thar the King de-
figned nothing but the introducing of Popery
and arbitrary Government, and that he was a
Papitt,

Mr, Serj, Feff. He loves to bear it repeated,

Colledge, What Arms did you fee of mine in
this Town ?

Mr. Dugdale. 1 faw Piftols 5 you had fome
Pocker Piftals.

Colledge.  None but one I borrowed of you,
and that you had again; had I? (Pray fpeak)
did you fce any more ?

Mr. Dugaale. It may be there might not, but
there were Pockets- Piftols in the Room, and you
had them in your Hand,

Colledge.  He fworc but now that he faw me
have Pocket-Piftols, when it was but one, and
that was his own,

Mz, Serj. Feff. Hark you now, you talk of
Piftols, do you know, that he had any Piftols in
his Flolters at Oxford ?

Mr. Dugdale.  Yes, he had,

Celledge. Yes, 1 know that, I don’ deny it

Mr. Serj. Feff. 1 think a Chiffel might have
been more proper for a Joiner.

Colledge,  You fay I was confederated with
Capt, Browan, and other Men.,

Mr, Dugdale.  You have told me that Capt,
Brown had a good Allowance, and it was pity
ne had not a better Allowance ; and you would
fpeak he might have a better Allowance, for
he was able to do good Service when the Time
came,

Colledge. From whom ?

Mir. Dugdale.  Among you,

Colledge,  Among whom ?

Mr, Dugdale. You know there were feveral .

Gatherings among you that I was privy to,

Colledge, 'What do I know ?

Mr, Sol, Gen.  You know Money was gathered
many Times.

Colledge.  For what Purpofe 2

Mr. Dgedale, You never told me Particu-
fars ; it was to diftribute fomewhere, I had noné
of .

Jor High-Treafon,

357

L. C. . He doss not fay thefe Men were con-
cerned with you, but you faid fo.

Mr. Dugdale.  Youknow, Mr. Collédpe, there
were many Gatherings of Monies,

Coll.  Did [ tell you there were any Gatherings
for Captain Browi ? + |

Mr. Serj. Feff. He fays, you told him no
Particulars 5 if you have a Mind to afk him any
more Queftions, do,

Colledge, Pray, Sir George, don’t interrupt me,
I am here for my Life. Did I tell you there
were any Gatherings for Captain Brown ?

Mr, Dugdale. 1 do not fay for him, nor whom
you diftributed it to ; but you gathered Money
One among another, and you have paid Money.

Colledge. 1 have paid Money ! When, and to
whom ?

Mr. Ait. Gen. You will not deny that, you con-
feffed, vpon your Examination, that you gave a
Guinea,

Colledge. Sir, did you fee me any more at Ox-
Jord, than in the Coffec-Houfe, and at that Inn,
when I went out of Town, and was going home
with the City-Members ?

Mr. Dugdale. Yes,

Coll.  Were you in my Company any where
but in thofe two Places ?

Mr. Dugdale, 1 was with you at the Cheguer.

Coll.  Did you come a Purpofe to fpeak with
mf:.:.P or had you any Bulinefs particularly with
e

Mr. Dugdale.  Troly, Mr. Clledge, 1 have
forgot whether I had or no 3 I was in the Room
with you there,

Coll, Where 1s that Room ?

Mr. Dugdale. 1 can’t tell all the Rooms in
that Houfe. |

Coll.  Was it above Stairs, or liclow ?

Mr. Dugdale, Both above and bzlow, two
Days I was there with you.

Coll, Was there any of this Difcourfe you fpeak
of paffed there between us ?

Mr, Dudg. 1 know I was with you in thofe two
Places I mentioned before 5 you called me afide
to drink a Glafs of Mum, and there was none in
the Room but us two at that Coffee-Houfe,

Coll. Sir, you came to Town but on Friday,
b dhunk it mult be Sazurday, Sunday, or Menday,
this was 3 for he ftayed no longer in Oxford.

Mr. Dugdale. Nay, I came to Oxford either
Wednefday Night, or Thurfday Morning 3 and 1
faw you and Mr, Hunt together the fame Day I
came.

Coll, Did I explaim any Pitures to you at Lox-
don, or owned I was the Author of them ?

Mr. Dugd. Yes, upon my Oath, you have ex-
plained Pictures to me, and there is one Piéture
that I have not fhewed yer, which you have ex-
plained what the meaning was.

Mr. Ser). Feff. 'Tis your common Trade, it
{eems. ‘
Mr. Dugdale, "You told me you got them done.

Clerk veads, A Charaéler of a Popifh Succeffor,
&ec,

Mr. Serj. Holloway. How did he explain it to
you, Mr, Dugdale ?

Mr. Serj. Feff. I'would fee what Opinion he
had of the Church of Eugland ; there are fome

Church-men, what are they a doing ?

MT.



358

106. 7he Trial of Stephen Colledge

33 Car. 1II.

- Mr. Dugdale. They are a Parcel of Tantivy-men faid, you were going to chufe Parliament-men :‘I
riding to Rome; and here’s the Duke of Zork, half have known you three or four Years, you were

Man, half Devil, trumpeting before them.

Coll.  You have got fome body to explain thefe
things to you, Mr. Dugdale.

Mr. Dugdale. You did it, upon my Oath,

Cofl. Oh, fie upon you, Mr. Dugdale, confider
what you fay.

Mr. Serj. Fefferies. All this you did exlain, it
feems,

Mr. Dugdale. And in one Place of the other
Libel the King was termed a Rogue; but they put
him in by another Name.

Mr. Ser). Feff. Whereis 1¢?

Mr. Dugdale. *Tis in Rary §hew; 1n the Manu-
fcript it was, Now, mow the Rogue is down.

Mr. Serj. Feff. Let me fee it; T took Notice
of it, Now, now the Giant is down, here,

Coll. T afk you, Sir, whether the Song which
you fay was fung at my Lord Lovelace’s, and o-
ther Places, was the fame with this?

Mr. Dugdale. For the general it 15, I can’t tell
for every Word :  You fang it half a dozen times

there, and the Mufick plaid to you.
Coll, 1 afk you, whether it was the fame with

this ?

Mr. Dugdale, 1 can’t tell for every Word you
{ing, o

Coll, Was there any Body by at my explaining
of thefe Pictures ¢

Mr, Dugdalz, Mr. Baldwin was by, and re-
proved and corrected you, that you would be fo
open.

Csll. Was there any body at Oxferd, when you
did hear me talk of arming my felf?

Mr, Dugdale, They were walking up and down
i the Barber’s Shop, and I know not whether

they did hear or no.
My, Ait. Gen. Was that Gentleman {worn at my

Lord Stafford’s Trial, Mr. Dugdale ?

Colledge,  Yes, 1 was fworn there, I acknow-
ledee it.

Mr. Att, Gen. Did he fwear any thing on your
Behalf, for your Credir, Mr. Dugdale ¢

Coll. That was by hear-fay, Mr. Attorney, at
the Tower ; 1 know nothing of my own Know-
Jedge ; but I did believe him another Man than 1
find him,

Mr, Ser). Feff. No Queltion, or elfe you would
not have trufted him,

Mr, Att. Gen, Swear Stevens., (IWhieh was done. )
Do you give my Lord and the Jury an Account
where you found this precious Ballad.

Stewens, The firft Draught 1 found in is Bed-
chamber.

Mr. Serj. Feff. What of all of them? Which
15 it ?

Stevens,  The Rary Sheww : We found the firft
Draoght of it in his Houfe, when we came to
Jearch his Papers, by Order of Council 3 and the
Printer that printed the Ballad hath told me {ince,
he had 1t from hime—

My, A, Gen, What fay you yourfelf ? fpeak
your own Knowledge.

Stevens, And Mr. dilerbury was by when we

fearched the Houle,
My, Att, Gen. Well, Mr, Atterbury will tell his

own Story. '
Stevens. 1 have feen you on Horfeback, with

Holfters before you, with fome hundreds of Men
aiter you, coming out of the Bell-favage-Inn 5 they

joiner to our Hall,

Mr, Sery. 7eff. We call you to that Particular
of the Papers, and you run in a Story of a Cock
and a Bull, and I know not what.

L. C. 7. Will you afk him any Queftions?

Colledge, No, only this; Do you {wear, upon
your Qath, that you found the Original in my
Houfe?

Stevens. Yes, Sir, you will fee it with my Hand
to it, and fome more of them.

Mr, Ait. Gen, And you found too thofe that
were printed ?

Stevens, Yes, both our Names are to them that
were concerned in the fearching of them,

Mr. Serj. Jeff. You found the Paper in the
Houle ?

Stevens. Yes,

Mr. Serl. feff. Thatis Tewzer 3 but have you
the Original of the Rary Shew ?

(It was looked for, bat conld nat be fonnd.)

Col. Pray, Gentlemen, obferve, he fwears that
is an Original,

Mr. Serj. feff. No, no, he found the Paper in
your Houle.

Coll. 1 afkk about the Original of Rary Shew.

Mr. Serj. Fefferies. He fays, he faw a Paper
drawn with a Pencil that was like the Orngi.
nal,

Atterbury. There was an Original drawn with
a Pencil, upon Dutch Paper, s long fince, for
we do not fee it here now, which at the fame
Time we found upon Colledge’s Table in his Bed-
Chamber.

Coll, Did you find an Original in my Cham-
ber?

Atterbrry,  Yes, we lfound a Paper drawn with
Black Lead.

Coll. Pray, where is it ?

Aiterbury, 1 did fee it, it was drawn in Black
Lead, 1t was upon Dutch Paper, and lay upoen
the Table in your Chamber,

Stevens, Sure Iam, it was taken when we fearch-
e the Houle,

Coll. 1am fure you could never find the Origi-
nal of any ‘uch thing in my Houle,

Ar. A, Gen, Then where 1s Mr, Scawell ?
(f’i' o ;*.vaj Sworn.) Stir, did you {ee that Trumpery
taken
 Sewell, 1 had a Warrant to feize Mr. Sprr, and
his  Brother-in-Law, Mr, Colledge, So I went
down to feize Mr, Spur, and fearch his Houle -
for fuch Papers as I thould find. I could not find
them 1n the Houle; but Ienquired of him, af-
ter I had {earched, and could not find them where
they were 5 becaule I faw him at Mr, Colledge’s
when we firft fearched 5 be denied them a pretty
while, but at laft he told me, they were 1n the
Hay-mow in the Barn, When [ came there, he
was bawling, and told me, his Wife, Colledge’s
Sifter had taken them down, and carried them in-
to a Room where I had fearched before, but could
not find them; and the Man was angry then, fo
we run after his Wife, and found her with all thefe
Papers 10 a Bag,

Mr. Ast. Gen, Are thefe the fame Papers?

Sewell. Yess and there were two other Cuts,
the Man himfelf 1s about the Place fomewhere.

M.
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Mr. Ait. Gen.  Swear Mr, Fobn Smith.

(Which was doe.)
Mr. Jult, Fones. Come, Mr, Smith, do you

know Mr. Golledge.
Mr. Smith., Yes. |
Mr. Serj. Feff. Give us an Account what deal-

ings you have had with him, where, and when ;
what he hath faid about the King ; and tell us
firlt whether you be intimately acquainted ?

Mr. Smith, We were intimately acquainted.
The firft Time I heard Mr, Colledgedifcourfing any
Thing of this Nature, that is, concerning Lreafon,
or any fuch Thing, was once at a Cofiee-Houle
by Temple-Bar 5 there T met Colledge, and he told
me he was invited to Dinner, and he likewile in-
vited me to it. I afked him, who provided the
Dinner ; he told me it was one Alderman Wilcox ;
[ told him I was a Stranger, and did not care for
going ; he told me, I fhould be very welcome
there 5 and at laft prevailed upon me to go : And
as I was going along, 1 afked him what the Al-
derman was ; hetold me, he was a Man that was
as true as Steel, and a Man that would endeavour
to root out Popery : Said 1, That may be dane
eafily, if you can but prevail wich the King to
pafs the Bill againft the Duke of 2ok, No, no,
faid he, you are miftaken, for Rowley is as great
a Papift as the Duke of York is, (wow be called the
King Rowley) and every Way as dangerous to the
Proteftant Intereft, as 1s too apparent by his ar-
bitrary Ruling. This was the Difcourfe between
the Cofiee-Houfe and the Tavern where we went
to dine, When we came in, Iafked Colledge again
whether the Alderman was there; he faid he
was not there at that Time: I afked him the fe-
cond Time, what Xind of Man he was; he faid,
he was one that lived in his Country Houfe, and
gave freely to feveral People to buy Arms and
Ammusition : And I afked him to what Purpofe?
And he faid, it was to bring the King to Sub-
miffion to his People : Adding thereto, that he
wondered Old Rowley did not confider how eafily
his Father’s Head came to the Block, which he
doubted not would be the end of Rewley at the
laft. Afrer this Difcourfe, the Aldérman came
in 5 we dined, and every one went his own way
about his own Bufinefs. Mr. Cslledge. then told
me, if I would go with hin to his own Houle, I
thould fee how he was prepared with Arms and
Provifion. Soonafter I met with him, and he
defired me to go along and dine with him 3 and
Fdid fo, and there he did thew me his Piftols, his
Blunderbufs, and his great Sword ; and he fhewed
me his Armour, Back and Breaft ; and he fhewed
me his Head-piece, which if I am not miltaken,
was covered over with Camblet, 1t was a very
fine Thing ; and, faid he, thefe are the Things
which will deftroy the pitiful Guards of Rowley,
that are kept up contrary to Law and Juftice, to
et up arbitrary Power and Popery.

Coll. Whatdid I fay, Sir, about my Armour?

Mr. Smith, Thus you faid 5 it was to deltroy
Rowley’s Guards, (thofe weie your Words) that
were kept up contrary to Law and Juftice, to
1t up arbitrary Power and Popery.  After I had
dined with him, I parted with him. A little be-
fore the Parliament was to meet at Oxford, 1 met
hird agairi 3 and we were difcourfing of feveral
Things, what Preparations the City were making,
how they were provided with Powder and Bul-
lets, and- for his Part he would go down to Ox-
ford, for he expefted a little Sport there, upon
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thé Divifions that were like fo bé betiveen the
King and Parliament. Then, faid I to him, Why,
what is the Matter there? Why, faid he, we
expect that the King will feize upon fome of the
Members, and we are as ready as he: And, fays
he, for my Part, I will be there, and be one that
fhall feize him if he fecure any of the Members ;
(and I believe he did go down ;) fays he, you
know how the City is provided : I told him, 1o,
not fo well as he; but he told me all was very
well.  After he came up again, I met him ano-
ther Time, and he told me, he went down in Ex-
pectation of {fome Sport s but O/d Rowley was a-
fraid, like his Grandfather Famy, and {o ran away
like to bethit himfelf.

Mr. Serj. 7eff. Did he fay, if he had notrun
away he would have feized him ?

Mr, Smith. He faid nothing of that ; but be-
fore, he faid, he would be one of them fhould
feize him, if he feized any of the Members, Af-
ter this he told me, that Fitz.gerald and be had
had a Quarrel at the Parliament-Door of. the
Houle of Lords at Oxford ;5 that Fitz-gerald had
called him Rogue ; and, faid he, Fitz-gerald made
my Nofe bleed ; but before long, I hope to fee
a great deal more Blood fhed for the Caufe, Aftef
this again, when there was a difcourfe of dif-
arming the City, that my Lord Feverfham was 1o
come to do 1t, he told me, he was well provided,
and if Feverfham, orany Man, nay, Rowleyhim-
felf thould attempt any fuch Thing, he would be
the Death of him, before any Man fhould feize
upon his Arms.

Mr, Ser), Feff. Did he difcourfe any Thing to
you about Arms to provide yourfclf ?

Mr. Smith, Yes, bedid, I had anArmour from
him,

Mr. Ser). Feff. What did he fay to you about it ?

Mr. Smith, He did defire me to get me Arms,
for I did not know how foon I might make ufe
of them. I had an Armour from him upon trial ;
he faid it coft him 30 or 40s5. I had it upon
trial, but it was too big for me, fo I cave it him
back, and bought a new one,

Mr. Ait. Gen. Did he tell you to what Purpofe
you thould arm yourfelf 2

Mr, Smith. No, he did not name any Purpofe 5
bur he told me, 1 did not know how foon I
might make ufe of ir,

My, Att. Gen, What did he fay to you about
any one’s feizing the King ¢

Mr. Smith. He told me the Parliament were
agreed to fecure the King, and that in order to it,
all the Parliament-men came very well armed, and
accompanied with Arms and Men ; and he told me
of a great Man that had Notice from all the Gen-
tlemen of Eugland how well they came armed.

Mz, Juft. Fores. What did he fay of himfelf?

Mr, Smith, Fle would be one that fhould fecure
the King, if he feized any of the Members,

Mr. Jult, Fones. When he had bten there,
what did he fay ?

Mr, Smith, If they had had any Work, he was
ready provided for them. -

Mr. dit. Gen.  But pray, tell us again what he
faid of the King’s running away ¢

Mr. Smith. He faid, Rowley was afraid, like
his Grandfather Famy, and run away ready to
befhir himfelf.

L. C. #. If you have done with him, Mr. At-
torney, let the Prifoner afk him what Queftions-.

he will,
ol
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Coll, Mr. Smith, where was this Difcourfe I had

with you ¢ ‘
Mr. Smith. 'Which do you mean, the former

Part, or the latter?

Coll.  The firlt Difcourfe you talk of, what I
told you going to Mr. Wilcox’s to Dinner ; and
when 1t was?

Mr., Smith, You know beft when it was, 1 can’t
exaétly remember the Time; but you know ’tis

true.
Coll. Where was it?
Mz, Smith, As we went along thither we had

the firft Parc of 1t, and when we came thither,
you and I talked till Alderman /7ilcox came in;
and you and I were alone together, and feveral
Perfons that were there, were drawn Into Cabals,

(WO by two,

Coll, Where ?
Mr. Smith. Inthe Room where we dined ; and

you know there was a little Room by, where fome
were drinking a Glafs of Wine,

Coll, You fay, by two and two, the Company
were drawn into Cabals,

Mr, Smith, T tell you, moft of them were in
Cabals, two and two together, only thofe two
Gentlemen that belonged to the Alderman went
up and down, and gave Wine.

Coll. What Religion are you of?

Mr. Smith, Is it for this Man to afk me, my

Lord, fuch a Queftion?

L.C. 7. Yes, anfwer him,

Mr. Smith, 1 am a Proteftant.

Coll. You were a Prielt?

Mr. Smith. Yes, what then? and J am in Or-
ders now.,

Coll. That was from the Church of Rome.

Mr., Smizh, Yes, and that 1s a good Ordination
I came 1n voluntarily to difcover the Popith Plot,
and was no Penfioner, nor received any Salary
from the King, I have fpent {everal Pounds,
feveral fecores of Pounds, but received no Recom-
pence : And I was the Darling at one Time all
over the City, when I did adhere to what they
would have me to do.

Mr. Sery. Feff.  Did not you {wear againft my
Lord Stafford ¢

M. Att, Gen. Were you not a Witnefs, Mr,
Smith, at my Lord Stafford’s Trial ?

Mr. Smub. In thar Cafe I did give a general
Account of the Defign of the Papifts; they did
not then queftion my Reputation, and I defy
all the World to fay any thing againft i,

Coll, Pray hear me, Sir, 1f you pleafes the
firlt Difcourfe that you fpeak of about Mr., 77il.
cox’s being a good Man for the Caufe, and contri-
buting Money, this was when we were at Din-
ner.

Mr, Sinith. This was that Day when we went

to Dinner with him, youknow it very well,
Coll. Where were the other Dilcourfes T had

with you?

Mr, Smith, Which part of them ?

Colf, When [ came fram Oxford ¢

v, Smith, B)’ the Di[C]l-ﬁdf.‘, by your own
Houfe; I have two or three to prove it, we
were an Hour or two difcourfing together about

this Bufinefs.

Coff. What Bufinefs?
L. C. ¥. Hetells you of two Difcourfes, one

before you went to Oxford, and one after you

came from thence,
Coll. Hle does fay, that Idid difcourfe him abou
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our coming down hither to Oxford, that the Par.
liament would {ecure the King, and that I wopld
be one of them that fhould feize him, and thig
was the Time when we dined with Alderman
Vilcox.

L. C.%. Notfo, he fays, after that Time, and
before you went to Oxford, he had fuch a Dilourfe
with you.

Mr, Smith, Yes, my Lord, foit was,

Colledge. And does he fpeak of another Time
when I fhewed him the Back, Breat, and Armsg

Mr. Smith. Yes.

Colledge. But he faid, I difcourfed then, thar
the City was provided with Arms, and that the
Parliament were refolved to bring the King to
Submiffion,

Mr. Santh. When Iwas in the Houfe with him,
he then faid, Mr. Wilcox gave Money 1o provide
Arms: lafked, for what ? he faid, it was to brine
the King to Submiffion to his People 3 and then
he added, he admired that Rewley did not remem-
ber how eafily his Father’s Head came to the Block 5
and he doubted not but that would be the Fnd of
him too,

L. C. 7. Hefpake of feveral Times, you know.

Colledge. I do not know one Word of it, nor
can I diftinguifh the Times: But, Mr. Smith, the
lalt Difcourfe, you fay about Oxford Bufinefs was
by the Ditch-fide.

Mr, Sery. Feff. The Difcourfe about bringing
the King to Submiffion, was in the Way as you
went to Dinner,

Mr. Smith. ‘The lalt Difcourfe, when you re-
turned from Oxford, was by the Ditch-{ide ; but
both before and after you fpake to me ar thar
Place about this Defign of bringing the King w0
Submiffion,

Colledge. You faid, it was at 7#icox’s at Dinner.

Mr. Ser). Feff. You miftook him then,

Coll. Nay, Sir Gearge, you ook him not right.

Mr. Ser, Feff. 1 have taken him right, 1 affure
you, and you fhall fee it by and by,

Colledge.  He is the falfelt man that ever fpoke
with a Tongue,

Mr. Ait, Geir. Swear Bryan Haynes, (WWhich toas
doiie.)  Tell my Lord and the Jury whether
you krow this Gentleman, what Converfe you
had with m, and what Difcourfe he hath had
with you.  Apply your felf to Mr. Colledpe's
Bulinefs only. |

Hayies, 1 fuppofe he will not deny but that he
knows me very well 5 T have been acquainted
with him ever fince March laft, before the fiting
of the Parliament ar Oxfrd. My Lord, there
was a Warrant againft me for High-Treaflon, and
) made my Application to Mr, Colledge, and de-
{ired him 10 go to a Perfon of [Honour in Eagland,
and afk his Advice, whether 1 might fuperfede the
Warrant by putiing in Bail, and carry the Super-
Jedeas in my Pocker: Mr. Colledge rold me, he
would go to this Perfon of Honour, for he wonld
do nothing of his own Head ; and he bid me
come to him the next Day. My Lord, I camc
10 Mr. Colledge the very next Day, and 1 met him
at his Foufe, and I afked him what was the Re-
fule, and what Advice he had from that Perfon of
Quality : He bid me be of good chear, that the
Parliament would be, and fit at Oxford loon s
that I fhould not value the King a Pin'; for, faid
he, the King is in a worfe Condition than you ot
I s for you fhall fee, faid he, he fhall be call:d to
an Account for all his A&ions,

Mr,
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Mr. Seri. Feff.  'Who fhould ?

Haynes.Jlefleﬁ- King 3 for all the World may fee,
fays he, that he does refolve to bring in arbi-
trary Power, and Popery: And, {aid he, unlefs
he will Jet the Parliament fit at Oxford, fince he
hath called them together, and put the People
to charges in choofing of them, and them 1n com-
ing down, we will feize him at Oxford, and bring
him to the Block, as we did the Logger-head his
Father : The Parliament fhall fic at Guild-Hall,
and adjuft the Grievances of the Subject, and of
the Nation : And you fhall fee, faid he, that no
King of his Race fhall ever reign in England
after him. ~

L.C.¥. Where was this he faid {o ?

Haynes. At his own Houfe I met him 5 and
he and I did walk all along from his own Houfe,
over the Bridge that is againlt Bridewel!, and {o
went all along till we came to the Hercules Pillars,
and we had fome difcourfe there 5 we went up
one Pairof Stairs and called for fome Beet ;5 and
all this dilcourfe was in that very Place of the
Herenles Pillars,

Mr, Sery, Holloway. Do you know any thing
of any Arms he had, and for what ¢

Haynes. But, Sir, faid I to Mr, Golledge, how
can this be done, ’tis a Thing impoflible : You
pretend, you fay, to the Duke of Mowmouth, that
he is a fine Prince, and ftands up for the Pro-
teflant Intereft, Alas, faid he, we make an Idol
of him to adumbrate our Aétions, for fear we
fhould be dilcovered : Do you think the wife
People of England fhall ever make a Baftard upon
Record King of Eugland? No, faid he, for thongh
we praife his Actions, yer we cannot endure
hirh, becaufe he is againft his own Father, Bur,
faid he, further, unlefs the King do expel from
his Council the Earl of Clarendon, cunning Lory
Hyde, the Earl of Hallifax, that grear Turn-coat
Rogue, that was before fo much againft the La-
pifts, 2 Rafcal, we fhall fee him hanged, and all
the Tory Counfellors, except the King do it, we
will make Ewngland too ot for him.

Colledge. Who did I fay thisto? To you?

[Haynes,  Yes, to me.

Colledge. Pray, how could this be poffible ?

Hayies. Yes, you knew my Condition 3 and I
intimated to you at that Time, that I was as much
for Treafon and Villainy as you : But then faid T
to him, how can this be done ? Here you have
neither Officers, nor Men of Experience, nor
Men of Knowledge 5 nor you have no Ammuni-
tion, Sea-port Towns, nor any Ships. And befides,
the King, faid I, hath a grear Party i the Land,
and the Duke of 2ork likewife 5 and for all the
Men of Eftates, and the ancient Gentlemen, they
will not be difturbed, and quic their Eafe for a
Civil War, Ohb, fays he, youare mitaken, for
we have in the City 1500 Barrels of Powder,
and we have 100,0c0 Men ready at an Four’s
Warning ; and we have ordered every Thingin a
due Method againft the fitting of the Parliameént
at Oxford 3 and you fhall fee Enpland the moft
glorious Naton in the World, when we have
cut off that beaftly Fellow Rowler 5 and {peaking
of the King, he faid, he came of the Race of
Duggerers, for his Grandfather King Fames bug-
gered the old Duke of Buckingbam 5 and he called
himy Caprain, and fometimes the Kiny, and fome-
times Rewley.

Mr, Serj, Jeff. This was pure Proteftant dif-
ceurfe, upon my Word,

Vou, 111,
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Hayites, Then he railed at Judge Pemberton ;
and, faid he, let him try Fitz- Harris if he dare 5
I fhall fee him go to Tyburs for it, I hope a Turn-
coat Rogue ; he was for the Plot whillt he was
putfite Judge, but now he is Chief Juftice, he is
the greatelt Rogue in the World. He is like one
of the Penfioners in the Long Parliament, So
one Day I went along with Mrs, Fitz-Harris, and
Mr, lvy, and he fent a Man to me, and defired me
to come to the Hog i Armonr 5 thither we came,
and met him, and went to his Lodgings, and
there we dined.  Then they made fome Perfons of
Honour believe, that I was a Perfon foand fo qua-
lified, and was brimful of the Plot ; and he would
put me upon charging the King with the firing of
London, and the Murder of Sir Edmundbury God.

frey s and, {aid he, fuch and fuch Lords fhall live

and die by you ; and belides, faid he, you need
not fear, England fhall efpoufe your Caufe. Bu;
fatd I, the Law is like a Spider’s Web ; that
catches the little Flies, but the great Flies run
through the Net, and make their efcape ; fo it is
with thefe Lords, they put you and me on the
danger of atting ; and when they got off by In-
tereft, a Jury of 12 Men will hang us by the
Neck, and fo I fhould perith, whilt others tri-
umphed, and only be a Martyr for the Fanaticks,
So 1n difcourfe we were talking of the Libel of
Filz-Harrisy the Devil take me, faid he, every
individual Word 1s as true as God is in Heaven 3
and, faid he, if you do not join with Fitz-Harris
in his Evidence, and charge the King home, you
arc the baleft Fellow in the World, for he makes
you Slaves and Beggars, and would make all the
World {o ;3 and ’tis a Kind of Charity to charge
him home, that we may be rid of luch a Tyrant,

Mr. Serj. Feff. Mr. Colledge, if youwill afk him
any Queftions, you may,

Coll. Certainly, my Lord, the thing fpeaks
it 5 he is not to be talked withal ; is it probable
I fhould talk to an Irifbman that does not under-
ftand Senfe ?

Haynes. *Tis better to be an honelt Irifhman,
than an Engli/b Rogue,

Mr. Serj. feff. He does it but to put youin a
Heat, don’t be paffionate with him.

Haynes. No, Iam not, I thank God, he hath
not put me nto a Hear,

Coll, Where was this difcourfe abour fuper-
feding your Warrane ?

Haynes. At Londoi,

Colledge.  When ? |

Haynes, It was before the Parliament fat at Ovon.

Celledge, How long ?

Haynes, I can’t tell pofitively to an Hour or 2
Duay.,
Colledye,

-+

Haynes,

What Month, as near as you can ¢
It was in the Month of March.

Colledge,  Had you ever feen me before ?

Haynes,  Can you deny that?

Coll. I afk you whether you have of no*

Haynes, Yes, 1 have feen you 1n the Collee-
Houfes bawling againft the Government,

L. C. ¥, Were youan intimate Acquaintancé
of his before March laft ?

Haynes, No intimate Acquamiance,

Coll. Then this is the firlt Time you difcourfed
with me.

Haynes. Ob, no my Lord.  One and I fell our
at the Queen’s- Head Tavern at Temple-Bar, and he
fet me upon the Bufinels, and Fobn Macnaimnarra
and others 3 and truly 1 did the Bufinefs for bim -
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For we fell out and did Box, and our Swords were
taken from us, and I went to Fobn Aacnamarra,
and told him, yonder is fuch a Man at fuch 2
Place, now you nuy feize upon him,

Gl What Man was that ¢

Havies,  One Richard Poiire.

Cell, e belonged to my Lord Tyione, 1 think,
there were Warrants to take kim. Do you fay 1
fer you upon that ?

Haynes. Yes, you were with me the Night be-
fore, and Capt. Brows, and they gave us a Sig-
nal, '+ blue Ribband, to diftinguilh that we were
Proteftants, from the Bifhops Men.

L.C. ¥. When were you to make Ufc of 1t ¢

Haynes.  When the King was feized.

Mr. Serj. Feff. Well, go on, Lave you any
[nore °

Haynes. But, my L.ord, further, after he came
from Oxon I met bim 3 and, faid I, Where are
now all your Cracks and Brags? Now you fee
the King hath made a Fool of you ; now you
know not what you would have done.  Says he,
What would you have us to do? We have not
done with him yets for, faid he, no Servant, no
Man living did know whether ke would diffolve
the Parliament that Day. I was that very nick of
Time at the Lord’s Houfe, and there was a Man
~ came in with a Gown under his Arm, and every

one looked upon him to be a Faylor, and no Bo-
dy did fufpeét, no, not his intimaeft I riends, cx-
cept It were Fitz-gerald, that he would diffolve
the Parfiament that Day 3 but prefently he puts
on his Robes, and fends away for the Houle of
Commons ; and when he had diffolved them,
before ever the Houfe could get down, he took
Coach and went away, otherwife the Parln-
ment had been too hard for him ; for there was
never a Parliament-Man but had divers armed
Men to wait on bim, and I had my Blunderbufs
and my Man to wait upon me.  Bur well, faid
he, there is a God above that will rule all.

M. Al Gein.  Call Mr., Turberville,

Colledze.  Hold, Sir, I defire to afk him fome
Queftions.  You fay, the firft Time that I faw
vou, you had this difcoudde with me ¢ ‘

Ilaynes, Do not ufe Tautologies 5 “us not the
qeft Time I have been examined, I know how to
fpeak as well as you.

Colledge.  Anfwer my Queltion, Sir,

Hayies.  You krow it was after 1 had made
AfRdavic before the Recorder of London, a Copy
of which was carried to that Nobleman 5 and
vou came from him and returned me his Thanks,
and told me it was the beft Service 1 could do
him. 1 would not trouble the Court with cir-
cumftantial Things 5 and you told me I fhould
be gratiiied not only in my own Property, but
1 Reward for me and my Herrs for ever,

M. Attor. Geir,  For what ?

Hayaes. 1 made Affidavit before the Recorder
of Loidein,

Colledlze.  About what?

Haynes.  Concerning one Filz-gerald.

Air. oAt Gein. Is this to this Matter ?

Javies.  No, nothing ar all.

L. C. 7. Let him afk any Queftions what he will,

Coll 1 afk when it was the firft Time you were
acquatnted with me, fo much as to know me well?

{layies. Asto the firft Time of Intimacy, here
is Aacizamarrs will tale his corporal Oath that |
was as w:ll acquaicted with him as any one m
the World,
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Colledge, Pray anfwer me, Sir, when was the
firt Time 1 talked to you?

Haynes, The firft intimate Acquaintance wa
had, was when you put me upon the Defign aboyt
Filz-gerald. |

Colledge. Pray, Sir, yougo too faft already, as
you are {till gallopping ; where was this difcourfe
about his Majefty ?

Haynes. 1 told you before,

Colledge, Where was 1t ¢

Hayies. 1 went to you after the Affidavit was
made, and told you there was a Warrant out after
me, and defired you to go to that Nobleman ang
defire his Advice what I might do, or whether [
might fuperfede the Warrant.  You told me yoqu
could do nothing without Advice, and you would
oo and advife with that Nobleman,

Coll. My Lord, here is Mr, Turbervile come
in, they will over-hear one another ; pray let me
have fair play for my Life.

(Wherenpon Turbervile withdrew.)

L. C.¥. Can’t you anfwer him ? When was

the firlt Time you came acquainted with him ?

Mr. Serj. F2ff.  When was the frft Difcourfe

you had with him ¢

Haynes, In April laft.

Coll.  You fay it was before the fitting of the
Parliament, and that was in March 2

Haynes, 1 meant in March.

Colledge.  So indeed you faid at firft,

Mr, Sery. Feff. He never did {ay the Day of the
Month, nor the Month neither.

M, Fones. How long was it before the fitting
of the Parliament ?

Haynes. Mr. founes, Truly Ido not remember
precifely how long it was before the fiting of the
Parliament 3 but I am fure it was before.

Mr, Sery Feff. 1 did take it that he faid it was
before the fitting of the Parliament, and now he
fays in the Month of March. FPray when he
talked to you, did not he tell yeu of the fitting
of the Parliament, and that they would ftand b?
you? :
Colledge. He hath faid 1t already, you need not
direct him, Sir George, he goes faft enough. But
you fay, Sir, the firlt Time I was ever acquainted
with you, was in March 5 then Gentlemen, con-
fider, whether it be probable that at that Time I
(hould difcourfe to him after this Manner.,

L.C.}. No, I didtell you what he fays 3 he
fard the firft Time he was intimately acquainted
with you, was 1n Adaich 3 he faid he had before
feen you in Coftee Houfes, and he is fure it was
before the fitting of the Parliament ; for he tells
you the Difcourle you had, and by that Difcourfe
it appears, it related to a Parliament that was af-
terwards to fit.  And then to give you a more par-
ticular Circumitance, he fays, that you put him
upon the making the Aflidavit about Fitz gerald,
and fo you came acquainted.

Liaynes. Afk Mr. Anorney. My Lord, that
Day he was taken and carried to #hite-ball before
the Secretary of State, he faid, I do not know
}vho it {hould be that fhould accufe me, 1 believe
itis Juy; asfor Haynes, he was taken Cother Day,
he was an honelt Man, .

Celledge.  You fay I delired you to make an
Affdavie ; Was o aker that, or before 1 had
that Difcourie with you ¢

Heynes,  Towas after: For I came and defired
you to go to fuch a Perfon of Quality, and you
went to him and advifed with him 3 and then the

next
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next Morning fuch Difcourfe as I told your Lord-
fhip and the whole Court of, he told me.
Colledge. Did I fpeak thele treafonable Words

after the Affidavit was made?
Haynes. You faid I muft make {uch an Affida-

vit concerning Fitzgerald.

Colledze. But was this trealonable Difcourfe be-
fore you made the Affidavit, or after?

Haynes. After the Affidavit made, you told me
this : When I came to his Houfe, and from thence
we went to the Hercules Pillars.

Mr. Sol. Gen. Will you afk him any more
Queftions, Mr, Colledge ¢

Colledge. Did you ever fpeak with me in your
I ,ife before Macnamarre did call me out of the
Coffee-houfe to go along with you, where you
would difcover a Defign againft my Lord §hafte/-
bury's Life.

Haynes, 1 told you I never had any intimate
Acquaintance with you in my Life before, nor
did I ever {peak with you before.

Colledge, When was that Difcourfe, I afk you
once again ?

Haynes. After the Affidavit made.

Colledge, That Night?

Haynes, Within a Week or thereabouts after
the Affidavit made.

Mr. Ait. Gen. Call Mr, Edward Turbervile.,
But Mr, Faynes, 1 would afk you one Queftion,
Did he deliver you any Ribband as a Mark of
Diftinétion ? '

Haynes. Yes, here itis, (And it was fhewn to
the Court.)

Then My, Turbervile was fworn,

Mr. Serj. Feff. Pray, Mr, Turbervile, will you
tell my Lord and the Jury what Difcourle you
had with Mr. Colledge 3 and where, and when 2

M. Turbervile. When the Parliament fat in Oxox
about the middle of the Week, 1 can’t be politive
in the Day, but I think it was in the middle of
the Week I dined with Mr, Colfedge, Capt. Brown
and Don Lewis, Clerk of Derby-Honfe, at the
Chequer-Tnn.  After Dinner Don Lewis went out
about fome Bufinefs, and Captain Brown went to
fleep, Mr. Colledge and 1 fell to talking of the
Times, and I was obferving, I thought the Par-
ltament was not a long-lived Parliament, Said he,
There is no good to be expected from the King ;
for he and all his Family are Papifts, and have
ever been fuch, you know it, Sir.

Mr. Ser). Feff. Nay don’t apply to him.

Mr. Turb. Said I, The King will offer fome-
thing or other by way of Surprize to the Parlic-
ment. Said he, I would he would begin; but if
he do not, we will begin with him, and {eize him ;
for there are {everal brave Fellows about this Town,
that will fecure him til! we have thofe "Uerms that
we expect from him.

L. C. F. Where was this?

Mr, Turb. At the Chequer-Inn.

L. C. ¥. What faid he further?

Mr, Turb. He faid he had got a Cafe of Piftols,
and a very good Sword, and 4 Velver-Cap; and
I can’t be pofitive he had Armour on, but I be-
lieve he had.

Mr., Ait. Gen, Did he tell you he came cown
for that Purpofe, to {eize the King?

Mr. Turb. Yes, and he gave me a piece of Blue
Ribband to put in my Hat. He had a great
Quantity of 1t.

Mr. A, Gen, What was that for ?

Mr., Turb. To be a Diftinction if there fhould
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ge any Difturbance when the Thing fhould be
ene.

Coll. What Thing done?

Mr. Turb. 1 know nothing but of your telling
me of it, |

Coll, Where was this?

Mr, Turb. At the Cheguer-Inn in Oxon, Mr.
Colledge.  You talk much and can’t remember all
you [ay.

Mr. Ait. Gen, What did he difcourfe to you
about Arms and a Horfe?

Mr, Turb. 1 told him I had never an Horle,
and nothing but a Cafe of Piftols; he bid me I
fhould not trouble my felf, for he would get me an
Horfe.

Coll. What to do?

Mr. Turb. To carry on your Defign, I know
not what 1t was, but by your Words.

Mr. Att, Gen. Tell what he faid of it at the
Chequer- fnn.

Mr. Turb. He faid, there was a Defign to feize
the King.

Mr. Ait. Gen. Did he defire you to be one of
them 2

Mr, Turb. He did defire me to be ready toaffift,

Mr. J. Fones. And how much of that Ribband
had he, pray?

Mr. Turb, A very great Quantity, 40 0r 50 Yards,

Mr. Sol, Gen, Pray, Mr, Turbervile, will you
give your Evidence over again, and let Mr, Col-
ledge attend to it.

Mr. Turb. When the Parliament fat at Oxon,
about the middle of the Week, I cannot be pofi-
tive to a Day, I believe it was either [P ednefday
or Thurfday, 1 dined with Mr. Colledge, Captain
Brown and Don Lewis, who was formerly Clerk
of Derby-boufe. Don Lewis after Dinner went out,
and Captain Brown lay down on the Bed, and
M. Colledge and I fell a talking of the Times,
and I told him, I thought this Parliament would
be no long-lived Parliament, Upon which Colledge
told me, the King and all his Family were Papits,
and there was no good to be expeéted from him.
Then I replied, the King would perhaps furprize
the Parliament, or ufe fome Stratagem to bring
them to his Terms, Said Mr. Colledge agam, I
would he would begin; but if he do not, we will
fecure him till he comes to thofe Terms we would
have from him ; for hereare feveral brave Fellows,
and many more are coming down that will join
with it,

Mr, Ait. Gen, Did he name any one ¢

Mr, Turb. No indeed, he did not; he himfelf
had a Cafe of Piftols, 2 Sword, and 1 believe he
might have his Armour omn, |

Col. Did 1 difcourfe who were to join with me ?

Mr, Turb, No, Mr. Colledge, you did not name
any body to me, but Capt. Brown was with you,

Mr. At. Gen. Were you examined in my Lord
Stafford’s Trial ?

Mr. Turb. Yes, I was,

Mr. Ait. Gen. 'Was this Gentleman {worn (o
your R eputation there?

Mr. Turb, No, not to mine,

Coll. Pray, how came we to talk of fuch things?
What Occafion was there that I thould talk T'rea-
fon of the King to you? Was there any body
befides us two there ?

Mr, Turb, No, Capt. Brown was gone to {leep,
and Lewis was gone ou.

My, Att. Gen. It was not at Dinner that you

talked fo, Mr, Colledge, he fays,
Aaa2 Coll,
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Coll. Had they been at Dinner with us there ?
Mr. Turb. Yes, and we had a Leg of boiled

Moutton to Dinner, o
Cill, Did you ftay after Dinner ?
Mr. Turb,  Yes, and I lay with you afterwards

upon the Bed.
Coll. 1 thought you had faid Capt, Brows went

to {leep there. h

Mr, Tuib. Yes, but he was gope too, when
we laid down together.

Coll. God forgive you, I can\fay no more,
I never fpoke one Word of any fuch Difcourfe in
my Life. |

Mpr, Attor, Gen,  'Will you afk him any more
Queftions ? -

Coll. Mr. Turbervile, when did you give 1n this
Informdtion againft me ?

Mr, Turb. 1 gave it to the Grand Jury.

Coll. Not before ¢

Mr. Turb.  Yes, Idid,

Coll. 'When wasit?
Mr, Turb, Truly 1 can’c well tell, 1 believe

1t was a Day or two before I came to Oxos,

Coll. Why did youmake itthen, and not before ?

Mr, Tuih, U1l tell you the Occafion, Mr, Dug-
dale told -me the Grand Jury of London would not
find the Bill : I did admire at itextremely 5 for I
thought every one that converfed with him
might be an Evidence againft him 3 he was al-
ways fo very lavifh againlt the King and the
Government. So then Colonel /Parcup came to
me and took my Depofitions, and then I came

for Oxford.
Colledye. What was the reafon you did not dif-

cover this Treafon bzfore ?

Mr. 9urb, There was no reafon for it, 1t was
not neceflary.

Collzdge. You were not agreed then.

Wir., Turd, There was no Agreement in the
Cafe, there needs nothing of that, I think, but I
am not obliged to give you an Account of it.

Colledze.  God forgive you, Mr, Turbervile,

Mr, 9urb.  And you too, Mr. Colledpe.

M. A, Gen. Then cull Sie William Fensiings.

Mr. Serj. Feff. Mr. Auorney, if you pleafe, till
he comes, I will acquaint my Lord here i1s a Gen-
tieman that hath not yet been taken notice of,
one Mr, Maffers, that 1s pretty well known to Mr,
Colledze ; now heisa Man, he muft acknowledge,
of an undoubted Reputation, and I defire he
may give your Lordfhip and the Jury an account
what he knows of the Prifoner ; becaufe he is {o
curious for Englifbmen, we have broughe himy an
Eugliflmaiz of a very:good Repute.

Colledge. My Lord, Iam charged with Treafon
in this Indictment 3 here are a great many Things
made ule of that ferve only to amule the Jury, I
can conjefture nothing elfe they are brought for
I defire to know whether the Piftures produced
are Part of the Treafon.

L. C. % Sty till the Evidence'is given, and
we will hear what you can fay at large when
you come to fum up your Defence.

Mr. Serj. Feff. Pray, my Lord, will you be
pleafed to hear this Gentleman: He will tell you
what difcourle he hath had with the Prifoner at the
Bar.,

Then Mr. Mafters was fworn,

Mr. Mafters, Mr, Colledge and 1 have been ac-
quainted for a great many Years ; and we have
often difcourfed. I have told him of his being fo
violent as he hath been feveral Times, Buta lictle
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before the Parliament at Oxford, about Chrifimafs
laft, after the Parliament at Wellminfter, at Mr.
Charltow’s Shop the Woollen-Draper in Paul’s
Church-Yard, we were difcourfling together about
the Government, and he was juftifying of the
late long Parliament’s Actions in 40 5 and he faid,
That Parliament was as good a Parliament ag
ever was chofen mn the Naton, Said I, I won-
der how you have the Impudence to juflify their
Proceedings that raifed the Rebellion againft the
King, and cut oft his Head. Said he, They did
nothing but what they had juft Caufe for, and
the Parliament that fat lalt at JFeffminfler was of
thetrr Opinion, and fo you would have feen it.

Mr. Serj. feff.  What did he fay of the Parlia-
ment {ince ¢

Mr, Mafiers. He {aid the Parliament that fac
laft at eflminfier was of the fame Opinion that
that Parliament was,

Mr, Ser). Feff. Pray afterwards what difcourle
had you about his Colonelfhip?

Mr., Mafters. We were talking at Guild-Hall
that Day the Common-Council was, the 13th of
May as near as I remember, {o I came to him,
How now, Colonel Colledge, faid 1, what do you
make this Buftle for 7 You miftook me, and faid,
Coufin, how long have you and I been Coufins 2
Nay, prithee faid [, ’tis not yet come (o that, to
own Kindred between us, I only called you Colonel
in Jeft, Marry, mock not, faid he, I may be
one In a little Time.

Mr. Ser). 7eff. Have you any Thing to afk Mr.
Mafiers 2 You know he is your old Acquaintance,
you know him well,

(Then Sir William Jennings svas ficorn.)

Mr, J. Fones. What is that you know concern-
ing Mr, Colledge at Oxford, Sir?

Siw IV, Jennings. My Lord, the firlt Time
that I heard any Thing of Mr, Calledee was, there
was fome Company looking upon a Picture, for I
knew him not, nor never had any Word of dil-
courfe with him in my Life, any more than fee-
ing him in a publick Coffee-Houfe. But there
was a Picture looking on by 7, or 8, or 10 People,
I believe more or lefs, and I coming and crowd-
ing in my Head among the reft, looked upon this
Picture. After the Crowd was over, Mr, Colledge
takes a Picture out of his Pocket, and, faid he,
I will give you one of them it you will. So he
gives me a Picture 5 which Pi¢ture if 1 could fee,
I could tell what 1t was 5 it was written Mac a
Top, and there were feveral Figures in it,

(Then the Pifinre was fhewed him.)

This is one of the fame that I had of him, and
I had not had it long in my Cuftedy, but meet-
ing with Juftice Warcup, 1 thewed it him, who bid
me give it him, and fo I did. The next Thing
that T did fee Mr. Colledpe do, was in the Coffee-
Houfe, not the fame Day, but another Time, I
faw him bring n a Parcel of blue Ribband which
was wrought, and thefe Words eight Times
wrought in it, twice wrought in every Quarter
of a Yard, No Popery, NoSlavery. 1faw him fell
to a Member of Parliament, as I took him to be,
a Yard of that Ribband for 25, and truly I was
thinking he would afk me to buy fome too, and
I faw that Gentleman (I took him to be a Par-
liament-Man) take this Ribband and tie it upon
his Sword. As to the other Thing I have to {ay of
Mr. Colledge 5 that very Day the Parliament was
diffolved, hehad been in a Quarrel, as he told me,
with Mr. Fifz-gerald 5 and 1 was flanding in the

1 School-
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School-Houfe Yard, and h_c comes direftly to me
without my fpeaking to him or any thing ; but
he comes and tells me M. Fitz-gerald had {pit in
his Face ; and, faid he, Ifpitinhis Face again ;
i we wen. to Loggerheads together, I think
that was the Word, or Fifty-cufls, So, faid 1, M.
Colledge, your iNole bleeds ; he takes his Handker-
chief out of his Pocket and wipes his Nole, and
fid, I have loft the firft Blood in the Caufe, but
+ will not be long before more be loft.

L.C. ¥ Where was this ¢

Sir 1V, Fennings. In the School-Houfe Yard at
Ovon. 1 never difcourfed with him afterwards ull
I met him at Loidon in Fleet-Street one Suiday n
the Afternoon, and I remember Caprain Crefeett
was along with me.  And when he came up to
me, How now, faid I, honeft Joiner ? Says he,
You call me honeft Joiner, fome call me Rogue
.nd Rafcal, and | have been beating fome of
them 3 fo that T believe they will be aware of it
So [ told Captain Creftest, T never met this Man
but he was always in a Quarrel,

Coll,  Was it on a Szaday-that 1 told you [ had
been beating fomebody ¢

Sir Ji/, Fenyings, Youtold me fo, Capt, Crefeelt
was by.

.l 1 do remember I met you, but I did not
tell you ! had then been beating any one.  Bu
pray, Sir [7illiziz, when I met you after the Par-
liament was diffolved, and Fitz-gerald and | had
quarrelied, did 1 fay, That I had loft the firft
Blood in the Caufe, but it would not be long e’er
more were loft ? Sir #illiam, you are a Gentle-
man, as for the other Men, they don’c care what
they fay, nordo I fo much regard them 3 but you
value your Word and Honour : "Thefe were my
Words, and pray will you recolle¢t yourlell be-
fore you be pofitive in the Thing, whether I did
not fay, 1 have loft the firft Blood for the Par-
Jiament, (for it was upon my viadicating of the
Commons and Dr. Qales, whom Fitz-gerald had
abufed, and upon that the Quarrel began 5 fo I
faid swhen you met me, and told me my Nole
bled, 7 bave lof the firft Blocd for the Parliament)
I wifh it may be the lafl.

Siv Will, Fennings. Mr. Colledge, if you pleafe
I will anfwer you as to that ; I do aflure you ’eis
the firt Time that ever I came upon this Occafion
in my Days, and I have declared it before, and
do declare it now, I would rather have ferved
the King in three Engagements, than come in
againft you or any Man upon fuch an Occafion,
But I declare to you upon the whole Memory of
the Truth, the Words were as 1 {poke them at
fift, and no Parliament named or menuoned.
And, my Lord, moreover, I will tell you, when
I did tell this Story, becaufe that Mr, Crefeett is
able to tell you whether I did not relate the
Words within half an Hour, or a litle Time after.
Now I never had a Prejudice againlt you in my
Days, nor other Concern ; but having told Mr.
Juttice ZWarcup this Story, I am brought hither to
teltify 1.

Celledge. Siv William, 1 am very forry you did
rot obferve and remember my Words then.

Sir Will. Fennings. 1 mult needs fay, 1 could
not imagine what the Words meant when they
were {poken, nor do I underltand them to this
Duy 5 but foon after they were {poken, I related
them to Juftice Warcup, he being a Joftice of
Peace.
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Mr. Serj. Holloway. Gentlemen, we fhall reft
here, and conclude our Evidence for the King
at prefent, to hear “what the Prifonet fays to it ;
only with my Lord’s Leave, 1 fhall explain the
Words to you that are in the Indi€tment, and
tell you what is meant by compafling and ima-
oining the Death of the King, The feizing the
Perfon of the King is in Law a compaffing and
intending his Death ; and fo it hath been ad-
judged in feveral Cafes, as in 1 facobi, my Lord
Cobbam, and my Lord Grey’s Cale, and feveral
other Cafes ; and fo you may fully apprehend
what the Charge 15, and may underftand the
Words in the Indi¢tment, That if you are not
fatisfied with the general Words of compafling
the King’s Death, you may know, that the feiz-
ing his Perfon extends to 1.

Mr. Serj. Feff. My Lord, we have done with
our Evidence, now let him go on with his.

L. C. ¥. Now, Mr. Colledze, you may fay what
you will for your Defence, and call your Wit-
neffes that you have to produce.

Cofledge. My Lord, 1 have heard the Evidence
that is againft me, and [ would defire your Lord-
fhip to refolve me fome Queftions upon it. 1
think the Indi€tment is for treafonable Praétices,
for a Con{piracy ; now I defire your Lordfhip will
be plealed that I may know from ycu and the
Court, whether in all this lividence given in Proof
againlt me, a Confpiracy is proved ; or if any
Thing appears befides what they fay I faid.

L. C. 7. Fora Confpiracy in you, 1f the Wit-
nefles fpeak Truth, there is a plin Proof, and
of the Degrees of it: Firft of all, by your publifh-
ing Libels, and Piétures ro make the King odious
and contemptible in the Eyes of the People, and
that you fhould be the Author of {ome of thole
Pi€tures, and they were found in your Cultody.

Colf. 1 conceive that is not proved.

L.C. 7. If the Witnefles fay true, it is proved.

Coll.  They do not produce that, they do but
fay it.

L.C.F. Mr. Dugdale fwears, That at Oxford
here, you fhewed him the Piture, you fung
the Song here, and expounded it at my Lord
Lovelace’s, and a great many of them are found in
your Cuftody. Then that you prepared Arme,
that you fhewed Smith the Arms of your Houlfe,
and having thofe Arms, you faid, you would go
to Oxford, and if there fhould be a Dilturbance
there, you would fecure the King. And you did
come to Oxford, where you hear what 1s faid 5
for 1 obferve Stephen Dugdale and Edward Turber-
vile fpeak of what was done at Oxford.  fobu Suth
and Bryan Haynes {peak of what you faid at Londor
before you went to Oxford, and after you came
from Oxford. Now I fay, if thefe Witnefles {peak
true, ‘us a ftrong Evidence againt you, both
upon the Statute of the 2 5th of Edw. the I1ld, and
that of this King too, Ior my Brother Holloway
told you true, That whereas the imagining the
Death of the King is Fligh-Treafon, by the 25th
of Edw. the I1ld, fo a feizing of the King, and
endeavour to do that, is a conftruétive Intention
of the Death of the King ; for Kings are never
Prifoners, but in order to their Death, And
therefore it hath been held in all Times, that by
the Statute of Edw. the I11d that was Treafon ; but
then the Statute of this King, in the 13th Year
of his Reign, is-more ftrong ; for there it {ays,
If any Man fhall by any Words, or malicious

. {peaking
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{peaking fhew the Imagination of his Heart,
that he hath any fuch Intention, that is Treafon
1CO.

Coll, My Lord, the Foundation of this Indiét-
ment is f2id to be laid here in Oxford, as I fup-
pofes pray, my Lord, here 1s only Mr, Dupdale
and Turbervile that {wear againft me for what I
fhould fay in Oxen, all the reft fpeak to Things
faid and donc at London. Now, my Lord, I de-
fire to know whether they have proved any Trea.
fonable Practices, Confpiracy or Defign in me
againft the Government, I would fain know that,
whether there be Matter here to ground an Indiét-
ment upon ; for the one fays in one Place, the other
in the other, which may be diftinct Matters, and
none of them fwear Falts againft me, but only
Words,

Mr. Juft. Fones. Yes, providing Arms for your
felf, and offering others Arms.

Coll. ThatT fhall make this Anfwer to, T had
only a Cafe of Piftols and a Sword, which every
Footman and Horfeman had, that came from
London, Tthink, Butfurther, my Lord, Iwould
afk your Lordfhip, whether there ought not to be
two Witneffes diftinét, to {wear Words at one and
the fame Time.

Mr. Juft. Fones. No, no, the Refolution of
the Judges in my Lord Stafford’s Cafe is quite
contrary.

L.C.¥. Look you, it hath been often refolved,
That if chere be one Witnefs that proves one Fact
which is an Evidence of Treafon ; and another
proves another Fa&t, which is an Evidence of the
fame Trealon, though they be but fingle Witneffes
to feveral Falts, yct they are two Witneffes to an
Inditment of Treafon, that hath been often pub-
lickly refolved, particularly in the Cafe of my
Lord Stafford, mentioned by my Brother. And
I'll tell you my Opinion further, If there be one
Witnels that proves here what you faid at Oxfard,
and another that proves what was faid in Losdon,
if they be in order to the fame Treafon, it is
fufficient ; for if you do confpire to commit fuch
a Treafon in Londen, and you come with fuch
an Imagination in your Heart to Oxford to com-
plete this Treafon, though your Defign was not
firlt formed here, I think *us enough to main-
tain an Indictment of Treafon, and they are two
good Witnefles, though but one fpeak to what
was done at Oxferd ; but I muft tell you, in
your Cafe, there are two full Witnefles, to that
which was done at Oxford, befides Sir William
Fennings,

Coll. That which Sir William Feunings fpeaks
of I told you before what it was I faid, If was
the firft Blood that was fbed for the Parliament.

Mr. Juft. Fones., The Parliament was diflolved
before that which Sir illiam Fennings fpeaks of,
therefore you could not fay it was to defend the

Parliament.
Coll. Mr. Dugdale did fay that 1 fpake fuch and

{uch Words m the Barber’s Shop in the Angel-Tin
there I was indeed at the Time that he does {peak
of, and the Barber was by, I do think indeed
it were convenient to have him here ; but I know
not where he would charge me, or what it was
he would charge me with, becaufe I never faid any
thing in my Life that was like Treafon,

L.C.F. Mr. Colledge, call what Witnefs you will,

Coll. Bur, my Lord, pray let me afk you one
Queftion more ; You take thefe Words difting
from any Matter of Fa&, don't you?
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L. C. J. No, complicated with the Fa&, which
was the Overt-Ad, the coming to Oxon, with
Piftols to make one, if there had been anv Diftyr.
bance, and to feize the King,

Coll. Then, my Lord, I would afk you, Whe.
ther any A& of Trealon done at London, thall be
given in Evidence to prove the Treafon for which
Iam now indifted, and which was given in Evi.
dence before the Grand Jury, upon which the
Trial was grounded.

L.C. 7. Any A& of Treafon that is of the
fame kind. And Pll tell you, That was refolved
in Sir Henry Vane's Cafe 5 thofe that gave you that
Paper underftand it. But I fpeak now to your
Capacity, and to fatisfy your Queftion., He wags
indicted for levying War againft the King, he
conipired in Weftminfler, the War was levied in
another County ; the Confpiracy upon the Trial
was proved in the County of Middlefex, and the
War 1n another Place, and yet it was held fuffi-
cient to maintain the Inditment in the County of
Middlefex.

Coll. There was a War really levied ; but God
be thanked, here are only bare Words,

Mr. Jult, Fones. Yes, Actions too,

Coll. What Aétions, my Lord?

Mr. Jult, fones. Arming yourfelf, and coming
to Oxford.

L.C. 7. Well, ['have told you my Opinion;
my Brothers will fpeak theirs, if they think o-
therwile.

Mr, Juftice Fones, That is not your Cafe nei-
ther, though I am of the fame Opinion with
my Lord ; for here are two Witnefles have prov-
ed plain Matter of Fact at Oxford ; the provid-
ing Arms yourfelf, and encouraging others to take
Arms———

Coll. They name no Perfons.

Mr. Jult, Fones. You will have my Opinion,
and yet you will give me no leave to fpeak; I had
Patience to hear you: You are told there are two
Wineffes, Turbervileand Dugdale, that prove your
providing and having of Arms at Oxon, and per-
luading others to take Arms, particularly Turber-
vile. He told you, he had no Arms, orbuta Cafe
of Piftols, and he had no Horfe; but you told
him you would provide him an Horfe, And then
there are two other Witnefles, Smith and Bryax
Haynes ; they do not tell you of any thing done
at Oxford, but they tell you what you faid in their
Hearing of what you had done in Oxon, and fo I
think, if the Witnefles are to be believed, there is
a very full Proof again{t you.

Mr. Jult. Raymond. [ am of the fame Opinion
truly, and I cannot find, but that there is Proof
enough by two Witnefles, Turbervile and Dugdale,
of what was done at Oxford. They {wear Matter
of Fact, not Words only, but Actions alfo,

Coll. No Faé, but that I had Piftols and a
Sword, and that I fhould tell Mr, Turbervile I
would provide him an Horfe, which is ftill but
Words,

Mr, Juft. Fores. But you fhall hear anon for
the full ConviClion of you and all others, the
Statute of the 13th of this King read to you,
and you fhall there fee that fuch Words are made
Treafon, .

Colf, But I befeech your Lordthip to tell me,
whether there muft not be two Witnefles to the

fame Words at the fime Time,

Mr. Juft, Fones. No, it was the Refolution of all
the Judges in the Cale of my Liord Stafford in the
2 Prefence
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Prefence of the Parliament, and the Parliament
proceeded upon I,

Mr. Serj. Fefferies. In the fame Trial where
Mr. Colledge was a Witnefs,

Mr. Att. Gen. All the whole Houfe of Com-
mons prayed Judgment upon my Lord Stafford,
purfuant to that Refolution,

L.C. 7. Come, will you call any Witneffes ?

Coll, My Lord, Ido not queftion but to prove
this one of the hellitheft Confpiracies that ever
was upon the Face of the Earth, and thefe the
moft notorious wicked Men, an abfolute Defign
to deftroy all the Proteftants of England, thac
have had the Courage to oppofe the Popifh Plot,
In which no Man of my Condition hath done
more than [ have dene. I was bred a Proteftane,
and continued {o hitherto, and by the Grace of
God I will die fo, If thac they had known of
thefe Words thar I fhould fpeak, and fuch a De-
fign that I thould have before the Parliament fat
at Oxon, and be with me in Oxoz when the Par-
liament fat, if they had been good Subjeéts, they
ought to have had me apprehended. Turbervile
came {everal times indeed, and dined with me.
I did not bid him g0 out of Doors, nor invited
him thither; he was 2 Man I had no Difrefpect
fory nay, he was a Man I valued, thinking he
had done the Nation Service againit the Papifts,
that this Man thould hear me fpeak fuch Words
agunft his Majelty, who was then in this Town,
and know of a dangerous Defign to attempt
the feizing his Perfon, or that I fhould difcover
a great Party that were ready to do it, I think
there is {carce any Man of Reafon, but will fay,
if this were really done and fpoken by me, nei-
ther of them would or ought to have concealed
it, butdifcover it 5 none of them has ever charged
me with any {uch thing, they have been in my
Company fince, I never had any Correfpon-
dence with any of them but Dugdale ; then pray
conficer how nmprobable it is, that I fhould ralk
of {uch things to Papifts, Priefts, and Irifhmen,
who have broke their Faith with their own Party,
that IFaith which they gave under the Penalty of
Dumnation 3 Men that have been concerned in
Plots and Treafons, to murder and cut the
Throats of Proteftants, that I fhould be fuch a
Madman to cruft thefe People, when [ could re-
cetve no manner of Obligation from them, nor
couid give any Trult o them, they having before
broke their Faith; efpecially confidering I could
lay no fuch Oaths and Obligations upon them,
who was a Proteftant; then ’ts the greateft
Nonfenfe, to believe that I would fay thele
things, before Perfons whom I could never hope
would conceal my Treafons, having difcovered
their own, I they fpeak Trath concerning the
general Popith Plot, that could be no Obliga-
tion upon me to truft them wich another; and they
cinnot fay, that they ever obliged me in any
refpeét. My Lord, Ithank God, 1 have had fome
Acquaintance in the World, and have been con-
cerned with fome Perfons of Honour, Noblemen,
and Parliamentmen, that T know are as 200
SubjeCts as any his Majefty has; thefe never
found me a Fool, nor a Rafcal, fo greara Knave
as to bave any fuch Thoughts in my Heart, nor
fo great 2 Madman, or {o foolifh, astogotodifco-
ver them to Papifts, Priclts and frifbmen, to Men
of their Condition, that were ready to ftarve for
Bread. As for Ilaynes and Smith that run fo faft
through all their Evidence, the firft time that ever
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I fet my Eyes on Hayes, was in the Coffee- Houfe
that he fpeaks of 5 Macnamarra comes i, and
deflires me to go out with him, and I thould hear
the greateft Difcovery of a piece of Villainy a-
gainft my Lord Shaflefbury’s Life, that ever I
heard n my Life, “This Captain Browsn, who 15
now dead, a Man that I had known but a Month
before (for I think it was in March laft when
this was) could teftify for me; for I came to
him, Captain, faid I, here is a Difcovery offered
to be made to me, of a Delign to take away my
Lord Shaftefoury's Life. Macnamarra alks me to
go to the Hercules- Pillars, 1 went along with him,
and took Caprain Brown with us.  Afierwards he
fell fick in April, and is now dead, fo I oft a
main Evidence in the cafe. He was the only
Man that was by at the Time ; God knows my
Heart, I fpeak nothing but the Truth, I took
him with me ; Haynes began to difcover to us,
that Fitz-gerald had employed him to fetch over
Macuamarra, and if he would come in, and fwear
againft my Lord of Sbaftefbury, which was his
Delign, it would not be long e’re his Head were
taken off, and he faid, he had given in a Paper
of High-Trealon againft my Lord of Shaftefbury, 1
afked what ic was? He toldme, that my Lord fhould
tell Fitz-gerald, that he had a Defign to bring this
Kingdom to a Commonwealth, and to root out
the Family of the Stwarts.  This he faid Fitzgerald
had given in in a Paper, under his own Hand ;
and I chink he faid, he had fworn it, and fent
Hayues to fetch Macnamarra to fwear againft my
Lord the fame things too. I writ down all the
Heads of the Difcourfe, which Capt. Brows heard
as well as I.  After he had faid it, he defired us to
conceal it, Sir, faid I, You are a Stranger to
me, and thefe are great and ftrange things that
you do tell uss Macnamarra, and Brown, and
Ivy, and others were there, which (if they were
honeft Men) they would come and teftify, [
thought themy honeft Men, and that they had
none of thofe wicked Defigns in their Hearts,
that now I find they have, So, fays Hayies, 1do
it0f kot this Man, meaning me : Macramarra told
him, Twas an boneft Man, be might lay bis Life i
my Hands. Afier he had fpoken all this, he de-
fired us to conceal it : Said he, T will not only difco-
ver this, but a great deal more of their Rogueries, that
1 know wery well, Said1to him again, Jwill 5ot con-
ceal it, #0r do you nowrong; for if this be true, my
Lord Shaftetbury fhall kiow it to Night 5 for where
there is a Defign to take away a Peer of the Realm, I
will not conceal it but if 1t be falfe, and you have
jaic more thaircomes toyour fhare, recait it agaii, gird
we will take no notice of ity only fay you are a Knavefor
Jpeaking of it 5 he fwore, Damu bim, it was all tine,
that, and a great deal inore, which be faid be kuews,
about feizing and defiroying the Parliament at Oxon,
about an Army in the North that was to be raifed
about the Time of the Sitting of the Parliamert at
Oxon, of @ French Army that <was to land in Ireland
ab the fame Time, that the Duke of York cvas to be ar
the Head of them, ard the Tutention was to defiroy all
the Proteftants. Upon this, I wasrefolved, if I hived,
to come along with the Parlament, and if there
was any fuch Defign, 1 was relolved to live 'and
die with them s but I had no more than -com.
mon Arms, 2 Sword and a Cale of Piltols; my
Cap was a Velver-Cap, and nothing elfe. My
Lord, 1 had the Honour to be fent tor, when the
Parliament fat laft ac Wefliminfler, the Sefions in
Oclober, it was an honourable Occafion, and I

thank

A



368

thank thofe worthy Gentlemen that {ent to me, for
the Honour of 1t3 there I begun to be popular
as to my Name; for from that Time they begun
to call me the Proteffant Foiner, becaufe the
Parliament had entrofted me. My Lord Grey
was pleafed to fend his Footman for me to the
Crown-Tavern behind the Exchange, where there
were feveral worthy Lords, Peers of the Realm,
and one hundred of the Commons, that had
dined there that Day, 1t was the Day before they
fat, after they had dined I came to them, and
the Duke of Adonmonth told me, They had heard
a good Report of me, that I was an honeft Man,
that underftood Building, and they did confide
n me to fearch under the Parliament-Houle
they did not really know of any Defign, but they
would not be fecure, there might be fome Tricks
play’d them by the Papifls; though we are not
afraid of them, faid the Duke, yet we think ficto
employ youto fearch under the Houfes, and there-
abouts, whether you can find any fuch Practices,
So accordingly, my Lord, 1 did go; my Lord
Lovelace was one of the Honourable Lords and
my Lord Herbert that went with me, and {ome
of the Gentlemen of the Houfe of Commons;
and thofe worthy Proteftant Lords were plealed
to thank me for my Service, and did believe I
was active and zealous to find out and dilcover
the Bottom of the Popifh Plot, {o far as it came
legally in my Way to do it. My Lord, upon this
Occalion there was a great Kindnefs from them
to me, and I had upon all Occafions Teftimonies
of it 3 and this very Man who {wears Treafons a-
gainft me (which God Almighty knows isall falle)
did fwvear in his Affidavit before Sir George Treby
the Recorder of London (1 did never fee the Affi-
davit, indeed I was over night at Sir Gesige Treby’s,
but he was not then at leifure, but he drew it up
next Day, and fwore it) that there was a Delign
to deftroy the Parliament at Oxon, and there was
not only his Oath for ir, bur it was the general
Belief, that fome Iivil was intended them. All
Men had Caufe to fear and to fufpeét, the Papifts
did bear them no Good-Will; and making ufe
of their own Oblervations, they were generally
armed with a Piftol, or a Sword, for themlelves,
in cafe they fhould be attacked by the Papifts. In
order to this, I did come down with my Lord
Howard, my Lord of Clare, my Lovrd of Huating-
ton, and my Lord Pagett, thole four worthy Yro-
teftant Lords, and 1t was two Days after the Par-
llament was fat, that we came, and I went out
of Town againwith my Lord Lovelace, Sir Thomas
Player, and S Robert Clayton 3 and I am fure
they were In fo great a Fear that Leudonr {hould
be furprized and feized on by the Papifls, buc
there was no mortal Man that ever heard of the
King’s betng {leized, or thought of i, ull thele
Men come and tell me, that I had fuch a Deflign,
and came hither with that Purpole 5 but, my Lord,
I declare, as God 15 my Judge, I would not have
it thought I fpeak it to fave my Life, were it
as certainly a Truth, as’tis moft wickedly a Falf-
hood, that I had a Defign to feize the king, [
know not of one Man upon the Face of the
Tarth, that was to ftand by mie, Parllamentman
or other Perfon whatfoever 3 and how 1s 1t pof
fible for mie to attempt that, being a fingle Per-
fon, with only a Sword and a Cafe of Piftols, et
any Man judee,  And I do declare, T know of no
Confpiracy or Defign againt the King or Govern-

il
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ment, I never fpoke one of the trezfonable Words
in my Life, that is laid againft me, nor had eyep
any Thoughts of any fuch thing, God, that is my
eternal Judge, knows, that what I {peak is true;

L. C. 7. Well, Mr. Colledge, will you call
your Witnefles, for I muft tell the Jury ‘as I did
at your Requelt concerning Mr. Attorney, thag
as nothing he faid, fo nothing you fay is to be
believed upon your Allegation s for then no Man
would ever be guilty, if his own Purgation by
Words were to be believed.

Coll. My Lord, I thank Ged, T know my
own Innocency, and hope to prove it. I have
a Soul that muft live to Eternity, either in Joy
or Mifery; 1 alt according to thofe Principles,
and 1 hope I have fome Affurance of my own
Salvation when I die, I would not call God to
witnels a Lie, to fave a thoufand Lives. My
Lord, this is a villainots Confpiracy againt me,
and if 1t kes place agvinft me, it may go a
great way, God knows how far: This is the
17th or 18th Sham-Plot the Papifts have made a-
gainlt the Proteftants, to get over their own
but I hope, my Lord, God-Almighty will never
fuifer 1t If they can make me a Traitor, they
will try it upon others, and fo hope to tham of
their own Treafons 5 bur I fay, I hope God Al
mighty will never {uffer it, My Lord, I think
the fArlt Witnefs that fwore againft me was Mr.
Dugdale 5 and I muft call my Witneffes as I have
them herey I know no Perfon of them hardly,
and this that is done for my Defence was done
abroad. My Lord, I have been kept clofe Pri-
{foner in the Tower, and none of them {uffered
to come to me, whilt the Popith Lords have
had the Liberty and Privilece to talk with their
Friends. Here are Witnefles, I hope, will prove
that thefe are fuborned Men 5 for AMacuamarre
did tell me prefently after the Parliament broke
up at Oxon, and whifpered it to me in the Coffee-
Houfe, faid he, there is a Defign laid to malke
us retract our luvidence, and go over to Fitzzerald.
Said I, T fuppofe they have been at that Sport 2
great while, Ay, faid he, they make large Offers.
Said 1, by whom ? Said he, Colonel #arcup hath
been at me, and tells me

Mr. J. fones. Maciamairra is not produced as a
Wirnefs ac all.

Collzdge, No, but he told me this, that there
was fuch a Defign, and, faid he, I will ger you
and {fome other honelt Men: and he defired me
o be by when he had fomething more to telt
which would do his Bufinefs for him, but the
next News I heard of him was, he was put into
Newgale.

L.C. % Gl your Witnefles, Mr. Colledz¢,
and prove what you can,

Cold. Call Mr, Hiclman.

My, A, Gen. My Lord, I defire he may ob-
ferve the fame Rule he defired about our Witne i3 .
that he may cali but one at a time,

Coll. Yes, yes, I will call them one by one.

L.CY. Are not your Witrefles together?
fend to them.

Coll. My Lord, T don’t know, I have not feen
one fince I come.  This is not the firft Time, my
Lord, the Papifts have defigned to take away my
Life, though it 15 the frlt Time they went abott
to take 1t away by Law,

L. C. 7. 1 know not one Papift that is a Wit-
nefs againit you.

Coll.
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Coll. ‘There is never a Man of them, éxcept

Sir J¥illiam Fennings, but what was a Papift,

Mpr. Att. Gen. What fay you to Mr, Maflers 2

Colledge. Mr. Mafiers fays nothing material, it
was only a jocofe Difcourfe,

Mr. Serj. Feff. It was very pleafant Difcourfe,
upon my Word ; you were as merry as when you
were finging of the Rary Shew,

Mr. J. Fones. What do you make Misth of
the blackelt Tragedy thac ever was ; that horrid
Rebellion, and the Murther of the late King ?

Coll. 1 never juftified that Parliament in any
fuch Thing that they did contrary to Law.

Mr. Juitice Fones. He fwears it.

Mr, Aut, Gen, Hackman does not appear, call
another,

Coll. Call William Shewin, (who appeared.)

L. C.7. Look you here Friend, you are not
to be fworn 3 but when you fpeak in a Court of
Juftice, you muft fpeak as in the Prefence of God,
and only fpeak what 1s true.

Cof!, 1 would not have any Body {peak any
Thing for me, but what is Truth.

L.C.¥. Now afk him what you wiil.

Coll, 1 don’t know the Gentleman,  But pray,
Sir, will you tell what you know of thefe Wit
nefles 7

Mr, Shewin, Name any of them that 1 know,
pray, Sir, I’ll tell you.

Colledze. Do you know Bryan Haynes ¢

Mr, Shewin, 1 know there is fuch a Man, but
I have nothing to fay to him.

Colledze. Do you know Turbervile ?

Mr. Shewwin.  Yes.

Cilledge. Pray tell what you know of him,

Mr, Shewin, My Lord, 1 was in Turbervile’s
Company on Thurfday Night laft at the Golden
Pofts at Charing-Crofs, and there I heard him fay,
that if I were at Oxford 1 fhould hear ftrange
Things againt Cofledge, and he would lay ten to
one that Mr. Bethel and Mr, Wilmore Thould be
hanged at Chriftmas, and he would lead him by
the Gold Chain along Fleet-Street, and down with
his Brezches in the middle of the Coffee-Houle,
with a Band about his Neck and a Cloak.

Mr. Sery. 7eff.  Did he fay all thefe Things a-
gainft Mr, Sheriff Bethel ¢ 1 aflure you he is a
beld Man.

Coll. 'What do you know of Mr. Smith ¢

Mr, Shewin, I know him by Sight, but I have
nothing in particular to fay concerning him, I
have fomething to fay o Macnamarra, Sir, if he
were here.

Coll. Do you know any Thing of this Con-
{piracy in general ?

M. Juftice Fones. What of your Confpiracy ?

Mr, Shewin, 1 know they did lay who fhould
be hanged at Candlemas, who at Chrifimas, and
who at feveral other Times,

f L. C.F. What did you hear Mr. Turbervile
ay ?

Mr. Shewin. Thofe Words 1 fpake before a-
bout Sheniff Bethel, and about the Amflerdam Cof-
fee- Houfe,

Colledze. Did they fay what Time [ fhould be
hanged ? For the Difcourfe rofe abour me.

Mr, Shewin,  One told me that there was one
that did defign to be returned upon this Jury,
that was refolved to hang him right or wrong,

My, High Sberiff. My Lord, 1did hear there

was fuch a one, and I left him out of the Jury.
Vou. III.
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L.C.§¥. For Mr, Sheriff’s Honour, we muft
take Notice of what he hath faid, He fayshe
heard of a Man that fpoke {fomething of that Na-
ture, and therefore he left him out of the Jury.

Coli. Now ’tis poffible thefe Witnefles were
at the fame Sport.

Mr, Shewin, Was Mr.Pmr:'ac!e, Mrs, F2z- Har:;*fs’s

Maid’s Father, or fhe here, either of them Wit-
nefles againft you ? |

M. Serj. Feff. No, they were not, Sir.

Coll, They did fwear againft me at the find-
ing of the Bill. | .

Mr. Serj. Feff. We have only called thefe Wit-
nefles, 1f you can fay any Thing againft them, do,
Coll. Call Henry Hickman, (who appeared.)
Mr. Serj. Hollsway., Where do you live, Sir?

Mr. Hickman, At Holborn-Bridge,

Mr. Ait. Gen. What Trade are you ¢

Mr. Hickman, A Cabinet-maker.

L. C. ¥, What do you afk him?

Colledge, Do you know Haynes 2

Hickman, Yes, very well 3 becaufe he ufed
to come to my Houfe to a Popith Widew that
was @ Lodger in my Houfe where | live now ;
and this Perfon was a Prifoner at Haynes’s when
he was a Prifoner in the Feetr. 1 always had a
Sufpicion he was a Prieft, not that I could accufe
him really of any Thing, but he feveral Times
ufing to come to my Houfe, I thought fo of him,

and difcourfing with my Landlady.,

L.C. 7. Your Tenant you mean !
Mr, Hickman, Yes, my Tenant., I afked her,
what this Fellow was; faid fhe, he is a very

dangerous Fellow, though he 1s a Papift, and I
am one myfelf, yet he is a dangerous Perfon, and
he does not much care what he {wears agamft
any one.

Mr. Juft. Fones; This your Tenant told you,

what do you know yourlelf ? .

Mr. [ickman, Another Time he came to {peak
with my Tenant Mrs, Scof, who is now gone into

Ireland ; when he came to the Houfe, he afked
me, is Mrs. Scot within? Yes, faid I, Mr. Hayues,

fhe is above 3 and up he goes, and there they

locked the Door, and plucked out the Key 5 fol
flipt off my Shoes, for 1 thought there might be
more Danger from fuch People than I could dil-
cover any other Way.

So I went up Stairs, and
ftood at the Door, and hearkened, hearing my

Landlady talk fomething to him, he raps oura
areat Oath, God damu me, {a1d he, I care not what
I fwear, nor who 1 fwear agatnft 5 for ’tis my Trade
10 get Money by fwearing, Whereupon, my Lord,
I came down as faft as I could, and a little after

] faw him go out, and as foon as my Landiady

came down, faid I, Mrs. Seot; I defire you would

provide yourfelf as foon as you can ; I would be

civil to you, and I would not put you to 2 Non-
plus, becaufe your Goods by the. Law will be

feized for not departing according to the King’s
Proclamation. Soa while ago fince this Bufinefs of
Haynes's {fwearing againft my Lord of Shaftefoury,
I bethought myfelf of fome other Bufinefles I
had heard : To find out the Knavery I went to
the Fleez, where he hath a very ill Character
as well amongft the Papifts as the Proteftants.
Whereupon 1 afked one Fellow that was a Kind
of a Porter, if he knew any Thing of him ; faid
he, Go to fuch an one—

Mr. Serj.. eff. “We muft not permit this for
Example fake, to tell what others faid..
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L. C. . Nathing is Evidence, but what you
know of your own Knowledge ; you muft not tell
what others faid.

Hickman. 'This 1 do fay, 1 heard him fay
and there are thofe that can produce a Letter-—

Mr, Serj. Fefferies, Bring thofe People, but
you muft fpeak nothing, but upon your own Know-
ledge,

Efickmm}. I was at the Chamber-Door, and
looked in at the Key-Hole, and he fat down at
the Window.

L. C.¥. How long ago was it, pray?

Hickman, A Year and a half.

Mr, Ait. Gen. You are an Eves-dropper I per.
ceive,

Hickman. 1 did not know what Danger he might
bring Men into, becaufe he was a Papift. T have
taken an Oath to be true to the King, and 1 will
as long as I live. For this Gendeman, [ never
beheld him till kaft Night, i all my Days ; though
he hived by me, I never faw him,

L. C, 7. Well, call the next.

Coll, T never faw this Gentlernan ; but you fee
what Haynes hath declared.

Mr, Sery. Feff. This Man fays, he did fay fo.

Coll. And, for ought I perceive, he ‘does ac-
cordingly. Call Elrzabeth Olwer. {Who appeared.)

L.C.}. Mrs. Oliver, ftand up, What do you
atk her?

Colledge. Do you know Haynes, pray? Bryan
Haynes ¢

Mus. Oliver, Yes.

Colledge. Pray tell the Court what you know
of him.

Mrs. Oliver. 1 know him very well,

L. C. . What do you know of him ?

Mrs, Oliwer, He writ a Letter in my Father’s
Name, unknown to my Father.

L. C. 7. Did you fee him write it?

Mrs. Olwver. T faw him write it.

L.C.7. Readit. Bywhom is it fubfcribed?

Clerk. By no body.

L. C.7. Why, how is it written in your Fa-
ther’s Name, when it is not fubfcribed atall ?

Mrs, Oliver, He writ it as from my Father.

Mr. Sery. Feff. Whither did he bring it ?

Mrs, Oliver. He fent it into the Country.

M. Ser). Feff. Can you writeand read, Miftrefs?

Mrs, Ofiver.,  Yes.

M, Sery. Feff. Who did he fend it by ?

Murs, Oliver, The Carrier.

Mk, Ser). Feff. When is it dated ?

Clerk. In 77,

L. C.J. Read the Letter, (77bich was done. )

Clerk reads.

L. C. 7. What is all this to the Purpofe, unlefs
your Father were here to prove it was done with-
out his Knowledge ?

Mrs. Oliver. My Father did not write it.

L.C.F. Was your Father in the Fleet then?

Mrs, Oliver. Yes, my Lord, he was a Prifoner
then,

Coll. Mrs. Oliver, do you know any thing more
of him?

Mts. Oliver. 1 have known him a great while ;
I know him to be a very ill Man,

Mr, Serj. Feff. Mult fhetell you all fhe knows?

Mr. At Gen, Did you ever know him for{wear
himfelf? '

Mts. Oliver, No, I don’t know that.

L. C. ¥. Come, call another ; this is nothing
to the Purpofe.
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Col. Call Mrs. Hall. (Who appeared.) Pray, do
you know Mr. Bryan Haynes?

Mrs. Hall, Yes, if  fee him L know him very well,

Coll. What do you know of him ?

Mois. Hall. He lodged at my Houfe, and cage
there the Day before Fitz-Harris was tried, and
there was a great Difcourfe about his Trial, ang
I was enquiring of him 3 and Itold him, I muft
expofc my Ignorance, I did not know what 1t wasg
he was tried for: And, faid he, if you pleafe 1o
it dewn, I will tell you: Madam Portfmonth
came to him, and went upon her Knees, and beg-
ged of him, if he bad any Kindnefs for his Ma.
Jelty, that he would now thew it at this Tun@ure.
and fhe told him fhe heard he had farmerly Acquain-
tance with one Mr, Everard abroad, and therefore
defired him to gonow and renew it, and endeavour
to get m over; and, if he could poliibiy, to gt
over fome others 10 make a Prefbyterian Plot of
it.  This is true, 1 very well know it 3 as for this
Gentleman, I never faw his Face before 5 but thofe
were the Words, 1 am {ure.

L. C. 7. What were the Words ?

Mrs. Hall. That they might make a Prefbyterian
Plot of it.

Coll. Did he fay fo?

Mrs, Hall, He faid that the Duchefs of Pos1f-
mouth did lo.

L. C. . What a Story is this?

Coll, Did not he fay, that the Duchefs of Perf:
mouth had employed him too?

Mrs, Hall. No, this was about Firz. Harris.

Coll. What do you know more about Haynes 2

Mrs. Hall, One Night he had been about fome
Bufinels for me in Law with one Mr. Wsodeward,
an Attorney at Law, and when he returned 1 was
bufy in the Kitchen with my Maid abour the
Houfe, and he came upto me ; Madam, faid he,
this Night I had a Meffage from the King ; a
Juftice of Peace met me, one brought me Word,
that the King had fent into Ireland, to enquire
into the Loyalty of my Family, and he hath
heard, that my Father was a loyal Subje@, bur
he underftood ftrange Things of me; bucif [
would come in, he would grant me my Pardon,
I told him, faid he, Idid not value his Majefty’s
Pardon a Pin, for I had done nothing that migh:
make mie ftand in need of it ; but I would do any
thing that mighe tend to the Prefervation of his
Majelty’s Perfon or Honour ; but to do fuch bafe
Things as are beneath a Man, I will never do ir ;
and he whifpered me in the Far (as the accufing
of feveral Perfons) and fince he fent me a Letter
by his Mother-in-Law, Mrs. Wingfield, that |
fhould not believe it, if T heard he thould accule
any body ; but I might be confident he had not,
nor would accufe any body.

Coll. 'Was he to {wear againft the Pro-eftants ?

Mrs. Hall. 1 did not enquire any Queftions;
but he faid, fuch bafe Things he would never do
as the acculing feveral Perfons,

Mr. Ait. Gen. Pray, Miftrefs, did you believe
him when he told you he was fo honeft a Man?

Mrs. Hall. How do you mean, Sir?

Mr, Att. Gen. When he faid he would not do
thofe bafe things, did you believe him?

Mrs, Hall. 1 never faw his Face before he came
there to lodge; but Ifaw him to be a Man that
made but little Conftience of what he faid or
{wore,

Mr. dit, Gen. Did you find him a bragging
Man ?

Mrs.
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Mrs. Hall. 1 had little Difcouirfe; but what he Rich, Why, he {aid in his Anfwer to the Intel-
faid of himfelf. But there is one thing more a- ligence, he was one that had an Hand to put the

bout an Intelligence : When Thompfon had writ-
ten fomething in his Intelligence concerning Bryan
Haynes, he faid he would write an Anfwer to it 5
and accordingly he reads it to us: He faid; he
was going that Evening to get it put into one of
the Intelligences: The Words were to this Pur-
pofe: ¢ Whereas one Natbanie! Thompfon had
« falfly and malicioufly accufed one Bryan Haynes
¢ for fpeaking treafonable Words; he the faid
¢ Bryan Haynes doth declare, that he challenges
¢ any Man to charge him with it 5 but he owned
¢« he had an Hand, or was employed to put the
¢ Plot upon the diflenting Proteftants.’

L. C.7. Did he publifh that in the Intelligence ?

Mrs, Hall. I never read 1t publithed 3 but he
had writ it, and read it to vs {everal times.

Mr. A, Gen. Do you go to Church, Miftrefs?

Mrs. Hall. 1 hope I do.

Sir Geo. Feff. Vo what Church?

Colf, Call Mary Richards, Mrs, Hall’s Maid.
( Who ftood up.) -

L. C. #. What will you afk her?

Coll. Do you know this Bryan Haynes, pray?

Richards, Yes, he lodged there where I lived,

Coll. What do you know of him?

Rickards, I know he writ that in the Intelligence
niy Miftrefs {poke of; Thempfon, in his Intelh-
gence, accufing him of having fpoken Treafon,
he reads what he faid he would put into the In-
telligence, That he never fpake one Word of
Treafon, and he wric it for his own Vindication 3
that whereas Nathaniel Thompfon, in his Intelli-
cence of the 18th of Fune, had malicioufly ac-
cufed one Bryan Hayies of treafonable Words ;
there was no fuch thing.

L. C. 7. And that was to vindicate him, that
he never did {peak any treafonable Words.

Richards. Yes.

L.C. ¥. Wil you afk her any thing clfe ?

Coll. 1 cannot tell what fhe fays,

L. C.7. She fays, he writ fomething that was
in Arnfwer to Thomfoi’s Intelligence, to vindicate
himfelf that he never did fpeak any treafonable
Words.

Coff. But did you hear him fay any thing of
thefe Words, that he was employed in a Plot a-
gainft the Proteftants?

Richards. 1 read that, in what he writ to put
in the Intelligence, that he challenged any one to
appear, and charge him with Treafon ; but, faid
he, I own that I wasemployed, or had a Hand in
putting the Plot upon the diffenting Proteftants ;
and he telling my Miftrefs he had a Meffage from
the King, offering him his Pardon, I afked him
why he did not accept the King’s Pardon, Alas!
faid he, you do not underftand what I was to do
fority I wasto do fuch bafe Things, fo beneatha
Man, that I will never do them: I had five hun-
dred Pounds offered me, befides the King’s Pardon,
todo fuch bafe Things asare beneath a Man to do.

Coll, What were the bafe Things he faid he
was to do, and would not do?

Ricbards, 1 cannot tell, he did not {ay to me
what they were,

Mr. Ant, Gen. When was this ¢

Richards. It was a Week before he was taken,

M. Ait. Gep.  That 1s two Months ago.

Coll. It was fince the Parliament fat at Oxford :
fButhhat was that he was employed to do, did he

ay §
Vor, 1L

Plot upon the diffenting Proteftants.

Coll. Call Mrs, Wingfield. (Who appeared.)

L.C. 7. What is your Chriftian Name ?

Mrs, Wingfield, Mary,

L. C.7. What do you afk her?

" Coll. Do you know this Bryan Haynes, pray ?

Mrs. Wingfeld, Yes, very well,

Coll, What do you know of him?

Mrs. Wingfield, 1 know nothing of him, buf he
isan honeft Man ; he married my Daughter, and
always carried himfelf Iike a Gentleman ; he {corns
the thing that is unhandfom, and never did any
thing thar is unhandfom in his Lite,

Mr. Serj. 7eff. Pray how came you by this
Witnefs? Have you any more of them ?

Coll. T never faw her before, bur I believe the
hath faid fomething elfe in another Place, Did
you ever fay the contrary, pray?

Mrs, #ing, No body can fay fo; and I had
]done the Gentleman a great deal of Wrong, if J
1d.

Coll, Call Mr, Whaley. (Who appeared. )

L. C. 7. What is your Name, Sir?

M, Whaley,  Folan Whaley.

Colledge. Did you know Bryan Haynes?

Mr. Att. Gen. Where do you dwell, Sir?

Mr. Whaley, Atthe Hermitage, beyondthe Tower,

Colledge,  1dnon’t know you, Sir; but what do
you know of him ?

Mr. Whaley, 1 never faw you, Sir, *ill to Day
but that which I think I am called for is this, though
it was upon Sunday that 1 received this fame Sub-
pena to come down hither; but about fix Years
ago, Bryan Haynes was a Prifoner in the King’s
Bench, and he came down to the Cellar which I
had taken of the Marfhal to fell Drink in 3 and
coming down to drink in one of the Rooms of
the Cellar that belong to me, he took away a
Tankard, and went up with it.  One of the Men
followed him up; fo I went to the Marfhal to
complain, and told him of it; and the Marfhal
took him from the Mafter’s Side, and put him
into the Common Side, That 1s alt I know of
him any way, diretly or indireltly,

L. C. ¥. Why did you not indit him of it?

Mr. Whaley, 1 acquainted the next Juftice of
the Peace, who was the Marfhal; and he put him
from the Mafter’s Side, into the Common Side.

L.C.¥. He was nogood Jultice of the Peace
in the mean time,

Colledge, Call Mr, Fobn Lun. (Who appeared.)
Do you know Bryan Haynes, Mr, Lun?

Mr, Lyn. ] have feen him twice; che firlt time
1 ever faw him was, I went into the Derby-Ale-
Houfe, to enquire for one Micklethwayte, a Kinf-
man of mine, and there this Bryan Haynes was, in
a little Room next the Ditch, near the Door that
goes out there, as if he were afleep, and he
roufed himfelf up; and, as I was walking there,
Sir, faid he, will you take part of a Tankard with
me (that was his Expreflion,) With that, faid I,
I do not care if Ido. And the firft Thing he began
was the King’s Health, then the Queen’s, then
the Duke of Zork’s 5 then he fell very foul againft
the Grand Jury, becaufe they had not found the
Bill againft Colledze, who is a Gentleman that I
never faw before in my Life but once, as ] know
of : And he faid, my Lord Shaftefbury was a little
Toad, but he would do his Bufinefs very fudden-
ly. Then he railed upon the Parliament, and faid

Bbb2 they
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~ they were a Compady of Rogues; they would
give the King rio Money, but he would help him
to Money enough out of the Fanaticks Eftates,
And he faid, they would ddinn thieir Souls to the
Devil before theit Catholick Caufe fhould fink,

Mr. Ser). Hollrway. When was this ¢
- Mr. Lui, It was three or four Days after the
Bill was brought in Jguoramus by the Grand Jury.

Mr. Juft, Yowes, Was he alone ¢

Mr. Lun,  Yes, he was,

Colledge. 1s that all you hdvé to fay ¢
~Mr, Lun. One Thing more; my Lord, On
Monday laft 1 was at Uxbridge, and a Gentleman
fent his Man on purpofe to let me know I muft
00 to Colchrock, and flay till they came thither.
\When I came there, 1 met Brjan Haywes at the
Crowon Kitchen-Window, and he was flifring a
Glafs of Brandy, and fweetning it with Sugar ;
faid he, Sir, will you drink ? Here is the King’s
Health to you : So I drank, and afked him how
he did. Do you know me; Sir, faid he. ¥es,
{3id I, I drank with you once. Says he, youhave
a good Memory. So then a Pint of Sack was
called for, and after that another, and then came
down Mrs, Peacock 5 and being very fine, all 1n
her flowered Sitks, T afked what Gentlewoman that
was? Sdid he, it 1s Mrs, Filz-Harris. No, fays
I, ’tis not 3 they fay fhe is gone. But, faid he,
it 18 her Maid 5 and Sheriff’ Bethel is to marry her:
As I have a Soul to fave, 1 tell you nothing but
what is Truth, Thereupon, faid 1, Sheriff Berbel
is able to inaintain her, he hath a good Eftate,
But, faid he, it fhall be the King’s e’re long,

Cofl.  So that here is a plain Defign againft all
the Proteftants.

Mr. Lun, So with that, my Lord, if it pleafe
your Honour, 1 clapped my Groat down at the
Bar, and went out of the Réom. Nay, faid he,
let us have one Health more: And fo he had his
Tankard, and I had mine,

Hayires, 1 humbly defire you to call for M.
hite, the King’s Meffenger, who was by. T ne-
ver [aly the Man before he was at Uxbridee 5 and
afking Mr, Z/bite whohe was 2 Said he, his Name
15 Lua, he was my Prifuaer two Years,

L. C. 7 What fay you to the Difcourfe he
talks of at Fleet-Bridge ¢

Haynes, My Lord, 1 am upon my Oath, and
I never faw him m my Lifc before I faw him at
Uxbridge.

Mr. Lan. I will take my Sacrament upon it,
that what I have averred is true.

Mr, Serj. Feff. 1 fuppofe you are both known,
and then your Credit will be left to the Jury,

Mr., Att. Gen, There 1s Mr. White 5 pray fwear
him.  (Which was done.)

L.C. J. Do you remember that Haynes afked
who Mr, Li# was?

Mr. White. It was at the Barof the Crowa-Inn
at Uxbridge 5 and I being there, Mr. Lu# came in-
to the Yard, and I knowing Mr, Lun, afked him
how he did 5 he faid he was glad to fee me, and
he called for a Pint of Sack to make me drink,
Haynes ftood by, and he afked who he was, and I
told him 3 and we drank the King’s Health 5 but
fot any thing of thofe Words that were fpoken
there, Sir, I did not hear one Word of them ; but
he thanked me for my Civility when I fummoned
him up to the Court; and {fecing Mr, Haynes by,
he afked who he was ¢ 1

Mr, Sery. Feff. And youtakeitupon your Oath,
that he afked who Haywes was ?

4
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Mr. White, Yes, 1do.

Mr. Serj. Feff. Pray, did you hear any difcourfe
that Time as if there had been a Meeting upon
Flect-Bridge 2

Mr, White. Not one Word of that ?

Mr, Lun. 1 will take the Sacrament upon it
what I fay is true.

Mr. Surp. Feff. We know you, Mr. Lun 3 we
only afk Queftions abaut you, that the Jury may
Know you too, as well as we, We remember
what once you fwore about an Army.

Colledge, 1 don’t know him.

Mr, Lun. I don’t come here to give Evidence
of any Thing but the Truth ; I was never upon
my Knees before the Parliament for any Thing.

Mr. Serj. Feff. Nor I neither for much ; but
yet once you were, when you cried, Scatter them,
good Loid,

Mr. Colledge. Call Mr, Broadgate.

L. C.¥. What 1s your Chriftian Name, Sir 2

Mr, Broadgate, Feremiab.

L. C. 7. Whatdo you afk him?

Mr. Broadg. My Lord, Tam a Stranger to the
Prifoner at the Bar 3 what I have to fay is con-
cerning Mr. Turbervile, whom I met one Day, and
he afked me how Idid? Said he, Iowe you a lit-
tle Money, but I will pay youina fhort Time; bur
It you will go to drink a Glafs of Ale. No, faid
I, Tam in hafte, and do not care for going to
drink, Said he, you fhall go; fo away we went,
and when we were fat, faid he, When did you fee
Turbervile that was my Lord Powis’s Butler 5 faid
he, he was 1 great Rogue to me, and when I
ltood up for the Nation’s good, he vilified my
Evidence, and afterwards he came to me with
Doctor to beg my Pardon 3 but 1 would
not forgive him for the whole World. And fpeak-
ing of the King’s Evidence, faith he, the King’s
Evidence are looked upon as nothing, as poor in-
confiderable mean Fellows, and their Salaries are
leflened and, faid he, I have had the greatelt
proffers from Court of Preferment and Rewards,
if I would go from what 1 have {2id, and come
upon the contrary ; and he repeated it, yes, up-
on the Faith of a Man, and from the highedl :
But, faid he, I have a Scul and 2 Body ; a Body
for a Time, but my Soul for Eternity, and I can-
not go from it. . He went over ic again 3 I might
have what I would if I would go from what I
have faid, and come upon the contrary,

Mr. Ait, Gen, But he does not go from any
Thing of what hé hath faid,

Col’edge. Did he fay what he was offered, and
by whom ?

Mr. Broadg. He faid, he had very great Offers
from the Court if he would difown the Plot,
and 2o upon the contrary,

L. C. 7. But he does not difown it,

Mr, Juoft. Fones. Nay, he had a Soul to fave,
and could not go from ir.

Mr., Serj. Feff. Youtalk of the contrary, and
the contrary 5 What did he mean by that ¢ What
Plot fhould he difown?

Mr. Broadg. The popifh Plot,

L.C.J. He does not difown it, nor never did
difown it

Coll. He would make a Prefbyterian Plot of i
now, for he cannot fay I am in the Popith Plot.
Sir, do you know any thing more of him? Or
did he name me? Or that he was to fwear againft
me, or any Proteftant ?

Mr, -Bmd;g.
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Mr. Broadg. No, only he faid the King’s Evi-
dence were vilified, and looked upon as poor in-
confiderable Fellows 3 but it feemed, if he would
go on the other Side, he might have great Pre-
ferments and Rewards,

L.C. ¥. You make a wrong Comment upon it,
Mr. Colledge 5 it was if he would retract his Evi-
dence and difown the Plot.

Coll. 1leave it to your Lordfbip and the Jury,
to make the Senfe of It

Mr. Broadg, 1 faw Mr. Turbervile lince I came
hither, and he afked, Are you come Mr. Broad-
gate, to give Evidence againft me ¢ SaysI, I am
come to declare the Truth, and nothing but the
Truth, ,

Mr. Ser}, Feff. You might have ftaid ac home
for any Thing material that you do evidence.

Colledge.  Cull. Mr, Zeal. (Who appeared.)

L. C. ¥. What is your Chriftian Name, Sir ?

Mr, Zeal,  fobn.

L. C.F. What would you afk him ¢

Mr, Serj. Helloway, Where do you dwell, Sir?

Mr., Zeal,  In London, .

Mr. Serj. Feff. Whereabouts?

Mr, Zeal. In Fetter-Lane.

M. Serj. Holl. What Countryman are you, Sir ?

Mr. Zeal.  Somerfetfhire.

Mr. Attor, Gen. Whereabouts in Somerfethire
were you born ?

Mr. Zeal, By Sir William Portman’s, within fix
Miles of him,

Mr. Ser). Fefferies. What Trade, Sir ?

Mr, Zeal. No Trade.

Mr. Serj. Feff. Have you any Eftate ?

Mr. Zeal. My Father has, I was bred to wait
upon a Perfon of Quality.

Colledge, Do you know Turbervile, Sir?

Mr. Zeal, Yes Sir, I do.

Colledge, 'What do you know of him?

Mr. Zeal. Sir, 1 know nothing but what M,
fvy told me with his own Mouth,

L.C. . Do youknow any Thing of your own
Knowledge ?

My, Ats. Gen, Has Mr, Turbervile told you any
Thing ?

Mr. Zeal. Not concerning Mr, Cslledge he has
not.

Colledge. Ty was amongft them,

Mr. Zeal. Yes, my Lord, he was the firft that
fwore this Pre{byterian Plot,

L. C. ¥. We know of no Prefbyterian Plot,

Coll. Can you fay any thing of your own Know-
tedge concerning Turbervile ?

Mr. Zeal. Nothing but what Mr. Jvy told me,

Mr. Ser). Feff. That is not of your own Know-
ledge, and {o it is nothing, for he is not produced
in this Caufe,

(v!l.  Pray, my Lord, give me Leave to call
Mr., Iy,

Mr. Ser). Feff. Do if youwill, (He ftood up.,)

Coll. 'What was that you heard Turbervile fay
of me, or of any Prefbyterian Plot ?
~ Ivy. I never heard him fay any thing concern-
ing a Prefbyterian Plot in my Life,

Coll, Did not you tell Zeal of fuch a Thing ?

fyy. No, I never did.

Colledge. Hark you, Mr. Ivy, you have fworn
againft me, have you no ?

Jvy. Whatl have fworn againft you, or any
other Perfon, istrue,

Colledge. 'What have you {warn againft me?

fyy. I am not bound o anfwer you.

for High-Treafon, - ,-
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Colledge, Did not you call me out with Mac-
namarra and Haynes, to the Hercules Pillars ¢

L.C. J. Look yon, Mr. Colledge, 1 will tell you
fomething for Law, and to fer you right ; what-
foever Witnefles you, call, you call them as Wit-
nefles to teftify the Truth for you ; and if you afk
them any Queftions, you muft take what they have
faid as Truth : Therefore you muft not think to
afk him any Queftions, and afterward call ano-
ther Witnefs to difprove your own Witnefs,

Colledge, 1 atk him, was he the firft Time with
us, when ] was called out of the Coffee-Houfe 10
hear Haynes’s Difcovery ¢ |

L. C. ¥. Let him anfwer you if he wil] ; but
you muft not afterwards go to difprove him,

Coll. If he were {fworn againft me; I would not
afk him any Quetftions, for he is among them.

L. C. ¥. Afk him what you will.

Coll, 1 defire not if he have fworn againft me,
for truly I can’r expeét a good Anfwer from him ;
but he was by when Haynes made his Difcovery.

L.C. 7. Will you afk him any Queftions ?

Colledge. 1 afk whether he hath given any Evi-
dence againft me any where ?

Ivy. 1 am not bound to anfwer you.

L. C. 7. Tell him if you have.

Ivy. Yes, my Lord, I have,

Colledge, Then I think he is no good Witnefs
for me, when he hath fworn again(t nie,

Ivy. I have{worn agamft him and others, You
know that you and I have had a great many In-
trigues about this Bufinefs in Hand, and how we
dealt with Mr. Haynes.

L. C. 7. Look you, he does not call you for a
Witnels for him, you can teftify nothing, and
{o you muft be quier.

Colledge. Call Mr. Lewes.  (HWho appeared. )

L. C. ¥. What is your Chriftian Name ?

Mr, Lewes. William.

Colledge, Pray, Mr. Lewes, what do you know
about Turbervile

M. Lewes. 1 know nothing at all T affure you
of him that is ill,

Colledge. Do you know any Thing concerning;
any of the Evidence that hath been given here ¢

Mr, Lewes,  If T knew any Thing relating to
you, I would declare it; but I know fomething of
Mr. fvy; it has no relation to you, as I conceive,
but againit my Lord of Shaftefbury.

L. C.’}. Youwould call Jvy fora Witnefs, and
now you call one againft him 3 and that I told
you, you mult not do ; but Jvy is not atall in
this Cafe,

Colledge. Do you know any Thing of the reft
of them, Haynes, or Smith, or Dugdale ?

Mr. Lewes. No more than what Mr, Zea/ told
me, was told him,

Colledge. Do you know any Thing of a Pref-
byterian Plot ?

Mr. Lewes. 1t the Court pleafe to hear me, I
will tell my Knowledge of that 3 but I know no-
thing that affedts him in the leaft, only that
which concerns my Lord of Shaftefbury.

L, C. ¥, Thatis nothing to the Purpofe, call
another.

Mr. Lewes. There wasnot, to my Knowledge,
a Word mentioned of your Name : I will do you
all the Juftice I can ; if I knew any Thing con-
cerning you, I would be fure to refate it.

Colledge. I cannot fay who can, or who cannot ;
I am a Stranger to all of it.

L.C¥.



374

" L.C.¥. Well, call your next Witnefs.

Colledge. My Lord, there was a Petition pre-
{ented to the Common Council of London, wherein
they fet out, that they were tampered withal about
a Plot againft the Proteftants.

L.C.%¥. A Petition, from whom ?

Colledge. 1 cannot tell from whom ; from fome
of thefe Witnefies, |

L.C.¥. Who preferred and figned it?
Colledge. Mr. Turbervilz was one. Pray call
Doctor Oates.

L.C.%¥. The Pnfoner calls upon you, Mr.
Oates.  What would you afk him, Mr, Colledge ?

Coll, Where 1s the Petition to the Common
Council, Doctor®

Dr. Oaies, [ have it in my Hand.

L. C.f. By whom was it prefented ?

Dr. Oates, It was given by Mr. Turbervile and
Mr. Macnamarra, 1o Mr., Wilmore ?

L. C. . Was you prelent when it was de-
livered ?

Dr. Oates.  Mr. Wilmore did deliver it to me
before he was apprehended 3 for, being to come
down as a Wimels, he was taken up and com-
mited to Prilon.

L.C. 7. Whofe Hands are to 1t ?
Dr., Ouates, 1 know Mr, Turbervil’s Hand, he

will not difown 1t,
Clerk reads. 1t is {ublcribed Edward Turbervile,

Fobn Macnamarica.

L. C. 7. Look yon, Mr, Colledge, what Word
is there in all this Petivon that is a Contradiction
to what they have faid now ¢

Colledpe. 1 did pot hear it, my Lord.

L. C.f. They fay, they are conftant Witnefles
for the King again(t the Papifts 3 and they have
been tempted to unfay what they have faid:
Flow does that contradi¢t what they fay now ?

Coll, 1 fuppofe they fay they have been tempt-
ed to turn the Plot upon other People, and to
mase a Plot upon the Proteftants.

L.C.F. They have been tempted, they fay,
by the Papilts, to unfay what they have faid ;
‘but the Jury heard 1t read, and will give it
its due Weight. Will you afk Mr. Oates any Quef-
- tions ¢

Col!.  What do you know of Mr. Turbervile ?

Dr, Qates. As to Turbervile, my Lord, a lule
before the Witnefles were {worn at the O/d Baily,
I met with Mr. Turbervile, I was ina Coach, but
{eeing Mr. Turbervile, [ ftept out of the Coach,
and fpoke with him 5 for, hearing that he was a
Witnels, I did afk him whether he was a Witnefs
or no againft Colledge 2 Mr, Turbervile faid, he
would bieak any one’s Head that fhould fay fo
againft him ;3 for he neither was a Witnefs, nor
could give any Evidence againtt him, So after
he came from Oxon, T met with Mr, Turbervile
again ; and, hearing he had been there, I afked
him if he had any Thing agamnft Colledge 2 He
faid, yes, he had been fworn before the Grand
Jury, Said I, did not you tell me foand fo ? Why,
{aid he, the Proteftant Citizens have deferted us 5
and God damau him, he would not ftarve,

L.C.¥. Would he fay fo to you ?

Dr. Oates.  Yes, my Lord, he faid thole very
Words, _

Mr. Serj. Fefferies. *Tis Mir, Qates’s Saying, tis
Mr, Turbervile’s Qath.

Dr. Oates. Several Times he did repeat it 5 but
when I afked him what he had fworn, he faid
am not bound to fatisfy People’s Curiofities,
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L. C. ¥. What fay you to it, Mr, Turbervile ?

Mr. Turbervile. My Lord, the firft Part of the
Dottor’s Difcourfe, in Partistrue; I met him juft
at my Lodgings, and the Doctor alighted out of
his Coach, and fpoke to me, and invited me g
come to my old Friends 5 for he told me, they haq
fome Jealouly that I wasnot true to them : Ang
he told me, if { would come 1o the King’s Head
Club, I fhould be received with a grear deal of
Kindnefs : And never afterwards did I fpeak wich
the Doctor a title about any Evidence.

L. C. 7. Hefaid, you faid you would break
any one’s Head, that faid you were an Evidence
againlt Colledge 5 for you were not, nor could he,

Mr. Turb. There was no fuch Thing faid by
me.

Mr, A, Gen. Upon your Oath, did you tell
him {o ?

Mr, Turb.  Upon my Oath, Idid not.

Mr, Serj. Feff. Did you tell him that other
Paffage, when you fwore you would not {tarve ?

Mr, Turb, No, 1 did not,

Dr. Oates. Upon the Word of a Prieft, what]
{ay 1s true, My Lord, I dofay, as I am a Minif-
ter, 1 fpeak it fincerely, in the prefence of God,
this Gentleman did fay thefe Words to me ;
which made me afraid of the Man, and I wenr
my Ways, and never fpake with him afterwards,
nordurft 15 for I thought he that would fwear and
curfe after that rate, was not fit to be talked with.

L.C. 7. "Is very improbable that he thould
fay fo to you, -

Mr. Turb, 1 always looked upon Dr. Oates as
a very ill Man, and never would converfe much
with i,

L. C. 7. Wil you afk him any Thing more?

Coltedge. Do you know any Thing of the reft,
Doétor ¢

_Dr. Oates. Tknow nothing of Turbervile further,
but that he did prefent this Petition, wherein he
fays, he lay under great Temptations to go on the
other Side, and accufe fome Proteftants. And
truly ¢ill 1 heard he was an Evidence at Oxon,
after what he had faid to me, I did nort believe i,

My, Alt. Gen. Dottor Oates, Mr, Turberuile
hath not changed Sides, you have ; he is ftill an
Evidence for the King, you are againft him.

Dr, Oates, Mr. Attorney, Tam a Witnefs for
Truth, againft Falfhood and Subornation 5 and it
can plainly be made to appear there is Suborna-
tion againft the Proteftants.  And moreover, my
Lord,

L, C. 7. Mr. Qates, youwould do well to ex-
plain yourfelt.

M. Scrj. ?Q’f If there be any Subnrna[inn Ie-
laung to Mr. Turbervile, or any of the other
Witnefles that have now fworn againt Colledge,
make 1t out Doftor.

Dr. Qates.  There is, my Lord, and there will
be made further to appear in Time to come. To
my own Knowledge as to Mr. Smith, Mr, Colledge
and Mr, Smith had fome provoking Words pafled
betwixt them at Richard’s Coffee- Houfe, and Mr.
Smith comes out and fwears, God damn bim be
wottld have Colledge’s Blood. So, my Lord, when
I met him, faid 1, Mr. Swith, you profefs your-
felf to be a Prieft, and have ftood ac the Altr,
and now you intend to take upon you the Mini-
ftry of the Church of England, and thefe Words
do not become a Minifter of the-Gofpel : His re-
ply was, God damn the Gofpel : This is Truth, I
fpeak 1t in the prefence of God and Man.
1 L C.7.
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L.C.F. Can you fay any Thing of any of the
other Witnefles ¢

Dr. Oates, As for Mr. Dudgale, I wasengaged
for him for o/, for laft Lent Affizes, he wanted
Money to go down to the Affizes, having paid
fome Debts, and paid away all his Money ; and fo
I engaged for 5o/, that he borrowed of Richard
the Coffee-man, After he came from Oxon, I
called upon him to haften to get his Money of the
Lords of the Treafury, which, as near as I re-
member, was ordered him upon his Petition, for
{o I heard. And that Time, faid he, Sir, I hear
there 1s 2 great Noife of my being an Evidence :
Againft whom ¢ Said T: Againft feveral Protef-
tants, my Lord Shaftefbury, and others : Said 1,
I never heard any Thing of 1t : Says he, there is
no Body hath any Caufe to make any fuch report
of me, for I call God to Witnefs I know nothing
againft any Proteftant in Lngland., After that |
met with Dugdale at Richard’s Coffee- Houfe, and
prefling him for the Money, and he faying he had
it not juft then, but would pay it in a lictle Time
Mr. Dugdale, faid I, you have gone, Iam afraid,
agamnft your Conicience, I am fure againft what
you have declared to me: Said he, 1t was all
along of Colonel Warcup, for Icould get no Mo-
ney elfe,

Mr. Ait. Gen. Mr. Oates is a thorough paced
Witnefs againit all the King’s Evidence.

Mr. Sery. Fefferies, And yet Dr, Oates had been
alone in fome Matters, had it not been for fome of
thefe Woitnefes,

Dr,Oates. I had been alone perhaps, and per-
haps not 5 but yet Mr. Serjeant, I had always
a beter Reputation than to need theirs to ftreng-
then i,

Mr. Ser). Fefferies. Does any Man {peak of
your Reputation ? I know no Body does meddle
with it 3 but you are fo tender !

Coll. Sir George, now a Man is upon his Life, I
think you do not do well to affront his Witnefles.

Mr, Ser). Feff. 1 do not affront him 3 but now,
my Lord, pray give usleave to call our Witneffes.
Mr. §mith, pray ftand up,

L. C. 7. Mr, Smito, do you hear what Mr.
Qates hath faid ?

Mr. Smith. No, my Lord.

L. C.¥. Then {peak it again, Mr. Qates.

Dr. Oates. Yes, my Lord, I will fpeak it to his
Face, He faid coming out of Richard’s Colfee-
Houfe, they having had fome provoking Words,
as | underfltood when I came in, God damn that
Colledge, I will have bis Blood : And, my Lord,
when I did reprove him, and {aid to him, Mr.
Smith, you have been a Prieft, and ftood at the
Altar, and intend to be a Minifter of the Church
of Eugland ; thele Words do not become a Minif-
ter of the Gofpel 5 and he replied, God daman the
Gofpel 5 and he went away.

L. C. 7. What fay youto 1, Mr, Smith ?

Mr, Smith. Notone Word of this is true, upon
- myQOuth, *Tis a wonderful Thing you fhould fay
this of me ; but I will {ufficiently prove it againft
"you, that you have confounded the Gofpel, and
denied the Divinity too, .

Mr, Ser). Feff.  Mr. Dugdale, you heard what
was faid againtt you?

* Dr. Lower, the moftnoted Phyfician then in Londen, proved it at the Council Board both by

for High-Treafon.
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Dr. Oates, My Lord, now Dugdale is come,
I will tell you fomething more, There wasa Re-
port given out by Mr. Dugdale's Mears, that Mr-
Dugdale was poifoned 3 and in truth, my Lord, it
was but the Pox. And this Sham paffed through-
out the Kingdom in our Intelligences ; and this
}I] will make appear by the Phyfician that cured

im.

Mr, Serj. Feff.  That is but by a third Hand,

Dr. Qates, EHe did confefs that he had an old
Clap, and yet he gave out he was poifoned ; but
now, my Lord, as to what I faid before of him,
I was engaged for 50/, for Mr. Dugdale ; do you
own that ¢

Mr. Dugdale. 1 do own it

Dr. Oates. T did prefs upon you to haften the
Payment of it.

Mr. Dugdale.  Yes, you did,

Dr. Oates.  And did not you come to me and
tell me there was a Noife of your being an Evi-
dence ! It was in Time juft before my Lord
Shaflefbury was taken up,

Mr. Dugdale, I never {poke to you till you
fpake to me.

Dr. Qates. My Lord, he came and faid to me,
there 1s a Noife of my being an Evidence ;5 now
I had not heard it then, but the Day after I did
hear 1t ; and I did juftify Mr. Dugdale, becaufe
he had faid to me that he had nothing againft
any Proteltant in Eugland.  So I did fland up in
Vindication of him; but my Lord, after he had
fwore at the O/d Baily, I met him again, and
prefled him for the Money, and urged him with
it, why he had fworn againft Golledge, when he
had told me fo and fo before ; and he faid it was
all along of Colonel Warcup, for he could not ger
his Morey elfe 5 and Colonel arcup did promife
he fhould have a Place at the Cuftom-Houfe.

Mr. Dugdale. Upon the QOath I have taken,
and as I hope for Salvation, it is not true.

Mr. Ser). Feff. Here is Dugdale’s Oath againft
Dr. Oates’s Saying.

Dr. Oates, M, Serjeant, you fhall hear of this
in another Place,

Mr, Att. Ger. °Tis an unhappy Thing that
Dr, Qates fhould come in againft thefe Men that
fupported his Evidence before,

Mr. Dugdale. My Lord, I fay further, if any
Dottor * will come forth, and fay he cured me
of a Clap, orany fuch Thing, I will ftand auilty
of all that is imputed to me.

L,C. 7. Mr. Colledge, will you call any ather
Witnefles ? .

Coll. My Lord, Ithink this is not fair Dealing
with a Man for his Life ; becaufe thefe Men be
upon their Oaths, and deny the Things again that
my Witnefles prove ; therefore what they fwear
muft needs be taken for Truth : But if my Witnefs
comes and fays fuch a Thing upon the Word of a
Mintfter, and in the prefence of Geod, and which
he 1s ready to maintain by an Qath, fure it is not
to {tand for nothing, nor to be hooted out of
Court, becaufe Mr. Dugdale denies it upon his
Oath ;5 1 do fuppole he will not acknowledge it.
But, my Lord, I am the Prifoner, and cannot be
heard as a Witnels for myfelf : Bur God is my
Witnels ; he hath faid a great deal more to me

his Bills, and by the Apo-

thecary, that he had been under cure in his Hands for that Difeafe ; which was fuch 3 Shur wpon Dugdale’s Credit, that he

was never ufed as a Witnefs more.
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formerly 3 and he hath told me, when I have feen
him with arcup, and afked him why he kept
Company with #arcup, and others ; faid he, 1
know they are fufpeted Men, but I muft keep
Company with them to get my Money ; what
would you have me to ftarve? And when T lent
him Money out of my Pocker, and trufted him
with my Horfe, I dun’d him for Money and could
not get it 3 faid I, Will you pay me the 5/, 1 lent
you? He put me off, faid he, I (hall have it, for
the Attorney General hath made up his Accounts,
and is very kind to me, Why then, faid I, why
have you it not? faid he, he is my Friend, and
I do not queftion the getting of it; but here is
new Work to be done, fuch Work as my Con-
{cience will not ferve me to doy there 1s more
Roguery, they will never have done plotiing, and
counterplotting 5 but they will make a thoufand
Plots if they can to deftroy the real one.

L.C.¥. Can you prove this now ?

Coll. No, it was {poken to mylelfs and no body
was by but myfelf.

L.C.¥F. Then you fhould not fpeak ir.  Bur
vou afked the Queftion whether a Man may not
be believed upon Liis Word, as weli as he that is
upon his Oath. Your Witnefles are not upon therr
Qaths, but they may be Wimefles; and their
Weight is to be left with the Jury; they will con-
{ider how improbable 1t 1s, that thefe Men fhould
come, three Mea to one Man, and all of them
thould fpeak that which would make themifelves
Rogues and Villains 5 and that one Man of them,
Smith, {hould fay fuch vile Words, as God damn
bim, bz wonld bave bis Blood 5 and, Ged damn the
Gofpel :  That Dugdale thouid confefs he was
wrought upon by /Zarcup to teftify againft his
Confcience 3 and that Turbervile thould fay to that
Purpofe, he would not ftarve; they have fworn
the contrary, and fo there are all thefe thice Mens
Oaths againft one Man’s Afirmation 5 but it muft
be left to the Jury.

Colledge. There is his Affirmation againft what
they three fay. He charges every one of them,
and 05 but the ingle denial of every one of them
to his Charge,

L. C. 7.’ T impoflible they fhould own them.
felves fuch Villains to hum.

Dt, Oates. They muft be fo, if they will do
what they have undertaken. 1 hope my Word
will be believed as foon as their Oaths,

Coll. Tt 15 not to be thought, bur when they
have fworn fo againlt me, they will deny any
fuch Thing v-hen they are charged with i,

L. €. 7. Have youdone with your Wiineffes ?
Or wili you call any more ?

Coff, What is faid upon an honeflt Man’s Word
in the Face of a Court, 15 certainly to be belisved
as well as what is fworn, ‘

L. C. 7. ’Tisa Teflimony, that ismoft certain,
and muft be left to the Jury, they muft weigh
one againft the other. But pray, Mr, Celledge, will
you call your Witnefles, for it begins to grow
late ?

Coll, There 1s Mr., I¥ilmore, that was 2 material
Witnefs for me, who was Fore-man of the Grand
Jury, that would not find the Bill upon this Kvi-
dence. What he had to fay I don’t know, bur [
am informed it was very material for me.

L.C. 7. It will be enovgh for him to clear
himfelf, for he is charged with High-Treafon,

and by two Witneffes too.
Colledge,  Call Alexander Blake.

106. The Trial of Stephen Colledge

33 Car. 11

What do you afk him ?

Colledge. Do you know FobsnSmith 2

Mr, Blake, Yes. Sir, -

Colleage. Yray will you tell the Court what you
know of Fehiz Smith 2

Mr. Blake. 1 fuppole you mean this Gentleman,
Mr. Febi Smith, Gent. came to me one Morning,
and told me there was one Haynes under Exam.
nation, and this Hayres had dilcovered very ma.
terial Things againft fome great Perfons : - This
pafled, and within few Days after T met My,
Sumith av the Lxcbange Coffee boufe, and having fa.
luted him, [ defired bim to drink a Glafs of Wipe,
and {o we went to the Sun-Tavern, and when we
were tnzre, | afked him, what his Senfe was of
Hayies and his Difcovery 2 Said he, ’tis a Sham-
Plot: afkkr him, what he meant by that Sham.
Plot ? Said he, it 15 a Meal- Tub Plot, This is
all that 1 know,

L. C. 7. Wonld you afk him any Thing ejfe ?

Mr. Blake, 1 know nothing more,

Colledze. Do you know any thing of Turbervile
or Digdale ? ‘

Mr, Blake,  Sir, T have no Acquaintance with
himy, ner defire it : Bue I was acquainted with this
Gentleman Mr. §mith, T know him very well,

Mr, Sy, 7eff. Yeufay well, fland down.

Colledge,  Call Mr, Samuel Smith,

L. C.f. Whatatk you him ?

(elledge.  What he knows of Mr, Swith,

BAr, S, Smith. Mr, Fobn Surith and 1 have had an
Intimacy and Acquaintance fevesal Months, and
fince Mr. Foni Smith (wore at the Old Baily againgt
Mr, Colledge, and was gone out of Town, feveral
People have talked with me concerning him ; and
afking me what I thought of him ? 1 told them,
I believed he was an honeft Man 3 however I
would not believe otherwife till I knew a Reafon
of it.  They told me, that he had fworn againft
Mr. Colledge, that ne was to feize the King at the
Parliament at Osford, and that there was 1500
Barrels of Powder, and it was to carry ona Prel-
byterian Plot: Said I, I will never believe i,
and the rather becaufe he hath faid to me often,
there was a Popifh Plot, but he does not believe
any Prefbyrenan or Proteftant Plot 3 and, fiid I,
further, as to his giving any Lvidence with Jrif-
meit, 1 believe it lefs for char, for I have heard
him oiten fay, they were a Company of Rogucs
that had done the Proteftant Interelt more harm
than ever they could do it good, and bid me
have a care of coming into their Company, and
meny other fuch Things that Mr., Swith here
knows to betrue. Then, my Lord, when Mr.
omith came home (for I was very impatient «ill
he did come home, to hear every Day fuch Things
faid againft him) T went to him to fee him, Said
I, Coulin Smith, 1 have had great Confronts about
you fince you went away, but I hope you can't
be that ill Man you are reprefented to be, and
truly 1 would be {orry it fhould be fo: Pray, Cou-
fin, fard 1, I have put every Man off with this,
that I would fulpend my belief of you, til] I had
fpoken with you yourfelf ; what is the Evidence
you have given ? They fay, you have fworn a
Prefbyterian Plot, or a Proteftant Plot, a Defign
of frizing the King at Oxon, and of fo Many
Barrels of Gun-powder that were provided. Says
my Coutin, | did {wear no fuch Thing, nor never
a Word of any fuch Thing as a Proteftant Plot,
or a Prefbyterian Plot, and pray do not believe
it of me. No, faid I, I thought you could not
{wear

3
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fwear any fuck Thing, becaufe you have faid
oficii to me, you believe there was no fuch
Thing. I do not believe ¥ yet, faid he 3 and asto
whatfoever Colledge faid, 1 did not believe it, for
he did not believe it himfelf. And Mr. Smith
told me after his return, that he did not know
of any Proteftant concerned in the Plot,

L. C. F. He does not fay now ’tis a Proteftant
Plot.

Mr, §.Smith, So far {rom that, that hetold me
after his return, he did not know any Proteftant
concerned in the Plot,

L. C.F. Mr. Siith, thus T underftand you: You
fay that he faid to you, that he had not teftified
any Thing of a Proteftant Plor, nor did believe
there was any Proteftant Plot, for he did not be-
tieve what Colledee faid himfelf : So by that Dif-
courfe there feems he did not deny, but he had tefti-
fied againft Mr, Colledze 5 but he did not believe
there was any Proteftant Plot ¢

Mr. §. Smith. No, my Lord, he did not deny
but he had {worn againft Celledge.

Mr, Juft. Fomes. Nor, that what he had faid
againft Colledge was true ?

Mr. §. Smith. No, my Lord, but he did not
believe him, and he thought Colledze did not be.
licve it himielf.

Mr, Sery. Feff. It feems Mr. Colledge thinks the
whole Proteftant Interelt concerned in him,

L.C.%. The queltion is, Mr., Colledge, what
you had in your Mind, not what was 1n the Mind
of all the Proteftants.

Mr, §. Smith. ThisI dofuy, I would not {peak
more or lefs than the Trath, he did not deny but
he had heard Colledgz fpeak thofe Words he {wore,
but he did not believe him, and I think Mr, Smith
hath faid that at another time before Mr, Gardrer,

Coll, If he knew of no Proteftant Plot, it was
very li_nlil{ely that I thould attempt fuch a Thing
mylelf.

}E\Er. S. Smith, My Lord, I find Mr. Smith hath
been very paffionate and very inveterate of late
againft other Nien that he hath given me a very
good Report of before 5 and when I was talking
of this, Iwas faying, if it be true that People fay
of you, a Man goes in Danger of his Life (o
converfe with you, Mr, Swith, faid he, I do not
care for all the Men between Wapping and Char-
g-Crofs, there 1s never a Man that will forbear
my Company, but would do or fay as much as
Colledge hath done or faid.

Mr, 7. Smith, *Tis true, and I fay fo flill

Coll.
fhould be fuch a Delign, and none but myfelf to
do it. God my righteous Judge knows my Inno-
cency.

Mr. Juft, Fones. You might fay thofe Words in
Hopes they would be of your Party, and made fo
by your Libels and poifonous Pictures,

L. C. 7. Come, call another Witnefs.

Coll. Call Mr. Tho, Gardner. But, my Lord,
how likely is it that I fhould fay, that I would
feize the King, when he, it feems, fays, he did
not believe there was one Man to ftand by me?

L.C.¥. What fay you to this Gentleman ?

Coll, 1 never faw him in my Life,

Mr. Gardner. Nor 1 you, Sir.

Coll, I know not three of all that come here,

L. C. 7. Well, will you afk him any Thing ?

Coll, Pray do you know Mr, Smith 2

Mr. Gardier. Yes,

Vor, I

Jfor High-Treafon.
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Coll.,  'What do you know of him: Can you
fay any Thing concerning this Matter that is
{worn againft me of Treafon? _

Mr, Gardner, My Lord, that Day-Fortnight I
think it was, Mr. §. Smith, the Gentleman that
was juft now up before me, fent for me to the Rum-
mer m Qyeen-Street, to drink a Glafs of Wine,
where when 1 came, Ifound him and Mr., . Smith,
that is here, whom they call Narrative Smith,
talking very brifkly concerning one Colledge, 1
{uppofe that is the Gentleman, and the Jury that
acquitted him, and he faid that two or three of
the Jurymen were Rafcals and Villains ; and,
fays he, they talk up and down the Town, asif 1
did intend to fham the Popith Plot, and to make
a Proteftant Plot, which, faid he, I vow to God,
and I will juftify it before God and all the World,
that I know of no Proteftant Plot, nor is there
any Proteftant concerned in a Plot to my Know-
ledge, but this Colledpe, and upon his Trial 1
believe he will be made appear to be more a Papilt
than a Proteftant : But, fays Mr, Smith to him,
Now you are known to be a Witnefs in this Cafe,
it will be a dangerous Thing for a Man to con-
verfe with you.

Coll. Will it be now known that I am a Papilt?
No Man could ever fay fo in this World,

Mr, Gardner, Says he, I care not whatall the
World fays of me, and I do not value all the Men
from Wapping to Charing-Crofs, but that Man that
will fhun my Company, will fay and do as much
to the King as Celledge hath done. But then I was
faying, methinks it feems an improbable Thing,
that fuch a Man as Colledge fhould feize upon the
King, or provide 1500 Barrels of Powder, and
thofe other Things. Upon my Word, faid he, with
fome Paffion, clapping his Hand upon his Breaft,
when Mr. Colledge did fay 1t, I did not believe 2
Word of it, and upon my Faith I believe Celledpe
himfelf did not believe it when he told me fo.

Coll, Do you know any Thing more, Sir?

Mr, Gardner. Noindeed, Mr. Colledge.

Coll.  Call Dr, Oates again.

L. C.¥. Well, what fay you to him ?

Coll. Pray Dr. Oates, Mr. Smith charges me
that I fhould fpeak {ome treafonable Words that
Time that Alderman 7ilcox gave you a Treat at
the Crown Tavern; you were there, and pray
how long ago was it ¢

Dr. Oates. My Lord, 1 heard Mr. Smith {peak-
ing of it at the O/d Baily, and 1if you pleafe to
take Notice, 1t was thus : This Summer was
Twelve-Month, or I am {ure a great while before
Chriftmas, the Alderman bad invited me feve-
ral Times to give me a Treat, and I had not
Time, other Bufinefs calling me off ; but find-
ing 2 Time, I fent him word I would come and
fee him, He faid he was a Brewer, and trou-
bled at home with Cuftomers, but he wou.d
give me a Dinner at the Crown Tavern without
Temple-Bar, that was the Place fixed upon 3 there
was Mr. Smith the Counfellor, who had been
ferviceable to me in feveral Inftances. I did get
him to go along with me, and Mr. Colledge was
with us, and I heard Smith {wearing at the O/d-
Baily that Mr., Colledge and he had difcourfed from
the Rainbow Coffee-Houfe where we mer, and

went together. ,
Coll. 'There I was invited by Alderman /7ilcox,

Dr. Oates, But, my Lord, Iwill tell my Story,
I am not to tell Mr, Smith’s, Colledze did tell me
Ccc he
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he was invited 3 faid I, you fhall be welcome as
far as [ can make you welcome, So Colledge and
I went together from the Rainbow Coffee- Houfe
to the Crown Tavern : Now indeed, Colledge was
very pleafant and merry, and as I think, the
Difcourfe between the Rainbow Coffee-Houfe and
the Tavern was betwixt Mr, Colledge and me
for Mr, §mith ftayed fomewhat behind, or walked
before, I cannot tell which : When we came to
the Crown Tavern we did, to divert ourfelves
till Dinner came up, enter into a philofophical
Difcourfe with one Mr, Savage, who was formerly
a Romifh Prieft, but this Sevage 1s fince pardoned
by the King, and is 2 Member of the Church of
England, and hath been Profeffor of Divinity and
Philofophy beyond Sea. This, as I remember, was
the Difcourfe before we dined, till we went to
Dinner 5 it was concerning the Exiftence of God,
whether that could be proved by natural De-
monftration, and whether or no the Soul was
immortal. My Lord, after Dinner Smith went
away, I did not hear the leaft Difcourfe of any
fuch Thing as he fpeaks of, and Mr, Smith and
Colledge had no Difcourfe in my hearing from the
Coffee- Houle to the Tavern 5 and when we were
in the Tavern, we did difeourfe about thofe two
Points.  Counfellor Smith, my Lord, will jultify
a great deal of this, and my Brother too, who
was with us. But when I heard Mr. Smith {wear
as he did about this Matter at the O/ Baily, 1
did really, my Lord, in my Confcience, look
upon him to be forfworn in that Particular.

Mr. Serj, feff. And he does fwear you are out
1m this.

L.C.7. Will you afk him any more Queftions?

Dr. Oates. If your Lordfhip pleafe, he fpeaksof

M., 7ilcox to be a Man that contributes Money
to buy Arms, Powder and Shot, 1 think, Sir,
George Fefferies knows Alderman ¥ilcox 1s a Man
of another Employmert,

Mr, Sery. Jeff. Sir George Fefferies does not in-
tend to be an Evidence, I affure you,

L.C. #. Do you afk him any more Queftions?

Dr. Oates. 1 do not ¢-fire Sir George Fefferies
to be an Lvidence for me, I had Credit in Par-
hiaments, and Sir George had Difgrace in one of
them.

Mr, Sery. Feff. Your Servant, Doctor, you are
a witty Man, and a Philofopher.

Colledge,  Call Mr. Tho. Smith.

L. C. 7. What would you afk of him now ?

Colledge, Counfellor Smith, here is Fobn Smith,
or Narrative Smith, which you pleafe to call him,
hath charged me with fpeaking Treafon at our
going to Dinner at Mr, #ilcox’s 3 Tremember you
were there, and I think youand I, and Dr. Oates
and his Brother, and Mr, Goodwin Wharton went
together 3 1 did tell Mr, Smith of i, but I did
not {tir a Step out of the Coftee-Houfe with him,
but went away before him. How long ago 15 it
fince we had that Dinner ¢ '

Mr, 7. Smith. My Lord, if your Lordfhip pleafe,
I do very well remember Mr, Alderman Zilcox,
{o they called him, did defire to give Dr. Oafes a
Trear, with fome other of his Friends at the
Crown Tavern withoutZemple- Bar 5 but really, my
Lord, asto the certain Time I do not remember
it, but to my beft Remembrance, my Lord, it
was beflore Chriftmas Jaft, and fome Time before
Chriftmas laft. And, my Lord, I was there all the
Time ; Mr. Smith was at that Time fomewhat a
Stranger to me, fomething I had heard of his

Name, and I did ftay there all the while 5 T re-
member Mr. Alderman 7ilcox was to go out of
Town that Day ; and truly as to any Matter of
Treafon, or treafonable Words, or any Thing
tending towards it, 1 am confident nothing was,
or could be fpoken, and the Room wasa very
{mall Room, and our Company did fill it up,
and the Table was fo big, thac there was little
more than for the Servitors to go about ; fo that
any Man might eafily hear from the ore end of
the Room to the other. I remember there wag
lome Dilfcourfe betwixt Dr. Oates and Mr. Savage,
who, Ithink, bhath been a Jefuir, and it was abour
fome Points of Philofophy and Divinity ; bug
for Treafon I do not remember the leaft of i,
and Iam confident Colledge faid not any Thing ac
that Time ; and my Reafon is this, I very well
remember Mr, Colledge did fet himfelf down upon
one Side of the Table, and fell afleep, and unlefs
he talked Treafon in his fleep, there could not
be any fuch Thing {aid, and if it had been faid,
1t would have been heard,

Mr, Att, Gen. Mr. Smith, did you never hear
Mr. Colledge fpeak an ill Word of the King ?

Mr. 7, Smith, Neverin my Life. Andif I were
now to take the Sacrament upon ir, I could fay fo.

Mr. Serj. Jeff. You ufed to converfe with him,
M, ;S'mftb, did he never fay any Thing like it 10
you ¢

Mr. 7. Smuh,  Good Mr. Serjeant, you know
I can take the Sacrament ; pray, let us have no
Refleltions.

Mr. Ser). 7eff. Who did refle€t upon you ? [
did not reflect upon you.

Mr, J. Jones.  Mr. Smith; did he never deliver
ou any of thofe Pittures?

Mr. 7. Smith, No, Sir, he never did.

Coll. Good Sir George, don’t reflect upon my
Lvidence, It feems Mr, Smith is miftaken in the
Time; for he fays it was at Chriflmas 5 but Mr.
Smuth fays it was {fome Time before,

L. C. 7. Mr. Smithdoes not fay fo, the certain
Time he cannot tell exactly 5 but your Witneffes.
fay it was then,

Mr. 7. Smith, 1 do fpeak as much as if T were
upon my Oath ; and I do know what an QOath
15, I thank God, and what it is to fpeak before a
Court of Judicature 5 and I know, and do fpeak °
Truth as much as if I were upon my QOath ; and
I do fay I did not hear Golledge, or any one elfe
that was in that Company, at that Time {peak
any Thing refle@ting upon the King and Govern-
ment, or any Thing tending towards it.

Mr. Juft. Fores. Can you remember Matter fo
diftintly, which Dr., Oates fays was a Year and
haif ago ?

L.C.7}. No, this Summer was Twelve-month.

Mr. Juft. Fones. And can you tell fo long ago,
not only your own Adtions, but teftify to all
other Men’s Aétions too that were in the Room ?

Mr. 7. Smith. 1 cannottell what Dr. Oates’s Mie-
mory 1s asto the Time 3 butI remember the Place,
the Occafion, and the Perfons that were there,

Mr. J. Fones. And you take upon you to have
fuch a perfect Memory, as to the A&ions of all
the Perfons that were in the Room ?

Mr. 7. Smith. 1 do not fpeak of all that was
done, but I fay, I remember no fuch Thing that
was faid, and I believe no fuch Thing was faid,
and I have given you my Reafons why. But, my
Lord, that which I fay further for Mr Colledge, 1s
this ; 1 do hear fomething pretended, as if he
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provided arms to go to Oxford. I have known
him this three Years, or thereabouts 3 and, my
Lord, I do know that he did ufually ride with
a Cafe of Piltols before him. And before that
Time I had occafion to borrow his Horle of him,
at the Blection for Weftminfter the laft Parliament
that fat there, and I had it then with a Cafe of
Piftols. 1 likewife borrowed it at Michaelmas latk,
the fame Horle, and the fame Piftols they were,
I did at the fame time fee a Suic of Silk- Armour,
which he told me he did provide againft the
Papifts 5 for he faid, he did expeft we fhould
have a Brufh with them. Said I, do not trouble
your felf’ for that, they dare not meddle ; faid
he, they will do no Harm. Andas I remember,
it was a Suic of Armour made of Silk to wear un-
der a Coat,

Coll. It was Silk-Armour only for the Thruft
of a Sword, And I affure you, my Lord, I had
brt one Suit, but one Cafe of Piftols, and but
ore Horle, I had two before ; but they did not
then make a Traitor of me, that was all that
ever I had ; but if I had had ten Horfes, and
never fo many Armours, I declare it upon my
Salvation, I intended it for nothing but againft
the Peupifts, 1f they f{hould make a Difturbance
and whatever I did, was with that Deflign, and
truly by the Grace of God, I would not have
been the Jaft Man then; but I fee, whatever I
provided my felf with for that, they have turped
it all another way, that it may be believed the
Proteftants were againlt the King and the efta-
blithed Government.

L. C. . Thole Obfervations may be proper
for you at laft, Go onnow with your Kvidence.

Coll, My Lord, I am not a Man of that great
Memory, 1 may forget it, and therefore I fpeak
it now whilft 1 think on i,

L. C. 7. Setitdown in your Paper.

Coll. Smith fays, [ talked with him coming
from Richard’s Coffee-Houfe till we came to the
Tavern; Idodeclare it, I went away before him,
and went away with Dr. Oases.

L. C. 7. Alk Mr, §mith that Queltion, if you
will,

Coll. Pray Sir, do you know who went toge-
ther thither ?

Mr. 7. Smith. I dare not undertake to fay that,
I cannot tell whether he went from the Rainbow-
Coffee-Houfe with us, or no.

Coll. Te fays, after we had dined, we divided
our {elves into Cabals, two and two together ;
I do declare, it is that which is the real Truth,
I fell afleep behind the Tables if any body was
divided, it 1s more than I know; but, Mr.
Smith, you can telly becaufe he fays I fpoke T'rea-
fon to him when I was in the Room, he and | in
one Cabal.

Mr, 7. Smith, My Lord, I remember nothing
of that, nor do believe it; for I told you the
Room was fo little, that we could not divide
our {elves: And it is impoflible in fuch a litcle
Compais where we was fo many as we were,
fourteen or fifteen of us; 1t may be one might
talk to another that was next to him, buc then
the Company muft hear; and whether they did
fo or no, I cannot tell, I do not remember Mr.,
Smith’s faying any thing to any particular per-
fon; bur the great Ingagement was between Dr,
Oates and Mr, Savage, and about fome Queftions
tn Divinity, and that is the great Matter I took
Notice of.
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Coll, However, my Lord, I declare it, that
was above a Twelve-month ago, and I hope
your Lordthip and the Jury do obferve, that
there was no new Arms were found but what were
provided a great while ago; all that know me,
know I was never without a Cafe of Piftols and
an Horfe, though I was but a Joiner, and there ix
no more that you fec now. And to what Smith
faid about going intc Cabals, that you hear Mri
Switth denies.

L. C.7. Will you call any other Witnefles ¢

Coll. Yes, if it pleake your Lordfhip. Do you
know no more, Sir?

Mr, 7. Smith. 1 know no other thing, if I did,
I would declare 1t

Cclledge. Call Dr. Oates’s Brother, Mr, Samue!
Qates. My Lord, thus you {ee Smith’s Teftimo-
ny is falfe.

L. C. 7. 1donot {ee this contradiéts his Qath,
for he fpeaks of feveral Times that he did fpeak
with you ; one was at J/ilcox’s, which is this they
fpeak of.

Coll, M. Swmith fays, there was only that great
Difcourfe going on in the Room, and there was
no fuch Thing as Cabals which he fpeaks of.

L.C.7. Whatdo you fay to this Witnefs?

Coll. Do you know Narrauve Smith ?

Mr, Oates. Yes, Sir.

Colledge. What do you know of him? Were
you at the Dinner which Mr. W/#/cox oave your
Brother ?

Mr, Oates, Yes, yes, I was at that Dinner.

Coll. Were you at the Coffee-Houfe when I
went along with your Brother ?

Mr. Oates. Yes, we went with you.

Coll. Did Mr. Smith go with us?

Mr, Oates. Yes, Mr. Smith followed us,

Coll. Did you hear any treaforable Difcourfe
between us ?

Mr. Oates, Not the lealt of a liule Word.

Coll.  Did we go into Cabals two and two to-

oether there ?
v Mr. Oates. There was nothing at all ¢f Cabals,
that I {faw, from the Time of going to Dinner ;
for we came juft as Dinner was going into the
Room, as | remember,

Mr. Serj. Feff. What do you mean by Cabals?

Mr. Oates. That s, as I difcern by Mr. Cot-
ledge, as if there had been Cabals amonsft the
Company,

Mr. Juft. foues. That is going by Couples.

Mr. Qates. Yes, yes.

Mr, Serj, Feff. What did they talk of?

Mr. Oates. There was nothing at all fpoken of,

Mr, Serj. Feff. What did they fay nothing all
the while?

Mr, Oates, Nothing but Matter of common
Difcourfe, Matters of Eating and Drinking, and
talking of Country-Affairs; there were feveral
that had Lands in the Country, and they were
talking of thofe Things,

Mr. Jult, Fones, Were you there all the while?

Mr. Oates, Yes.

Mr. Serj. Feff. Hark you, Sir, Were there no
Difputations in Divinity ¢

Mr. Oates, Not at all.

Mr. Ser). Feff. Nor of Philofophy ?

Mr, Oates. No.

Mr, Serj. Yeff. Why, pray Sir, did not Dr,
Oates and Mr, Savage talk very pleafantly of two
great Queftions in Divinity, the Being of God,

and the Immortality of the Soul ?

Ccc 2 Mr.
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My, Oates. There was not 2 Word of that, but
only common difcourfe,

Mr. Serj. Fefferies. Are you fure there was no
fuch thing ¢

Mr. Oates. Not that I kaow of, in the leaft,
I fat ar Table with them.

Mr, Serj. Fefferies, Was it fuch a little Room
that you could hear all was faid 2

Mr, Oates. There was Room enough,

L. C. . Peoplecannor give a perfect Account
of all things that have pafled fo long ago.

Colf. 1 did not hear that Difcourfe myfelf, be-
caufe I was afleep behind the Table; and perhaps
N Qates cannot remembet It

Mr, Sol, Gen. Was it before Dinner, or after
Dinner that Colledze fell afleep behind the Table?

Mr. Cates, Fle was not afleep to my remem-
brance all the while,

Mr. Serj. Fefferies. Recollett yourfelf pray, was
M, Cal!edé'e afleep there ?

Mr. Oates. T do not remember he was.

L. C.°F. °Tis impoffible to give an Account
and therefore Witneiles 1n Negatives are of little
Value,

Coledse, Did Mr, Smith and you and I 2o
together ?

Mr. Oates. Mr. Smith followed us.

L.C.¥. Howdo you know that?

Mr, Qates. For you and I, and my Brother
went together ; you were a faying, when we
came out of the Coftee-Houfe, in a jocofe way,
Come, Doftor, I will go along with you, and
be one of your Guard, You {poke it in a jefting
way., So you may, if you pleafe, faid my Bro-
ther. And {o he went by my Brother’s Side, and
I went by Mr, Colleage’s Side.

Coll. Do you remember how long ago that was ?

Mr. Qates. It was the laft Summer ; but to fay
exactly what Month, I cannot.

Mr. Sol. Gen, Mr. Qates, anfwer me this Quel-
tion, pray, Sir.

1r, Oates. Yes, Sir, )

AMr. Sol. Gen,  From what Place did you go?

Mr. Qates.  From /::chard’s Coffee-Boufe,

Mr. Sol. Gerr. Who went along with Colledyz ?

Mr. Oafes. He came along with my Brother
and me 5 for he faid to my Brother, I will be one
of your Guard,

Mpr, Sol, Gen. Who went along with Mr. Smith 2

Mr. Oates. 1don’t know, I took very little No-
tice of Things.

Mr, Sery. Feff. °Tis fufficient that he can tell
who went with Colledge.

Mr. Oales. 1 remember one Thing : Mr. §mith
would fain have perfuaded me into fomething
that my Brother fhould talk, but I heard no-
thing ; faid I, do not examine me upon fuch
things, for 1 took litle Notice of any thing s
but this 1 can fay, whereas he doth charge Mr.
IVilcox, the Gentleman did not {peak five Words
all the Time he was there.

Mr, Serj. Jeff. He does not ufe to be fo me-
lancholy, I affure you,

Mr. Oates. 1 did wonder at 1t my {clf, but he
was not long with us 3 for I do not think he was
there a quarter of the Time ; it {eems he had a Son
fick in the Country, and he was going thither,

Coll. Have you any thing againlt Macnamaria ?

L. C.7. Heisno Witnels here,

Coll. Do you know any thing again{t Mr, Dug-
dale ¢

Mr, Oates. No, not I.
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Coll, Then I can fay no more to you.

L. C. 7. Call another Witnefs,

Coll. Call Bolron,

L.C. 7. What do you afk him ?

Colledge. Do you know Fobn Smith ?

Mr. Bolron, Yes,

Colledge. What do you fay againft him?

Mr. Bolron, May it pleale your Lordthip, the
latt 25th of Fuly, Mr.Smith, and Mr, Mowbray,
were travelling from 2ork towards London, We
fay the 24th at and the 25th we were
travelling towards London : Mr, Smith did afk
me If [ did remember what Difcourfe there wag
betwixt Siv Fobn Brooks and 1 at Ferry-bridge when
we were coming up before to London 2 1 defired
him to tell me what Difcourfe, and I would tell
him if I did remember itorno, So, my Lord,
he did fay, the Difcourfe was, that Sir Fobn Biouls
did fay, there would be cutting of Throats at
Oxford, and that the Parliament did go provided
fome with 8§, fome with 6, fome with 4 Men,
and they were to meet at Grantham, and go to-
gether. This Difcourfe I did remember, That
Sir Fobin Brooks faid, they went with Horfe and
Arms to fecure them from Highway-men ; and
Sir fobu Brooks did then further declare, that the
Difcourfe was, there would be cutting of Throars
at Oxford, which made them go with Arms to
defend themfelves,  Mr. Smith did furcher upon
the 25th, 26th, 27th and 28th of Fuly (and it was
our frequent Difcourfe) tell me, that he hi
given Fis Majefty an Account of it, which o
calioned the diffolving of the Parliament : Thar
Difcourfe that was made to the King, was, That
Sir Fohn Brooks fhould fay, that there would be
cutting of Throats at Oxford, and that the Par-
liament-men went provided with 4., or 5, 6, or 10,
men aptece 5 and he did tell me, that he had given
a turther Account, that there was to be a Confult 2t
Grantbam, wherein it was refolved, thar it was
better to {eize the King, than to let him go on,
Now, this I knew nothing of, but he would have
perfuaded me to have given in this Evidence a-
oainlt Sir Fobn Brosks, as to this Dicousfe,  But
I declare, I did never hear 1t, and Mr., Smith was
the firft Man that ever I heard it from, 1 never
heard it before in my Life,

Colledge. Would he have had you been an Evi-
dence, and fwore 1t?

Mr. Bolion. Yes, he faid, he had given an
Account of it to the King, and if I did manage it
rightly againft my Lord Sbaftefburyand Colledze,
he would make me for ever; thole two Perfons
were mentioned all along, But I do declare i,
I did never hear him fpeak Treafon againft the
King in my Life. And he did further tell me,
that T muft fay foand fo; fer if we did not agree,
it would ignify nothing.  But, my Lord, I know
nothing of the Matter, I never heard any one
fpeak of it but Mr. Swith. My Lord, this is
true, Mr, Mowbray was the Man that was by when
it was difcourfed.

Mr, Jult, Fones, He would have had you fworn
it, wouid he?

Mr, Bolron. 1 difcovered it to my Lord Mayor.

Mr. Ait. Gen. When did you difcover it?

Mr. Bolron. Soon after I came to Town.

Mr. Att, Gen. When was 1t ?

Mz, Bolrou. Some time laft Week.,

Mr. Atr, Gen. Was it on Sunday laft ?

Mr. Bolron. It was the beginning of the Week.

Mr. Sery. feff. Thou art fuch a Difcoverer.
Mr,
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Mr. Bolron. My Lord, ’tis very true what I fay.
If 1 had known any fuch Thing, Iwould have dif-
covered It

Mr. Serj. 7eff. Thou wouldft have difcovered
it before that Time, of my Confcience.

Coll. My Lord, he hath been an Evidence agamft
the Papifts as well as Mr. Smith 3 and therefore,
pray, Sir Gearge, don’t make your Flourifhes upon
him.

Mr. Serj. feff. e was an Evidence, but had
the Misfortune never to be believed.

Mr. Ait. Gen. Do you know of any Pictures
of Mr, Colledge’s making ¢ Have you feendRary
Shew ¢

Mr, Bolron, Never in my Life,

Mr. A, Gen, Did not you fhew 1t in Oxford

Mr, Belron. No, never in my Lite,

M, Serj. Holl. Did you never declare to any Gen-
tleman of Oxford, that Colledge made this Pictare ?

Mr. Bolron. 1 have {eenthe Character of a Po-
pifh Succeflor, but I never faw Rary Shew.

Mr. Serj, Hollowway. Here is the very Gentleman
that will make QOath of it.

Vir, Bolron. He was fuppoled to make them, I
did not know that he did.

M. Serj. 7eff. 1 do only defire one Thing, I
do not fay thar you ever had Rary Shew, but did
you ever tell any body that Celledge made any of
thele Piftures ?

Mr. Belron, I have heard of fuch a Paper, but
I did never {ee it in my Life.

Mr. Serj. Fefferies. Do you know that Genle-
man, Mr, Bolroi ¢

Mr, Bolron. 1 know him not,

Mr. Serj. Feff. 1 would afk you, whether you
ever had any Difcourfe with that Gentleman ¢

Mr. Bolron. Never in my Life.

Then the Gentleman was froorn, being a Mafler of Aris,

Mr, Serj. Feff. Whatis the Gentleman’s Name:

Mr. Serj. Holl, Mr. Charleit, of Trinity College.

Mr, Serj. Feff. Pray, Sir, do you know that
Perfon there ?

Mr. Charlest, My Lord, in the new Coffee-
Houfe that was by the Schools, that was fet up
in the Parliament-time, there was a Gentleman
that is in the Court (I think) one Mr. Dafbwood,
and one My, Box, were there, together to drink a
Dith of Coffee, and hearing that fome of the Evi-
dence were there, we defired their Company up,
and that Gentleman was one 3 and among other
difcourfe, they were fpeaking of fome Pictures, and
they thewed us the Picture of the Tamtivies,

Mr. Serj. Feff. Did this Man fhew it you?

Mr, Charlest. This very Man, It wasthe Pictures
of the Tantivies and the Towzer, and he told me they
were made by Colledge, he was a very ingenious

Man.,
Mr. Bolron. 1 know nothing of it; the Charac-

ter of a Popifh Succeffor I have feen, but never
the other, 1 never fhewed him any fuch thing.

Then the Pictures were fhewn bim,

Mr. Chari. It was fomething like this, but I
cannot fay for any of the other.

Mr, Bolren, The Charater of a Popifh Succefior,
I fay, I have feen, and Colledge himfelf hath told
me he made the Chara&ter of a Popifh Succeffor,
I do not deny thae I have feen that.

L.C.¥. Would youafk himany more Queftions ?

Mr. Bolron. My Lord, I have fomething to fay
concerning Mr, Biyan Haynes; in fanuary, Febru-
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aryand April laft, feveral times I was in his Com-
pany, and I heard him fay, he knew nothing of -
a Popifh Plot, nor of a Prefbyterian Plot neither ;
but if he were to be an Evidence he did not care
what he fwore, but would {wear and fay any thing
to get Money.

M, Juft. Fones, Did he tell you fo ?

Mr. Bolron. Yes, I did.hear him fay, To Day
he would be a Papift, to morrow a Prefbyterian,
he did not care for Religton, he would never die
for Religion, he would be of that Religion that
had the ftrongeft Party. My Lord, he told me
{o at iy own Houlfe in Fleetftreet.

Coll. He would fay any thing for Money ; pray,
my Lord, take Notice of that, for folfind he does,

Mr. Bolron, Then there 1s Dennts Macnamarra,
and Foba Macnamarra.

Mr. Serj, 7eff. We have nothing to fay to them.

Csll.  "They have been Evidences againft me;
though you do not now produce them, they are all
In a String, but they are not now brought, becaufe
my Witnefles are prepared to anfwer them.,

L.C.%. Will you call your next Witnels?

Coll. Mr. Mowbray, pray, Sir, do you know
Narrative Smith, as he calls himfelf ¢

Mr, Mowbray. Yes, my Lord.

Cofl. What do you know of 1t ?

Mr. Mowbray, 1 came up from 2ok with him
when I returned, after 1 was commanded down
upon the King’s Account to give in Kvidence a-
cainlt Str Miles Stapleton, he came to me the
third of Auguft, and called at my Houle in 2%ik-
Mire, and was very importunate for me to come
up to Loadon with him 5 for he faid, he had a
Letter come to him which commanded his Pre-
fence at London very fuddenly, and he produced
that Lettcs which he faid came from a Gentle-
man of the Court, or fome Court-Dependent ;
fo he read the Letter in Mr, Bolron’s Hearing, We
fet forward on Sunday, and upon our Journey to
London he told me he had fomething of Impor-
tance to impart to me 3 fo upon the Road he be-
can to difcourfe of the Parliament and of the
illegal Proceedings and arbitrary Power of tic
two laft Parliaments; he faid, their Procecdings
were very illegal and arbitrary, and he began
to open fome of the Votes, as that which they
voted, that thofe that fhould lend the King Mo-
ney upon the Crown-Lands, fhould be Enemies
to the King and Kingdom, and thofe that coun-
felled the King to diffolve the Parliaments; and -
he repeated many Votes, and, faid he, thefe
are figns of arbitrary Power, and certainly they
defign to take off the King ; fo he proceeded
further to afk me, what was the Difcourfe of Sir
Jobn Breoks, when he came up before, and he
did much importune me to fay, that Sir Yobu
Brooks did affirm there would be cutting of
Throats at Oxford, and that the King was to be
feized there; I told him, I conld have no plau-
fible Pretence, becaufe I had no Acquaintance
with Sir Fobn Brooks, nor did I come up with
him; upon which he applied himfelf to Bolren,
and importuned him for the fame ; he afked me
who I came up with? I told him, I came up with
three Members of Parliament, my Lord Fairfax,
Sir Fobn Hewly and M. Sfern; he afked me what

Difcourfe we had upon the Road ¢ And he afk-
ed, whether they had any Dilcourfe that tended

to juftify cheir former Votes? For he faid, if they
did think to juftify any of thele Votes, or
if they would not allow the King Money, and
ftood upon the Bill of Exclufion, he faid, that

Was
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was Pretence enough for any Man to {wear that
there was a Defign againft the King, and that
the King was to be feized at Oxford.

Coll. An excellent Pretence indeed, and like
the reft. '

Mr, Mowb. He would have tempred me to fwear
againft my Lord of Shaftefbury the fame. And he
faid, it would be well if 1 did appear on Coflledge’s
Trial at Oxon, for it was a Thing of great Conle-
queace 3 the Popifh Plot was thrown out of Doors,
and no Man was looked upon that did fpeak of it.

Mr, Jult. Fones. Was all this in the Yrefence of
Mr. Bolyon ? '

Mr, Mowb. No, my Lord, When he was dil-
courfing about Sir Fobi Biooks, Mr. Bolion rid up
tous, and he applied himfelf to him, becavfe I
told him I had no plaufible Pretence to fwear a-
oainft him, having no Acquaintance with him.

Mr. Ser). 7eff. Pray, Sir, let me afk you one
Queftion, When came you from Zork ¢

Mr. Mowb. We fet forward the third Day of
Auzuft from [Pentbridge.

Mr. Serj. Feff. Pray, who came with you In
the Company ?

Mr, Mowb. Mr, Bolron.

Mr, Serj. Feff. That wasa Sunday, as T ake 1.

Mr. Mowb. Yes.

Mr. Serj. Feff. Then pray, how longdid you
continue before you came to Londoir ¢

er. Mowb, 1 think we came in on the Ther/day
after.

Mr, Sery, 7eff. When was the firft Time Mr.
Smith came 1nto your Company ¢

Mr. Mowb, Upon the Road on Sunday.

Mr. Serj. Feff. Was that the firft Time?

Mr, Mowb, Yes. He had been at 2ork, and went
further, and afterwards came to us.

Mr. Serj. Feff. When did you come from o7k ?

Mr. Mowbh. About the Thurfday before, if T
be not miftaken.

Mr, Sery. Feff. Was it in a Week before?

Mr. Mowb. Yes, within a Week it was.

Mr. Ser). Feff. And you and Mr, Belron came
together?

Mr. Mowb, Yes,

Mr, Ser. Feff. And you lefc Mr, Smith behind ?

Mr, Mowbh. Yes.

Mr. S. 7eff. And he overtook you upon the road?

Mr, Mowbh. Yes, he was to go further into the
North as foon as the Trial of Sir Miles Stapleton was
over, and therefore he did very much importune me
to {tay in the Country till he came to goup with me.

Mr. Sery. Feff. What Day was the Trial of
Sir Miles Stapleton ?

Mr. Mowbh., On the Monday before.

Mr. Seri. 7eff.  You are fure of that, and that
Mr, Smith went further into the North ?

Mr. Mowb. 1 fee him take Horfe,

Mr, Sery 7eff. But he did not come into the Com-
pany of youand Mr. Bol#on till the Sunday after thar,

Mr. Mowb. See ye, Sir, he did defire me to flay
in the Country till he came, for he had a Bufinels
of great Concernment to impart to me, but it would
be a Week or a Fortnight e’er he came, but yet he
came in a fhorter Time, for he faid he had received
a Letter that brought him up.

Mr, Serj. Feff.  You are fure of this?

Mr. Mowb, Yes.

Mr. Serj. Feff. And you did not fee him from
the Monday betore, till that Swirday ?

Mr. Mowdh. No, no,

Mr. Sery. Feff. Nowthen, I afk you, where was
that Place he met with you ?
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Mr. Mowb." At Wenthridge,

Mr. Sery. 7eff. And then you came from thepce
towards London the next Day ¢

Mr, Mowb, Yes.

Mr. Ser). 7eff. Now would I defive to know of
you, for I perceive he did attack you to fay fome-
thing againtt Siv Fehn Brooks, and finding that yoy
could not do it, becaufe you had no Acquaintance,
he applied himfelf to Bolron. 1 would know, was
it between that Place and Loadon 2

Mr, Afoweh. Yes, it was,

- Mr, Ser. Feff. And after the third of Auguf ?

M, Aowb, Yes, it was alter he fet our.

Mr, Serj. Feff. 1 thoughe it had been the 24¢h of
Fuly that you fet out, and continued your Journey
the 2 5th, 26th. 27th, 28th, and 29th. Alas, we have
loft a great deal of Thme between Mr. Bolron and
Mr, Mowbray, Belrcit faid, 1t was the 2 gththey lay
atfucha Place, and yeuare gottentothe 24 of Auguf,
youare miftaken, certa'nly, as to point of Time.

Mr. Mozob, Sce, Sir, 1 will look in my Alma-
nacks ’tis all fer down there.

Mr.Serj. 7eff. Let us b now if your Oxford Jour-
ney beas well fet down, as your Jouney to Loidg is.

Mr, Mewch, Here 1s my Almanack, Sir.

Mr, Tult, Foses, Here, inok upon his Almanack,

Mr, Ser). Teff. Mr. Fores, I don’t care for his Al
manack, I had rather Mr, Mowbray and Mr. Bolvsn
could bring their Almanacks tog:cher, and I would
have them compared, to fee wherher the g4 of dlyeuft
in onc be the 2 5th of Fudy in the other, Did you uil-
courfe with him upon the Road the 3d of /uos,
and not before, and Bolron, that came up with you,
difcourfed with him the 2 5th of Fuly ?

Mi, Mowb, 1 am mittaken, [ find,

Mr, Ser}, Jeff. Ay, that youare, one of you,
molt grofly.

Mr, Mowb. See, Sir, here is my Almanack, where
by I find that it is my Mittake ; but pray fee. Siv,
here 1t 15 fer down, the Day we came oue was the
2.4th, the Day we came up to Londen was the 27:h.

Mr. Serj. Fefferies. How didfk thon fet out (ha
3d of Auguft from that Place, and yet come o
Lsudon the 25th of Fuly ?

Mr, Mowb. 1 will refer myfelf to Mr, Smith, asto
the Time we came up, and here is my Almanack.

Mr. Ser). Fefferies. 1 will believe thy Almanaclk
to {peak Truth, though it have never fo many Er-
rors about the Changes of the Weather, fconer
than T will believe thee.

Colledge. 1 percetve the Man is miftaken in the
Month and the Times; but pray, my Lord, will
you pleale to {ee, for Jultice fake, if the Almanack
be new writ,

L.C. J. Look you, here is the Marter, Mr.
Colledge, he was afked again and again, whar Day
it was, and he was pofitive to the 3d of Arngult,

Coll. He was miftaker, but his Almanack s righe,

L.C. 7. He fpeaks rafhly, that is the beft can
be faid.

Mr. Mowbray, It was a Miftake of mine, Sir
George, but my Almanack is nighe.

Mr, Sery. Fefferies. Nay, Mr. Mowbray, don’:
enter into Dialogues with me, T only make a litle
Obfervation upon your Almanack.

Mr. Mewbh. It was only my Miftake.

L. C. %. You are a rath Man to affirm fo; if
you had an Almanack, you fhould have confulted
it, or referred to it

Mr. Serj. Fefferies. Nay, we have loft a Day
even by your Almanack ; for your’s fays, it was

the 25th you came to Town, Belron the 2Sth.
Mr.
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. Mr. Mowb. 1 refer my felf to Mr. Smith, he
can’t deny but he came up with us at that Time,

Mr. Serj. Feff. You were examined at Sir Miles
Stapleton’s Trial, was you not, Mr, Mowbray?

Mr. Mewh. 1 was an Evidence there,

Mr. Seri. Feff. Didthe Jury believe you ?

Mr, Mowb. They did acquit Sir Miles Stapleton,

Colf, That is nothing to the Purpole, fo was
Mr. Smith too.

L. C. 7. Would you afk any thing further ?

Coll, Call Mrs. Bolron.

L. C. 7. If you have any more Witnefles, pray
call them,

Mr. J. Fones, Mr., Mowbray, was Mr. Bolrow’s
Wife by when this Difcourfe was?

Mr, Mowb, No, fhe was in Town, fhe did not
oo down with him ac all.

L.C. ¥ Areyoa Mr, Bolrow’s Wile?

Mors. Bolron. Yes.

L.C.'F., Well, what do you afk her?

CAl. Mrs. Bolren, pray do you know Mr, Fobn
S}Hffrf?.? _

Mrs. Bolron, Yes, 1 do know him.

Co/l, \Vhat can you fay of him?

[virs, Bolrenn. He feot feveral times for my Hul
band and Mr, AMewbray to my Houle, fomething
he would have them be concerned in, fome Buli-
neis he bad 1n hand,

L.C. 7. When was that?

Mrs. Bolron., Within this three Weeks, fince he
came up from Qork- Affizes.

Ceil. You may fee there was an Underftanding
between them then.

Mr, Juft, Foues. Did they go accordingly ?

Mrs, Bolron, Now and then they have gone to
him, but they knew his Bufinefs, becaufe they had
Difcourfe with him, as they faid, upon the Road,
and they would not go.

L.C. 7. Would you afk her any thing elfe ?
What do you know more?

Mirs, Bolres, Nothing, for I am not one that
ftirs much abroad.

Coll.  Call Mr. Everard.

L. C.F. What do you afk him?

Coll, As for My, Everard, 1 need not afk him
whether he knows him, for they know one another
well enough,  But Mr, Everard, that [ would afk
you 1s ¢hus, What do you know of Mr. Smith, and
of this Contrivance againft me ?

Mr. Ever, Mr, Smith 1 have been to fee of late,
and he told me, he kiew of no Prefbyterian or Pro-
teftant Plot, and when my Lord Howard was tried,
that 15, the Bill brought againft him, he faid, he
wondered how my Lord Heward could be guilty,
and that both himfelfand I were joined as Evidence,
to that Jury, only to put a glofs upon the Evidence ;
for, fays he, I have nothing material to fay.

Coiledge. Mr. Everard, do you know any thing
more concerning him, what he bath faid at other
Times concerning me ?

Mr. Ever, I havetold you already, what I have
heard him {ay, that he thought there was no Pro-
teltant or Prefbyterian Plot, and that now of late
within this little while,

Coll. Pray, Sir, wasthere not fome Difcourfe be-
twixt Jultice WWarcup and you in Lincoln’s-Inu
Watks?

Mr. Ever, Is Juftice Warcup an Evidence here ?

L.C.¥. No, no.

Coll, >Tis but the Evidence of a Prefbyterian
Plot; therefore pray, Sir, what was the Difcourfe
between Jutice #arcup and you? What would he
have had you done?

L. C. ¥. I think it is not material, there is no-
thing of Mr, Warcyp in his Trial,

Mr, Ever, If the Court does allow of it, I will
freely tell it

Coll, My Lord, the Papifts Defign is to make a
Proteftant Plot to turn off their own, and, they
begin with mey but if I fhould go, they would
not be fatisfied with me, they would be at others,

L. C. ¥, There is nothing concerning a Prefby-
terian or Proteftant Plot in the Cale.

Coll. My Lord, ifthere be no Prefbyterian Pro.
teftant Plot, and others to join in it, how could I
do it myfelf? ’tis impoffible I fhould have fuch a
Defign of feizing the King, and improbable I fhould
fpeak it. Now, my Lord, this Man was folicited
to come in for an Evidence of fucha Plot.

Mr, Everard. That is true,

L.C. 7. I tell:you ’tis not material, Mr, Warcup
Is not concerned in your Trial.

Mr, Ever, Juftice #Warcup would have perfuaded
me to have {fworn againlt fome Lords a Prefbyte-
rian Plot; but I deny that I know any fuch thing
of them.

Cell. The Papifts Aim is not at me only, butat
others.

Mr. Serj. eff. We have nothing to do with what
you and Juftice Warcup talked of. For Example
fake, my Lord, let us have no Dilcourfes that
concern third Perfons brought in here.

L. C. ¥, Would he have perfuaded you to fay
any thing that was not true !

Mr. Ever. Hedid not fay pofitively thofe Words 5
out this he faid, I knew feveral Lordsm—

Mr. Juft, Fomes. Now here 1s Mr. Juftice
Warcup’s Fame traduced behind his Back, in the
Face of the Country, and it is nothing to this
Caufe before us, '

Coll. My Lord, I defire to know what he knows
of thefe Things, and that he may fpeak 1t out; ’tsa
material thing for me and others: Here 1sa Defign
of the Papifts to turn a Plot upon the Proteftants ;
they begin with me, and if they have my Blood,
who may feel the Effects of it next I cannot tell.

L. C. ¥. Truly I think it not material to your
Cale, and indeed s of ill Confequence to have any
Man traduced behind his Back, as Mr, Parcup is.

Coll. My Lord, Macnamarra told me, thar that
Man would have feduced him to have retracted his
Evidence; upon my Salvat'on ’tis true.

L. C. ¥. Wemeddle not with Macnamarra nei-
ther, he isno Evidence agamnlt you.

Coll. Macnamarra hath fworn agamn{t me at the
Old Baily, and at the finding the Bill; but they
have laid him by upon fome trick or other, I de-
fire Mr, Everard may tell what he Kknows,

Mr, Ever, Iwounld not reflect vpon any Perfon,
nor will I anfwer It, if the Court do not think fit.

Coll. My Lord, this is foul Play, if I die myfelf
for my Country’s fake, I can do it frecly, and the
Will of God be doney I would have the Truth out
for the fake of the Proteftants.

Mr. Ever, I am very willing to tell the Truth,
if the Court think fit,

L.C.¥. Ifeenot that he fays Mr. WWarcup would
have had him {wear that which was not true.

Mr, Ever. But thishe faid, if the Court will allow
me to fpeak it, Juftice Warcup faid, that certainly
there was a Prefbyterian Plot, and fuch Things ; and
that fome Lords, fome of the Proteftant protefting
Lords muft be guilty of it; and, faid he, certainly
you kinow much of it, you know fuch and fuch
Things, therefore you may fafely fwear it, fince
you know it ; fo by Argument he would prove lEirﬂ:

there
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there was a Plot and Combination among thofe
Lords, and then faid he, this you may fafely {wear,

Mr. J. Fones, What is thisto your Purpofe, Mr.
Colledge? only Mr. /Varcup’s Name is brought upon
the Stage when he is not here to vindicate himfelf.

L. C. ¥. Would you afk him any thing elfe ?

Coll. 1f he does know any thing more of any of
them, I defire he would {peak it.

Mr. Ever. Concerning Mr, Hayues, he told me
it was Neceflity that drove him to fpeak any thing
againft the Proteftants, and the hard P. and the
Gratitude he did receive from the Citizens,

L.C, 7. Wheredid hetell  7her 2t Jones acguain-
you this? - ted the Gourt, that Mr.

Mir, Ever. In the Fields ) e/ o
near G 'ﬁ.yj's'[;} i, himfelf.  But the King's

L.C. ? How ]DHg (ince? other Council avaved it

Mr. Ever. About three faing,thereavasraaveight
Weeks ago. 1 afked him, **
Mr. Haynes, faid 1, 1 would not draw you from your
Teftimony in any thing, but how can this be con-
eruous to what you have faid formerly, that you
knew nothing by them ¢ The Truth is, faid he, 1
will not fay much to excufe myfelf, bur my Wile
was reduced to thar Neceffity, that the begg’d at
Roufe’s Door, and craved fome Salary, and M.
Ronfe would not give her any ; and, faid he, mere
Neceflity drove me to it.

Colf, He found better Pay in another Place.

Mr. Ever. And, fays he, "us Scit- Prefervation 1n
the next place , for I was brought n guilty when
I was taken up, and therefore 1 was obliged to do
fome Things to fave my Life,

Coll. Pray, my Lord, and Gentlemen, obferve
what this Gentleman fays, Haynestakesthis Courfe to
deftroy innocent Perfons for his own Prefervation,

Mr, Ever. Belides, he told me there is a Judg-
ment impending upon the Nation, faid he, either
upon the King, or upon the People, 1 know not
which 5 but thele Iriflmes’s {wearing againft them,
is juftly fallen upon them for their Injuilice againft
the Iri/b in outing them of their Eftates,

Coll, So he did it then by way of Revenge ; for
his Countrymen; 1 hi.. ¢ nothing of their Eftates,
I am fure 5 therefore they had no Caule to fwear
againft me, But, Mr, Everard, bave you any
more to fay concerning any of them ¢

Mr, Ever. No more concerning thofe Perfons
that have fworn againft you 3 Ican fay no more,

Colledge, As to Dugdale or Turbervile ?

Mr. Ever. No, indeed,

Colledge.  As to this Prefbyterian Plot, Sir?

Mr, Ever. It the Court daes allow concerning
other Perfons 3 but I would not intrude any thing
but what the Court fhall think fit.

Colledge. 1 know not but they may come in a-
aain{t me; therefore pray tell what you know,
Mr, Everard, do you Know any thing more?
' Pray let me know what you know.

Mr. Ever. Nothing of any Perfon that has ap-
peared againft you as yet, but what I have told you.

Colledge. They may do, Sir.

L. C. . And then we may propetly hear him
to them, and not before,

Colledge. 1 defire to know who they are ; pray
let me know their Names.

Mr, Everard. Fitz-gerald,

L. C. 7. He hath been no Witnels here,

Colledge,  Call Thomas Parkburii.

L. C.’f. What do you afk him now he is here?

Colledge, 'What do you know concerning Mr.
Dugdale 2
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Mr, Park. Sir, the latterend of the Jalt Novembey,
whenthe Parliament favat 77effminfter, feveral times
Mr., Dugdale having promifed me his further Narrg-
tive to publifh, which he printed, 1 mer him feve-
ral times ; one time I met him at Richard®s Coffee-
houfe, and it was towards the Evening before we
wentaway s he told me and Mr, Symonds, that he
was to fpeak with Dr. Tongne 5 and he told us, thag
this Dr. Tongue did lic at Mr. Cofledze’sy and he
having {poke the Day before, and feveral times, of
the Danger he was in of his betngaffaflinated by the
Papifts, Mr. Symonds and I offered to go with him,
and we took a Coach 3 for we did not know where
Mr, Colledge lived: He had then a Rheum in his
Kyes, and was not well; {o we accompanied him to
Mr. Colledge’s to fpeak to Dr. Tongue, It was the
Evening when we went s and whilft we took a Pipe
of Tobacco, in our Difcourfe we were fpeaking of
the Times, and the Danger of the Papifts; fo ol
ledge ook down a Steel-Hat, that hung up there,
which he faid he bad, and he faid he had a quilted
Coat of defenfive Armour, and he faid he had a
Blunderbufls in his Houfe, and two Piftols. But I
little thought of any thing of this, reither did I
know well what I was fubpaena’d down for: Bug
thele Arms [ faw in his Houle, and it was only in
Dilcour{e that he was provided againft the Papifts 5
fo I put the Stecl-Harupon my Head, and pulled
it off again, and fo did Mr., Symouds.

Coll. Did I fay any thing, Sir, who I had thofe
Arms againlt?

Mr. Paik. At that Time there was no Difceurfe

in the World, but of the Danger of the Papiits 5
and he faid he was provided for them, if they did

* come to make any Difturbance,

L, C.%. When was it, Sir?

Mr. Park, Tt was about the latter end of Nevember,
I'have the Narrative that I printed, which was the
22d or 24th, and I have no Direions but that to
remember the exact Time. So we carried Mr,
Dugdale home again in a Coach, and gave hima
Pint of Wine at his Lodgings,

L.C.7. Thisdocs not contradict Mr. Dugdaleatall.

Mr. Park, Mr. Dugdale docs own this for a Truth.

Mr. Serj. Feff. So may any body own it.

Coll. Where 1s Mr. Symonds 2 Pray, Sir, what
do you know of Dugdale ?

M, Symonds. What about, Sii?

Coll. T have your Name here, Sir, but I know
not for what.

Mr.Symonds. I can{ay the fame that Mr, Parkbuift
did 5 that I fuppofe isthe Bufinefs, All I know of it
is this 5 1 was with Mr. Parkburft and Mr, Dugdale
at Richard’s Coffee-houfe fome time in November, |
think it was about the printing of Mr, Dugdale’s
further Intormation ; and Mr. Dudgale was faying,
Dr. Joigue haa fent for him, but fpoke as if he
was fearful of fome Danger in going alone; fo we
profiered to go along with him, and we tock 2
Coach at the Coftee-houfe Door, and went with
himto Dr, Tongre, who lodged at Mr. Colledse's.
W hen we came Intothe Room, Mr, Parkburft and 1
thought fit we fhould in Civility withdraw, which
we did ; and Mr, Colledge brought us down into ano-
ther Room, where we fat and took a Pipe of To-
biacco, and talking about the common Difcourfe of
the Times, about the Papifts, and the Danger from
them, there hung up in Mr. Colledge’s Room fome
Arms 5 what they were, ] dare not charge my Me-
mory with to fwear particularly 3 but 1 do think
there was a Silk Coat of Mail, and there was a Cap

of Steel, and as] take it, it was covered wicth Cloth,
I or
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or fome fuch thing, what elle I can’t well fay; [
think there was 2 Blonderbufs and a Cale of Piftols.
And all the Difcourfe that I remember then, was
only this, {peaking of the Papifts, and fome Fears
as if there would be an Infurretion amongit them,
(id he, Let the Papift Rogues begin when they
will, I am ready to defend mylelf for one. "This
is all I know.

Coll. Pray, Sir, how long ago was this? Dr.
Tongue died before Chriftmas at my Houte.

Mr. Sym. 1 cannot tell exactly when it was 5 but
during the Seffion of Parliament I am fure it was,
nd as I take it, in November, the latter end.

Coll.  So then, pray, my Lord, lce that thefe
Arms they charge me withal, were provided before
Chriftmas. _ ‘

L. C.¥. But there is nothing that contradifts
Dugdale’s Teftimony in all this,

Coll. Tt does fufficiently contradict him.

L.C.¥. I donot feethar this doesat all contradi&t
what he hath faid ; but do you oblerve what you
will upon it, when you come to make your Defence.

Stranger. A Gentleman below delires you to call
N, Fales.

Coll. Pray, Sir, what do you know concerning
Dugdale ?

Mr. Yates. I know that Mr. Dugdale fent for me
0 2 Coffee-houfe to befpeak a Piltol for you, and
rold me, that when 1 had made the Paftol, 1 thould
deliver it to Mr. Celledge, and Mr. Dugdale pro-
mifed to pay for it when I had done it,  Now
fome Time after I did fome fmall Matter for Mr.,
Dugdale, cleaned his Piftols, or fome {mall Bufi-
nefs, and Mr. Dugdale atked me, if I would have
a Pint of Wine, which 1 agreed to 3 and being at
the Tavern, Mr. Dugdale afked me, if Mr, Colledge’s
Pittol was done. 1told him, no, it was not, as yet, So
1 atked Mr. Dugdale, becaufe he had promifed to
aive Mr. Colledze a Piftol, what Obligation there
was betwixt Colledze and him, that he fhould give
him a Piftol? T'o which he anfwered, that Mr, Col-
ledee had been ferviceable to him, in lending him a
Pair of Piftols to ride withal fometimes : So he gave
him a Piftol to fatisty htm for the wearing of his Pi-
ftols now and then. Ithoughe, faid I, Mr. Colledge
did impofe upon your Good- Nature too much, not
but that I believe Mr. Colledge isa very honelt Man,
and “ftands up for the Good of the King and the
Government, Yes, fatd Mr. Dugdale, 1 believe he
docs, and I know nothing to the contrary,

My, Ait. Gen, When was this ¢

Mr. Zates. A Tietle after the Parliament fat at
Oxford ; for 1 never knew Mr. Colledge before
Mr. Dugdale fet me at Work for him.

Coll. M. Yates, pray, was there nothing In the
Coffee-houfe about one that he afked to go with
him, when he faid he koew nothing againit me?

Mr, Zates. 1 heard one fay

Mr. Ser]. Feff- You muft fpeak your own Know-
ledge, you mult not tell a Taleof a Tub of what you
heard one fay.

Mr. Yutes. 1 heard it affirmed——

M, Serj. Feff. By whom?

Mr. Yates. By a Perfon in the Coffee-houfe,

Mr, Ser}. Feff. Who was that Perfon ¢

Mr. Yates. By one of the Servants of the Houfe.

L. C. ¥. Thisis noEvidence atall ; if you know
any thing of your own Knowledge, fpeak it

Mr, Serj. Feff. Is he here? .

Mr, 2ates., No, I think not.

Mr, J. Fones. How long do you think muft we
- fit here to hear other Peoples Stories ¢

Vor. III.
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L. C. 7. If you know any thing of your own
Knowledge, I fay, fpeak it.
Mr. Au. Gen, Pray let me afk you that Quelti-
on again; When was this that he faid he believed
he was an honeft Man?

Mr, Zates. It was about three Weeks after the
Parliament at Oxford.
Coll. 'Then he does me Wrong now ; for if I

were an honeft Man ther, it cannot be rrue that he
fays of me.

L. C. ¥. Who do you call next?

Coll.  Pray, my Lord, who hath been {worn
againft me?

L. C. . There s Stephen Dugdale, Fobn Smith,
Bryar Haynes, Edward Turbervile, Siv IWilliam
Jennings, and Mr, Mafters.

Coll. Call Mr, Clayton. My Lord, at his Houfe
it was I lay in Oxford, and that Dugdale fays 1
{pake fome of the treafonable Words.  Pray, Sir,
do you know what Time I came to Oxford ¢

Mr. Clayton. I remember it very well, it wasat
the Time the Parliament fat at Oxford, about two
or three Days after it began.

(;alf. Pray what Armsdid 1 bring to your Houlfe,
Sire

Mr. Claston. As to the Marter of Arms, there
was no other but a Sword and a Pair of Piftols, a
Pair of Piftols in his Holfters, and his Sword by
his Side,

M. dit, Gen.  Was there no Silk-Armour?

Mr. Clayton. I {aw none, if it pleale you s fuch
a thing might be.

Coll. My Lord, I continued at his Houf: from
my coming i to my going out, and that was till
afcer the Parliament was diffolved 3 and 1 came
afrer they were fat: But hark you, Mr. Clayton,
Mr., Drgdale fays, he was with me at your Houle,
did you ever fee him there?

Mr. Clayton, I remember I have feen Dugdale
at my Houfe, but nevenin your Company.

Coll. Did you fetl any Mom ?

Mr. Clayton. No, I never did fell any in my Lite.

Coll. Becaule he fays, we had Mum there.

Mr. Clayton. T never faw him there with you,
not changed a Word with him, as I know of,

L.C.7. Was he never in the Company of Col-
ledge at your Houfe 2

Mr. Clayton. Not that I faw.

Mr. Juft, Founes. You don’t know all the Com-
panies that come mto your Houfe.

Coll, My Lord, I am told there are fome that
came from the Town where [ was born, that know
me, and have known me for 2.4 or 25 Years to-
oether s if you think that material for me to prove
whether I am a Proteftant or no,

L. C. 7. If you will make that out, you may.
But ’tis your Loyalty that is in Queftion. If you
will produce any that can make it appear, that you
ufe to honour thg King in your Difcourfes, or {o,
that is fomething, -

Coll, If Tam a Proteftant, then the Delign 1s
plain, thefe Men fwear to make a Proteftant Plot,
and turn the Plot off the Papifts.

Mr. Serj. Feff. What Church do you frequent
in London, to hear Divine Service?

Coll. I have received the Sacrament feveral times,
Sir George.

. Mr. Serj. Feff. When were you laft at the publick
Church ?

.Coll. 1 hope 1 may bea Proteftant if 1 have

not gone thither 5 but however, -1 do ufe to go to
.Church. '

D d.d 1.C.5.
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£.C. . Well, call whom you will,

Coll, s Thomas Deacon there?

Mr. Deacon. Yes.

Coll, Helives, my Lord, in the Parith where
I was born. If you pleafe, Mr. Deacon, to give
my Lord an Account what you know of me from
my Childhood ¢

Mr. Deacon. 1 have known Mr, Colledge ever
fince he was a Youth, he was born in the Town
where 1 live.

L.C. 7. Where isthat?

Mr. Deacon. AtHatford, a Town in Herlford-
fhire. There he lived till he was a Man, and
married a Neighbour’s Daughter of mine, and
lived there while he had two Chiuldren ; T never
knew but that he was a very honeft Mar, trequented
and kept to the Church of England all along, and
paid every Man his own,

My, Ait. Gen, How long 1s it ago fince he left
that Place?

Mr. Deacon, 1 can’c direétly tell how long it is,
traly, but I think ’tis eighteen Years {ince you left
Watford,

Coll. ’Tis fourteen Years ago,

Mr, Juft, Fones. You fay fourteen, and they fay
eighteen.

Mr. Deacon. 11ay, 1 can’t exactly tell,

Coll. But, Mr. Deaconr, T have been in your
Country lately.

Mr. Deacon. He ufed to come there once or
twice a Year generally to fee his Friends, I have
heard him declare himfelf againtt the Popith
Church always very much,

L.C. ¥. B you never heai him talk againit
the Government !

Mr, Deacon. No, never in my Lafe.

Mr. Serj. Feff. Nor againft the King ?

Mr. Deacon, Nor againft the King,

Mr, J. Fones, Was he in your Country the laft
Eafler 2

Mr, Deacon, I think it was about Eaffer he was
there.

Mr, Juftice Foires. Was he at Church there then,
and received the Sacrament ?

Mr, Deacon, 1 knov. not whether he was there
on the Lord’s Day or no: He did quarter at ano-
ther Town, at Bufby, where he has a Brother-in-
Law.

L.C.F. Well, call another.

Coll. Mr, Wintaker.

L. C.#. What is your Chriftian Name?

Mr. IZhit. William.

L. C. 7. What doyou afk of him?

Coll. Whether he knows me and my Education?

Mr. Whitaker. Sir, T have known him this 26
Years: I knew his Parents, I know his Mother,
fhe lives now at Patford: 1 have known his Beha-
viour to be very civil and good; a very good
Church-man he was when he lix;_ed with s 3 and I
have enquired, and find he has the fame Reputati-
on in the Parith where he laft lived in Black- Fricrs
He was no Jefuit nor Papift, I dare aver; he hath
flouted them and mocked them with their wooden
Gods, and the like ; for he could never endure that
Perfuafion.

L, C.7F. He is not queftioned for that, but for
Treafon.

Colledge, Did you ever hear me fpeak any thing
againft the Government ¢

Mr, hit, 1 never knew any ill Behaviour of
him in my Life.

Coll. But did you ever hear me fay any thing
againft his Majefty or the Government ?

——
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Mr, 77bit, Never, that T know of 1 knew
him a Soldier for his Majefty, in which Service he
oot a Fir of Sicknefs, which had like to have
coft him his Lile 5 he lay many Months ill, to his
areat Charge.

Mr. Serj. Feff.
Majelly’s Service ?

Mr. iVt At Coatham Balinefs.

Coll. it was under my Lord Rochefler. But,
my Lord, 1 have a Teftimonial under the Hands
of feventy People of I7atford, to give an Accourt
of my good Behaviour.

Mr, Juftice Fones. He hath been aone thenes
thele eighteen Years,

Mr. bit. He hath come there almolt every
half Year, fometimes three or four times ina Yeur,
becaufe his Mother lives there now, and he came
to pay his Refpects to her.  His Childien Jive
and went to School with us.

L.C. ¥. Come, who do you call ¢lft ?

Colf.  Mr. Negle.

Mr, Neale, 1 can {ay no more than the other
Vlen before me. I know the Man, he was bred
and born at WZatford, he lived there feveral Years,
he married a Wite out of the Neighbourhood, fre-
quented the publick Worlhip,

L.C.’f. How long ugo is this ?

Mr. Neale. Sixteen or feventeen Years aco.
But then he ufed to come once or rwice a Yeur
into the Country,

Golleage. Did you ever hear me fpeak any thing
againit the King or the Government ?

Mr. Neale, No, never in my Life.

Coll. How long is it ago fince you were in my
Company laft? '

Mr, Neale. When you were in Town laft, |
never heard you fay any thing that was ili,

Coll. How long ago is it fince we were at the
IV bte-Hart together ?

Mr. Neale, It was about Spring.

Coll, I faid right, my Lord, I was there about
Eaffer.  Pray, did youever hear me fpeak for the
Kipng ?

Mr. Neale, Truly, the Difcourfe we had |
never uled to keep in my Mird s but [ never heard
him fpeak any thing againft the King or the Go-
vernment, |

L.C. 7. Were you much converfant wich him?

Mr. Neale, When he came down 1o give his
Mother a Vifit, and fee his Neighbours, we ufed
always to lce one another,

Coiledge. Pray, will you call Mr, Tanzer and
Mr. Remington,

Where was it he was in his

[Mr: Remington flosd up.)

Mr, Remington. 1 fay, 1 have known Stephen
Colleage thele forty Years, and 1 have kiown
that he always was an honeft Man, He was a
Soldier fome Time, bur he always went to Chureh,
was no Conventicler 5 and ufed to vifit his Neigin-
bours when he came down to fee his Mother,
and was always looked upon to be a very good
Man, '

Mr. Serj. Feff. You fay, you knew him a Sol-
dier, pray when was that?

Mr. Remington. About the Time of Harswich
Bulinets.  Thatis all I can fay,

[Then Mer. Tanner ftood 1p.]

LC? . Come, what fay you? What do you
afk him, Mr. Colledge ? -

Mr, Tanner.
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Mr. Tanner, 1 have known Siepben Colledge fome Reafons I know not,  Pray call Mr. Thomas

from a Child Forty Years, he was born at
Watford, his Father worked with my Father,
and great intimate Acquaintance we had with
him, and faw him very often; I never knew
any Fault in him, and I never heard a bad Re-
port of him in all the Town of Waiford.

Mr. Serj. Fefferies. Have you feen him at
Church Jately ¢

Mr., Tanner. No, 1 have not.

Mr, At Gen, 1 would fain know whether this
Man hath been at Church himielf'; he looks as if
he had nor,

Colledge. 1 know not whether he hath been at
the Church you mean, or no; but he may be an
honeft Man and a Proteftant for all thac,

L.C.J. Call another.

Colledge, Nr. Peler Novreys,

L.C.J. What do youafk him, Mr. Colledge ?
here he 1s,

Colledge. Do you know any thing concerning
Mr., Smith 2

Mr. Norreys. I was once in the Hercules
Pillars, where was Sw IPulliam IWaller, Macna-
marra, Mr. vy, and five or fix of us toge-
ther: And Mr. Suith was there, and we were
tatking concerning the Parliament approaching at
Oxon,

Mr., Serj. Fefferies. Tell the Names of the
reft,

Mr. Norrevs. Siv Jilliam IWaller, Macnamarra,
Mr, Ivy, Lewes, Maciamarra’s Brother, and 1,
and Mr, Smith.

Mr, Serj. Feff. Well faid 5 we don’t meddle
with any of thefe, but Mr. Smith.

L. C. F. Was Fobu Smith there ?

Mr. Norireys. Ele was there,

L.C. . Well, go on then.

Mr. Norreys. We were talking of the Parlia-
ment at Oxoir: Says Sir IWilliam Waller, Moft of
the Parllament-men are afraid to go up to the
Parlament.  Truly, faid Mr. Smith, I hope they
will be provided to go, if they do go. Says Sir
William IWailery T fhall be provided with the reft
of my Friends : And Mr., Cilledge faid, T will go
up with the reft of the Parliament-men ; T fhall be
provided too, fays moft of the Evidence: Says
Sirt William Waller, Will you go along with me,
and I will provide you with an Horle? Said he,
I have a Horfe of my own, and if it pleafe God
I will have nothing elfz to do, but to go with
the Parliament, and I will not negle& it. "This
was all the Dilcourfe of the Company for that
Night,

Colledge. Did you hear Mr, Smith fay any
- thing againft me?

Mr. Norieys. No, not a Word atall,

Colledze.  Bur this were a material Evidence
agamnit others of the Confederates, if they had been
examined.

Mr, Norreys. Wiy Lord, I was at the Amfterdan-

Coffee-Houle the twenty third of Fuse laft, and
there was Mr, Denis Maciamarra 3 faid he, Will
you go, and I will give you a Pot of Ale,
- L.C. 7. There is nothing of Denis Macnamarra
in Queftion before us.  If you bave any thing to
fay againft any of the Witnefles that have been
fworn, go on with vour Evidence, we muft not
hear Stories of other People.

Colledge.  IHe would fpeak againft fome Men

that have fworn againft me, but are left out, for
Vor, III.

Norreys.

L. C. 7. What do you afk him?

Colledge. My Lord, he knew me in this Coun-
try fome fifteen or fixteen Years ago.

Mr. 7. Nerreys. My Lord, I have been ac-
quainted with Mr, Colledge about fixteen or eigh-
teen Years, and he hath always carried himfelf
very civilly and well, and he kept to the Church
for a confiderable T'ime, as duly as any Parifhioner
did.

L. C.#. How long have you known him?

Mr, 7. Norreys, This fixieen Years,

L. C. 7. You live in this Country, don’t
you ¢

Mr. . Norreys. Yes, at Aylworth,

Colledge, 1 was at Aftrop-Wells laft Year. [ be-
lieve Mr., Jultice Levinz faw me there,

Mr. 7. Norreys. Yes, I was there with you,

Colledge, We did difcourfe commonly then con-
cerning the Papifts, Pray, Sir, did you find me
inclined to the Popifh Intereft 2

Mr. 9. Norreys. You fpoke very much againtt
them.

Colledge,  Did you ever hear me {peak againft
the King or the Government ?

Mr. 1. Norreys, No, 1 never heard it for if
he were my Brother, I fhould have difcovered it

L. C. 7. How often have you feen him ?

Mr. 7. Norreys. Very often, and converfed
much with him,

Colledge. My Lord, as to the Papers charged
upon me that they were mine, [declare I know
not of them, Dugdale fays, I owned them, and
the Letter and feveral Prints ; but truly, my
Lord, I had done myfelf a great Injury if I had
done or owned thofe Things be hath charged me
withal. I never could make a Pifture, nor ne-
ver did draw a Picture in my Life 5 and that very
Perfon that he fays I owned I got it to be printed
by, hath denied it before the King and Council ;
for he there teftified, that he did not know the
Perfon that caufed it to be printed,

L.C.¥. How came you to shave fo many
feized in your Houfe?

Colledge, My Lord, here is Elizabeth Hunt,
the Maid by whom they were taken in, and
who can give you an Account of it. I cannor
deny but that they were in my Houfe; but that
I was the Author, or did take them in, is as greac
a Miftake as ever was made. Call Elizabeth
Huit. 1 do not know whether Custis be in Town ;
but this I am confident, he was examined before
the King and Council, and he and his Wife de-
nied it

L. C. ¥. He thall be called if he be here.

Colledge. 1 know nothing of the printing of
them, nor was I the Author of them.

L.C. 7. They were difperfed by you up and
down.

Colledge. "That they were in my Houfe, I be-
lieve, my Lord ;5 and this Woman will tell you
how, my Lord, Pray tell the Court how thefe
Papers that are called the Rary Shew came to be
in my Houfe.

El, Hunt. A Porter brought three Bundles to
our Houfe, and afked, wherher my Malter was
not within, I told him, no, he was not. Said
he, Thefe Papers are to be left here; faid [, Who
do they come from? faid he, ’tis all one for that,

you muft pay me, and I mull leave them here 5
Ddd> {o
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fo T gave him fix Pence, and he left the Papers,
but I never faw the Man fince nor before, And,
my Lord, I never fead them what they were,
but I faw they were fuch Sort of Prints as thofe.

L. C. ¥. How long was it before they were
feized?

El Hunt. A matter of feven or eight Weeks,

Colledge. My Lord, it feems they were put in
a Box and left in my Compting-Houfe: I never
touched them, but there they ftaid, for ought I
know, till they were taken.

L.C. F. You were Colledge’s Servant, were you
not ?

El Hunt. Yes, my Lord.

Colledge. My Lord, I never knew the Printer
nor the Author ; but I heard a Man was 1n Trou-
ble about them, upon a By-Law in the Stazioners
Company. o

Mr. A, Gen. How came you by that Origi-
nal ¢
" Colledge. Have you it there ? T know of none
was produced, But if I were a Perfon concern-
ed, it were no Treafon, and, my Lord, I hope
you will do me that Juftice, to let the Jury know
they are not Treafon, none of thefe Papers,  And
I do declare T know nothing of the Original, the
Printer, nor the Author,

-L. C. ¥. You {pend Time in making Obferva-
tions out of Order of Time: When you have
given your Evidence, then make your Obferva-
Lions.

Colledze, 1 confefs, I may err, as to Matter
of Order, for I never was in this Capacity be-
fore. Bat, pray, do you tell the Court how the
Papers came there, and all the Tranfactions. For
I was a Prifoner when they came and fearched.

L.C.F. No, it was eight Weeks before you
were taken they were left there.

Mr. Sery. 7eff. Did you not tell your Mafter
foon after they were left there.

El, Hunt. No,
Mr. Serj, Feff. Within what Time did you

tell him?
- Ef Hunt,
night,

Mr. Ait. Gen, Where was your Mafter all that
Time ?

Ll Hunt. He was in the Country,

Colledge. My Lord, Idid fee them there, I
mult confefs, I do not deny but I faw them
there, but 1 knew not whence they came, nor
whofe they were. Nor did 1 ever intend to
meddle with them, nor concern myfelf about
them. What have you to fay more?

£l Hunt, Concerning Mr, Dugdale, 1if 1 may

fpeak.

L C.F. Ay, goon,
El Hunt. 1 went to receive the Money of Mr:

Dugdale that he owed my Mafter, and afking
him for it, he faid, he would pay me fuch a- Time
to morrow Morning, if I would come for it 5 but
when 1 came, he had not the Money ready for
me. Sir, faid I, 1 think ’tis very hard that you
fhould keep my Mafter’s Money from him, and
yet you go and fwear againft his Lafe too: What
do you think we fhall do at home in the Family,
if you keep my Malter’s Money, and he be in
Prifon ? Said he, There is a greatr deal of do a-
bout my Swearing againft your Mafter, more
than needs ; but as I hope for Salvation, I do
not believe Mr, Colledge had any more Hand in

I believe - was 2 Week or a Fort-
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any Confpiracy againft his Majefty, than the
Child unborn,  Here is Dugdale, let him deny it

if he can,

Mr. Dugdale.  As 1 hope for Salvation I dig
not fay fo,

El. Hunt.  Upon my Salvation ’tis true what
fay

Stevens. This was the Maid that hid her Maf.
ter’s Papers when they were fearched for,

Mr., Ser). Feffertes. Be quiet 3 art thoy aot Into
Dialogues with the Maid now ?

Colleage.  Mr, Stevens, ’tis well known whar a
Man you are to propagate Wrneffes. My Lord,
fhe gave me an Account of this in the Tower, be.
fore I came away, that Dugdale defired to ipealc
with Mr. Smith, and told her, that rnothing that
he had to fay would touch my Life,

El Hunt.  As 1 am alive ’tis crue,

L. C.F. Mr. Dugdale denies it now.

El. Hunt, He is not a right Man if he denjes
it, for he told me it twice,

Colledge. I told Mr, Smith of it, when he had
leave to come o me: I told him what the
Maid faid he had to fay to her, and this was
three Weeks ago 5 faid he, I wil] Ipeak with him
with all my Heart, if he has a Mind to fpeak with
me 5 for he hath faid that he hath nothirg againtt
her Mafter that he can touch an Hair of his Head,
nor nothing that can twuch his Lile, that he
knew nothing of a Plor or Contrivance againft
the King 5 and if I could help it, I had as lieve
have given a hundred Pounds T had never fpoken
what [ have. This he faid to her.

L.C.7. Youtell her what to fay.

El, Hunt, Sir, he does not tell me 3 for Mr.
Dugdale faid thofe very Things to me.

Colledge. This is an Account T had when I was
Prifoner 5 1 could not direét her,

L. C. 7. Do you deny what they fay to be
true, Mr, Dugdale ¢

Mr, Dugdale, My Lord, fhe came to me for
Money 3 I told her I had it not ready, but would
pay her : And in the Shop, before the Appren-
tice-Boy, fhe defired of me that 1 would write
two or three Words what I would fay againft her
Mafter 5 and I told Mr. Grabam of 'it, So, faid
I, I cannot tell, T have not the Papers, nor
what Informations I have given againft him. So
fhe came again the next Morning, and fhe was
at me to write down what [ faid, I wonder, faid
I, your Mafter will fend you! had not he as
good lend Mr. Smith, who is his Counfel ? And
this was all the Words we had,

El. Huit. My Lord, Ido folemnly affure you,
he faid he would write down what he had faid
againft my Mafter, and would fain {peak with
Mr. Smith 5 for there was more ado made about
it than needs.

Mr. Dugdale. Mr. Grabam can tell what it was 3
for I came and told him immediarely.

L. C. 7. Did you tell her you had nothing to
fay agairlt her Mafter that would touch his Liie?

Mr. Dugdale, 1 cenld not fay that 1 had faid
nothing againft her Mafter 5 for fhe atked me
that I would write down what [ had faid 5 but I
told her I knew not what was Treafon, that muft
be referred to the Court,

Mr. Juftice Fones. Did he fpeak it openly or
privately to you ¢

£l Hrat, He did not fpeak it loud 3 no Body
heard him but myfelf. | |
Mr. Dugdalr

I
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Mr. Dugdale. It was in the Shop, and the Ap-

prentice-Bny was by, '
Mr. Juft. Levinz. Was this after he had been

at the Old Baily, or before?
El Hunt. Yes, it was after he had been at the

Old Baily, and after he had been at Oxon too.

Mr. Juit. Levinz, Then it was before the Court,
what could be made of 1t ¢

Coll, She hath gone forty Times for the Mo-
ney I lent him out of ray Pocket; and I lent him
that, when I had little more myfelf,

El Hunt. 1 did tell him, Mr. Dugdale, 1f
you can’t let me have my Maiter’s Moncy, if you
pleafe to tell me what you have made Oath a-
gainft my Malfter.  Suid he, I can’t let thee have
it now 3 but thou fhalt have what I have to fay
againft him : I will draw it up in Writing, and
thou fhale have it to morrow Morning, The
next Morning I came to him again, and, faid I,
I am come again 3 what mult I do? Said he, I
have no Money 3 fuch an one hath not helped me
toit. Sir, then faid 1, 1hope youwill be as good
as your Word, to ler me know what you have
made Oath againft my Mafter. Said he, 1 was
abour it Yefterday, but could not do 1r: But,
Swectheart, faid he, (and took me by the Hand)
I will give youa Copy of it to Day at ten of the
Clock ; and 1f T do not; I will tell 1t thee by
Word of Mouth, So I came to the Houle at ten,
and ftard till eleven, but did not {ee him.

Mr, Jult. Founes. You had a great Mind to be
tampering,

Il Hunt,  The firk Time, he afked me who
was his Counfel 5 I told him, Mr. Smith 3 then,
faid he, I have a great delire to fpeak with him,
So I told my Mafter of it.

Colledge. My Lord, you fee it is but black and
white, all this whole Contrivance upon me. She
hath proved 1 knew nothing of the Papers ; and
indeed I did not.

L. C. 7. Do you call any more Witneffes ?

Colledge.  There is my Brother-in-Law that re-
ceived thofe Papers.  Call George Spur and Sarab
Goodwin,

[Mrs. Goodwin appeared,]

Colledge. Do you know any Thing of the Pa-
pers that were carried to my Brother George
Spit’s 2

Mrs, Goodwin., Yes, 1do. The Saturday af-
ter my Brother’s Confinement, about eight of the
Clock in the Morning, I having heard of it
came mnto the Houfe, and in a quarter of an
Hour’s Time, in comes a Waterman and defires an
handful or two of Shavings, I knowing not who
he was, nor what he defired them for, told him,
he fhould have them ; fo he went up to the
working Shop to gather them, for he pretended
that to be his Bulinefs.

L. C.F. Whofe Waterman was it ?

Mrs, Goodwin. A Waterman I fuppofe that
belonged to his Majelty, for he had a Ceat
marked with R. C.

Colledge.  This is after I was in Cuftody.

Mis, Goodwin.  Yes, it was the Saturday after.
50 no fooner had he the Shavings, but he gocs
out of the Shop, and comes in again with three
of his Majefty’s Meffengers ; and they made en-

quiry after Papers, and I being innocent of con:

Cealing any Papers or any Thing, faid, 1know of
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none ; {o they came to one Box that had the
Tools for the Men to work with, and they de-
manded the Keys. I told him I knew not where
the Keys were, So they went to the next, and
found it open, but nothing did they find there ;
there was a Bed wherein formerly my Brother’s
Servants did lie : Said one to the other, Look
well whether there be not fomething hid in that
Bed ; faid I, I fuppofe there is no fuch Thing as
you enquite for : If you pleafe, you may take off
the Clothes, and gave them free Toleration to
look 3 but for the Cheft, T would not deliver the
Keys, becaufe the Man was not there that owned
it. In their fearching, they flung down the Wainf-
cot, and did a great deal of Damage to his
Goods. Gentlemen, faid 1, I fuppofe you have Order
to fearch, but none to fpoil a Man’s Goods, When
they were gone, having found none, they threat-
ned, God damn them they would have them, for
there they were, But I being ignorant of the
Concealment of the Papers, I requefted the Maid
and my Brother’s Son, whether thev knew of any
Papers, and they fatisfied me they knew of fome
Prints that were brought by a Porter, to be left
at my Brother’s, but they knew not whence they
came, nor what they were : And the fame An-
fwer gave my Brother’s Son, that he did not know
whole the Papers were. But (ince his Father’s
Confinement they were laid up fure and fafe, for
they knew not what they concerned. Upon this,
my Lord, my Brother-in-law, George Spur, he
comes into the Houle, and if it pleafe your Ho-
nour, I requefted him to carry them into the
Country to his Houfe, to fccure them till we
knew what they did concern, and who they did
belong to. 'Wherenpon he replied, my Lord,
That he was fearful to carry any Thing out of the
Houfe ; faid I, if you will pleafe to take them of
me, I will carry them out of the Houfe for your
Security, becaufe his Wife looked every Hour
(being with Child) when the thould be delivered,
and he was fearful of troubling her. So I carried
them out of the Houfe, and delivered them to him.

L.C.¥. To whom?

Mrs. Gaoodwin. To my Brother-in law Mr.
George Spur,  So at my going out, after 1 had de-
hvered them to him, in my Way back again, I
found a fmall Paper-Book, and a fmall Parcel of
Writings ; who dropped them, or who laid them
there, 1 cannot tell, Bur taking them up unad-
viledly, 1 put them among the Prints which I
carrted out, I delivered them to my Brother-in-
law., This 1s all I have to fay as to the Papers.

Stevens. Three Parts of what fhe hath faid
is falfe,

Mr. Serj. Feff. Well, hold you your Tongue.

Stevens, Mr., Atterbury 1s here, my Lord, that
fearched the Houfe,

Atterbury.  Be pleafed to give me my Oath, I
will tell you what pafied.

Mr. At Gen, We don’t think it matetial, but
you wete {worn before, {tand up.

L. C. ¥. Tell the Manner of finding the Pa-
pers. This Womah gives us an Account of a
Waterman that came in, pretending to fetch
Shavings.

Atterbury. Upon my Oath it was not fo. The
Waterman was a Waterman that brought me and
two more of my Fellows, and the Waterman fol-
lowed us into the Yard, but came after us : And

being ordered to look for Papers, I did fearch the
Houle s
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Houle; for I had Intelligence that there were
Papers there, but I did not find them there.
Bur upon finding the firft Papers, I made the
more diligent Search, but could not find the reft
I moft chiefly foughe after.

M. Serj. Fefferies. Did the King’s Waterman
take any Shavings by himfelf?

Atterbury, We were all together, we did not
move out of any one Room, but together 5 this
Gentlewoman was in the Houfe when I came, and
there was a little Child, a Girl, and this Maid was
there,

Mr, Serj, 7eff. Did you come for Shavings
there, pray, Mr, Atterbury ?

Atterbury.,  No, 1 did not.

Mrs, Goodwin. 'The Waterman did though firlt.

Colledge, Call George Spur. (But he did not
appear.) But Mr, Atterbury, before you go down,
pray tell the Court, did you take any of thefe Pa-
pers at my Houle, or at my Brother-in-Law Spu7’s
Houfe?

Sewel. My Lord, I took the Papers, and [
tock them at Bufby at Spui’s Houfe.  And this
Woman carried out one half to Spur, and the
Muaid carried out the other,

L. C.7. Whendid he carry them?

Mrs, Goodzoin, The {ame Day they fearched for
them, for my Brother came in at the fame Time,

L.C.F. How doyouknow Spurcarried any away?

Mrs, Goodwin., He carried none out of the
Houle, I carried them out of the Houle, and de-
livered them to him.

L.C. 7. Thenthey were in your Houfe?

Mrs. Goodwin, They were in the Compting-
houfe,

Colledpe. My Lord, if they were in any other
Place, 1 know not how they came there, for this
was all done after I wasa Prifoner; and Sewel fays,
they were removed when 1 wasa Prifoner, Where
15 George Spur ¢

Mz, Sery. Fefferies. It 1s admutted they were at
your Houle, and taken thences and alterwards
carried to Spuis.

Colledge, They carried them abroad, and hand-
ed them from one to another, and took them into
the Country, I know not what they did with them .
But, my Lord, 1 ncither know the Printer, nor
the Author, I declare it upon my Life,

L. C. %. Have you any more Witnefles ?

Colledge. No, my Lord, I have not.

L. C.¥. Will you that are of Council for the
King call any more

My, Ait. Gen. One or two, if you pleale, my
Lord. Call Fobu Siirland. Anditis to this Pur-
pofe; it feems very lately Mr. Bolren would have
tempted him to have forfworn himfelf,

Colledge. My Lord, I hope if they bring in any
Perfons of new Evidence, I may have leave to

contradict them,
L.C.¥. You necd not fear but you {hall be

heard to them.
My, Ait. Geir.  We fhall prove Bolron to be a

Suborner of Witnefles ; and that the Jury may
know what he 1s, he and Aewbray have gone to
give Evidence at feveral Trials, and the Jury
would never beheve ™ them when they were on

their Qaths,
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Mr. Ser}. Fefferies. 1think it needs not, Time
hath been fpent enough already.

Colledge. No Whifpering, good my Lord,

Mr, G. feff. Good M. Colledge, you are not
to tell me my Duty here,

M, Jult. Fomes. 1s it not lawful for the King’s
Council to confer together?

Colledge. Not to whifper, my Lord ; all ought
to be {poken out.

L. C.§. Nothingought to be faid to the Jury
indeed privately.

Mr. Att. Gen. But fhall not we talk among our
{elves ?

Colledge. No, 1 hope not, of any thing that
concerns my Trial,

Mr. Juft. Fones. You are deceived in that,

Colledge. 1 think ’ts Law, that all ought to
be publick; I beg your Pardon, if I am in the
wrong,

My, Aitor, Gen,  Swear Fobn Shivland, (WWhich
was done,) Pray give the Court and the Jury an
Account of Balren, what you know of him,

Shirland, Bolron, my Lord, laft FVbi{;’&?J-??fﬁjl
day would have given me ten Pounds and a Horfe
to go down and {wear againft Sir Miles Stapleton,
I was to fwear I was {uborned by his Friends, and
feveral other Perfons, which 1 have difcovered
upon my Oath.

L. C.F. lsthis Man {worn?

Mr. Att Gen, Yus,

L. C. f. Now call Bolrou to confront him.

Colledge, He offered you an Horfe, as much
as | oficred Turbervile an Horfe, and I never offered
him an Horle 1n the World.

| Zben Bolron appeared.)

L. C. 7. Is this the Man, Shirland ?

Mr. Altor. Gen,  Did he give you ten Pounds
to fwear ?

Shirland. He bid me ten Pounds and an Horfe
to {wear againft Sir Miles Stapleton.

Mr. Jult. Foues. Did youever fee him, Bolron?

M. Bolroin. Yes, my Lord, he was to have
been a Witnels againft Sir Miles Stapleton, and he
pretended that he was fuborned by Sir Miles, or
fome of his Friends.

Colledge. What are you, Sir? Mr, Bolson, what
1s Mr, Shirland ?

Mr. Bolron. He 1sa Man that lives by his Shifts:
He hath been whipt in Bridewell,

Colledge. Do you know him, Sir? What is he?

Mr. Bolren. Even an idle Man.,

Shirlaid.  You, once when you faw me, drew
your Sword on me, becaufe 1 would not do as you
would have me,

Mr. Bolron. 1 profefs, my Lord, ’tis not {o.

Mr. Ait. Gen.  Here is Mr., Smith, hear what
he fays againft Mr, Bolyon,

Mr. Smith, As we were coming up along, he
was {peaking to me of Colledge, and told me,
he had as much to fay againft him as any body ;
and if I would fpeak for him, he would evidence
againlt Sir Jobir Brooks for a Difcourfe at Ferry-
bridge.

Mr. Boiion. 1 never did hear any fuch thing.

* What the Arrorney here fays, and the Sollicizor, in fumming up the Evidence, repeated after him, is notorioufly falfe;

for at the Summer-Affizes at York the Year before, Thomas Thavi

in their own Country, as was afterwards executed.
I

iz was convitted folely upen the Teftimony of thefe very Men

| Mr.
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Mr. Smith. No Man in your own Country

will believe you, '
Colledge. They believed you no more, it feems,

neither.

L.C.¥. Do you call any more Witnefles,

entlemen ?

Mr. Serj, Feff. No, I think we need not.

L. C.¥. Look you, Mr. Colledge, as I un-
derftand it, the King’s Council will produce no
more Witneffes. You may make what Oblerva-
tions you will upon the Evidence to the Court,
and then muft ler them make what Obfervations
they will to the Court ; and then we will give
the Charge to the Jury.

Cofledge. My Lord, I have only lInnocence to
plead ; I have no Flourifhes to fet off my De-
feace. 1 cannot taxe the Jury nor the Court
with an Oratory 5 Iam unhappy in thofe Things.
But, my Lord, I do declare, asto my own par-
ticular, in the Prefence of God Almighty, that
as to whatfoever is fworn againft me, as to the
jizing his Majelty, providing Arms, or having
any Delign either at Oxford or Londen, or any o-
ther Place in the World, to feize upon the Perfon
of the King, or to rebel againit the Government
eftablifhed ; I vow to God Almighty, 1 never had
fuch a Thought in me: *Tisa Truth, my Lord,
My Lord, they have {worn defperately againft
me, and it hath appeared, 1 think, by very cre-
dible Perfons, that they have contraditted one
another, It hath been proved that this was a De-
fign 3 that they were tampered withal 5 that they
complained they were 1 Poverty, that they
wanted Maintenance 3 and they did contels they
were tempted to come over to {wear againit Pro-
teftants : And now the Lord knows, they have
clofed with it, and they begin with me, I hope
the Jury have taken Notice, that I have contra-
di¢ted them fufficiently 1n what they have {worn ;
and that it 1s not poffible, if I had a Grain of
Senfe, for me to difcover mylelf to be fuch an
one to Haynes, that was an Jrifb Man, and fhould
fpeak all the Treafon that he hath gallopped
through at firft Sight, that as foon as ever I faw him,
that I fhould fpeak fo to him ; I hope you will
confider whether 1t confifts with common Reafon,
when there would be no Probability of making
any Ufe of him in the World, My Lord, all my
Winefles that I have brought, your Lordfhip
can, and I hope will fum them up better than I
can ; for I declare i, I have been fo concerned,
that 1 have not been able to write half of it
down, But I think there is never a Man that
hath fworn againft me, but hath been {ufficiently
confuted by Perfons of Integrity and Honefty,
Men of Principles, and Men of Religion 5 they
are fuch, my Lord, that make Conicience of
what they fay : They are Perfons altogether un-
known to me, moft of them, as to what they
had to fay, it was what they offered voluntarily ;
and I am certain they had nothing but their
bare Charges, if they had that, for their Pains
i coming hither 5 and, my Lord, there 15 no
Probability that they fhould come and atteft any
Thing that is falfe, for me who am a Stranger,
for nothing : No Man is a Knave for nothing,
as 1 believe thefe Men are not. My Lord, I do
declare it, I was bred a Proteftant, and have
lived fo 3 I am fo to this very Day; 1 have
been a Lover of the Church of Eugland, and
o all the fundamental Points of Doétrine be-
lieved in it 5 I own the fame God, the fame Sa-
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viour, the fame Gofpel, and the fame Faith 5 I
never had a Prejudice againft any Man in the
Church in my Life, but fu¢h as have made it
their Bufinefs to promote the Interelt of the Pa-
pifts, and fuch T muft beg Leave to fay there are
amongft them : For there is no Society in the
World without fome bad Men 3 and thefe do pro-
mote the Intereft of the Papilts, by dividing the
Proteftants, and allowing none to be true Protef-
tants but thofe that are within the Church of
England eftablithed by Law ; which is a Notion
fo wide I could never clofe with that. I never
had a Prejudice againft any Man but a Knave in
my Lite, 1 have heard, I confels, fome of the
Diflenters, and I bave found very honeft, juft,
pious, godly Men among them ; Men free trom
Oaths and all Debauchery ; Men that make a
Conicience of what they fay: Not like foune Per-
fons that fay they are of the Church of England,
that carry themlelves in thetr Lives and Actions,
{o as that no credit can be gained to the Church
by them, My Lord, [ have been an hearty
Man agamn{t the Papifis ; 1 have been an hearty
Man as any Perfon of my Condition, for Par-
liaments, which I look vpon to be my Birth-
right, and under Ged Almighty, the Bulwark of
our Liberty ; and I am forry if any Man fhould
be an Inftrument to create a Mifunderftanding
betwixt the King and the Parliament : For I al-
ways thought I ferved my Country, when I fer-
ved the Parliament, and I ferved my King when
I ferved my Country. I never made any Dite-
rence between them, becaule I thought them
both one. I had the Honour to be entrufted by
them before, and upon that Account 1 came vo-
luntarily down hither. I rid my own Horle, I
{pent my own Money, and eat my own Bread ;
I was not beholding to any Man for the value of
fix Pence all the while I was here. My Lord, I
have ever fince the Plot hath been dilcovered,
endeavoured with all my Heart, and all my
Power, to detet and come at the very Borom
of it: I have fpared for no Time nor Pains, what
lay fairly in my way, in every Thing to encou-
rage thofe that difcovered the Villainies of the Po-
pith Plot againtt the Life of the King, and for
the Subverfion of the Religion and Government
eftablithed by Law., Now certainly it is not
{trange to the World ; for I think all Chrniften-
dom 1s aware how plain the Popiflh Plot hath
been proved. Thefe Men that fvear againft me,
were they that ufed to follow me fometimes ;
they would fay, it was they that had come to fave
our Lives, and yet we let them want Bread.  That
Argument, my L.ord, was fo fair, that I thoughe
it unreafonable to fee them ftarve: Ard I have
faid fometimes to fome honelt confiderable Men,
That it was hard they fhould have this to fay of
us, that they fthould want Bred to eat that were
the King’s Evidence, 1o detet a Popifh Plot
wherein we ourfelves were concerned 5 and that
when they had faved our Rlood in our Veins, they
flould be fuffered to ftarve. Ard one Time, 1
think, fome three or four Gentlemen of the City
did give me 42 5, or 405. and 184. or thereabouts;;
which I did diftribute amongft them : And they
never came to me in my Life, but to feck Relief,
they knowing that I had a general Acquaintance.
And fometimes they thought it might be fit to
petition the Common-Council of the City of
London to take care of them : Sometines they

would fpeak to me to fpeak to particular Men,
3 that
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that care fhould be taken of them., At other
Times indeed it was not this Sort of Difcourfe they
had with me; but they would pretend they had
fomething to difcover of the Popith Plot, and fo
they would apply to me asa Man of fome Ac-
quaintance. And the firlt Time 1 faw Haynes, was
upon fuch an Account, the beginning of March
laft, and it was thus: 1 was at Ricbard’s Cofice-
Houfe at Temple-Bar, where Macnamarra did de-
fire me to go out, and I fhould hear fuch a Piece
of Roguery I never did hear in my Life, againft
my Lord Shaftefbury. So 1 did go out with them,
and I called Captain Brown, who 1s {ince dead, to
oo with me ; and we went to the Hercules- Pillars,
and Haynes there difcovered what 1 told your
Lordithip before, a Defign to deftroy the Parlia-
ment at Oxford ; an Army that wasto land in the
North, and another in Ireland, and the Duke of
York was to be atthe Head of them. My Lord,
after I had heard all out, he did delire us all w0
conceal what he had faid all the Parliament fag,
and then he would not only difcover this, but much
more. He at the fame Time told us, that there
was a Defign of Fitz-gerald’s againft my Lord
Shaftefbury 1o take away his Life, and he was em-
ployed to come to his Coulin Maciamarra to
aet him over to join in the Defign, and he thould
never want for Money, 1if he would but come o-
ver and do as they would have him, After he
had difcovered himfelf, Sir, faild I, You are a
Stranger to me ; and I never faw him before in
my Days, if he had feen me I can’c tell - But,
Sir, faid I, either this is true, or this is falfe, If
it be true, faid he, *Tis all true, and much more,
So he up and told us much ot Celeman, and of the
Reconciliation between the Duoke of Ormonde and
the Duke of 2or%, and how he came to be Lord
Lieutenant of Ireland, and how Pluunket came to
be Primate, and by Means of whom, and the
Letters that pafled, and how fo much a Year was
aiven to Plunket for carrying on the Correlpon.
dence 5 and he told us fo much, that I did won-
der to hear any Man talk after that rate.  After
I had heard what he had to fay, I told him, Sir,
{aid I, this is either t.ue or falfe that you have
faid : 1f it be true, my Lord Shafrefbury fhall know
it to Night 3 for I will not conceal fuch a Thing
concerning a Peer of the Realm : And if it were
a Colour, he fhould know of it. And I did fend
him word that Night 3 and, faid I, Sir, you
ought to go, for your own Security and ours too,
to fwear 1t before a Magiftrate. Said he, if T
fhould, I thould be difcovered. Said I, I can't
think you would be difcovered. If you fwore it
before Sir George Treby or Sir Robert Clayton, they
will not difcover you. So he agreed he would
fivear before Sir George Treby 5 and he did go ac-
cordingly : But he being out of Town, I cannot
have the Affidavit to produce it. There was a
Letter fent laft Saturday Night to Sir George to
Briftel, and T hoped he might have been here to
Day. This was the firft Acquaintance I ever had
with Haynes. The next Time I heard of him, was
upon this Occafion.  Jvy comes to me in Richard’s
Coftee-Houle, and, faid he, Yonder is the Man
that made that Difcovery, which.I told you b--
fore that Haynes had faid to me; it was about a
Month or three Weeks before the Parliament was
at Oxford. After the Parliament was diffolved ac
Oxford. Ivy comes to me, and I think ir was be-
twixt the two Terms wherein - Filz-lfarris was
arraigned and tried : I know not.the Names .of
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them ; but he comes to me, and tells me he had
been with my Lord Shaftefbury, and that there was
a Friend of his that would confirm all thar Fir.
Haoryis had difcovered concerning the Murder of
Sir Edmuibury Godfrey 5 and, fays he, my Loid
of Shaftefbury hath fent me to you to acquaint you
with it.  Where is your Friend? Said §. He s
without, faid he,  So we went out of the Coflpe.
Houie 5 and when we camie out of Doors, there
wus this Hayues : We went to the Crown Tavern
without Temple-Bar 3 1t was in the Forencon.
When we came there into the Room, he ex.
amined all the Corners and Cupboards, and
Places about the Room, to fee that no Body wag
there.  When he thought all was {ecure, he be.
gan to tel me he had been to acquaint my Lo:d
Shaftefbury that there was a Friend of his thar
would dilcover the whole Intrigue of the Murder
ol Siv Edmundbury Godfrey, alkthat itz Harris had
faid, and much more: And he delired me tha |
would mtreat my Lord Shaftefbury to be inftrumen-
tal to get ham his Pardon before he difcovered
particularly.  Then T told him, I think *s con-
venient, faid I, that you dilcover fomething
Writing, and under your Hand, what voy
can fay. He was not willing to do thar, Cun
you believe, faid I, that my Lord of Shaftefuiy
will betray you? Says he, I will not trult any
Body ; I fhall be afluflinated. Said 1, if you will
not gtve it to any Body elfe, Will you give it to
Mr. Michael Gedfrey, Sir Edmundbury Godpiey's
Brother ? You can have no Jealoufy of hini that
he will ever difcover you. Said he, 1f my Lod
Shaftefbury will engage to get mea Pardon, [ wil]
tell the whole Truth, Said I, I will go o my
Lord and acquaint him : So I went to beth my
Lord and Mr. Gedfrey 5 and Sir Edmitiidinry Ge-
frey’s two Brothers both met me at my Lord of
Svaftefbury’s Floufe, This is the Thing that he zclls
me ; he would have me get my Lord’s Proteciion
and a Pardon for Treafon ; but the real Truth i,
he fent me upon this Errand.  So I came to mv
Lord Shaftefbury, and the two Mr. Gedfreys were
in the Room ; and after 1 had tld my Lord
what Difcourfe 1 had with him, {ays my Lord,
Colledge, thele Irifh Men have confounded all our
Bufinels ; and thou and I muft have a care they
do not put a Trick uponus: This multbe a Trick
of the Papifts to ruin us; and if they have fuch
a Deflign, if they will not put it upen you and I,
they are Fools. Upon your Lordfhip, faid I,
they may ;3 but I am a poor inconfiderable Fellow.
Says my Lord, I'll well you, Mr. Godfrey, Mr.
Colledge hath not only been an honelt Man, but
an ufeful and an active Man for the Proteftane
[ntereft. So I told my Lord how far T had gone
with him, and that T defired it might be puc in
Writing. Says my Lord Shaftefbury, if he will pu
it In Writing, I will go once again ; for I have
been fince I faw the Fellow with mv Lord Adac-
clesfield, and my Lord Chief Yultice Pesicheitai,
and my Lord Chancellor, and I have told them
that there is fuch a Perfon in general, but T knew
not the Man ; as indeed my Lord did not, for
only Iy was the Perfon between them thar
Lord knew : And I told .them, fays my [.on,
that he can confirm all that Fitz- Harris has (2id
concerning the Death of Siv Edmundi ury Godirey,
and that he would prove my Lord of .-Dauby wes
In it, 1f he might have his Pardon; and my Lord
faid, They promifed to fpeak to his Majefty that

it might be.granted. But fome Timethe latter
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end of the Week I heard it would not be granted ;
and both of thefe Men followed me to know
what they fhould do. Said I, my Lord Shaftefbury
knows not but that it may be a Trick ; and
f1id I to Joy, I wonder why he fhould conceal it
all this while, being a neceflitous Man, and
cool. proffered by the King in his Proclamation,

Why, fays Jvy, do you think there is no Truth.

init? Says Ivy, ’tis not my Judgment, but my
Lord Shaftefbury’s and Mr., Godfrey's Judgment tao.
He anfwered me again, Fitz-Harris hath defired
he may have a Pardon granted for himfelf and a
Frenchman 3 and if fo be there were nothing in
it, Do you think he would move for a Pardon ?
Says I, Did Mr. Fitz-Harris move for Haynes's
Pardon ? How do 1 know that, fays Jvyagain :
Fitz-Harris's Wile old me fo. Says I, let me
ipeak with fuiz- Harris's Wife, let me hear her fay
fo, and I will believe you. The next Day he
did bring her to me to my Houfe : And this was
the Time and the Occalion that brought Filz-
Huiiis's Wile, and Haynes, and fvy, and Mr. Fizz-
Harris's Maid to my Houfe s and I never faw Fifz-
Harris in my Days, till his Trial, nor had any
Communication with him. But, my Lord, fhe
¢id talk with Haynes, and confirmed it to me,
that her Hufband had delired a Pardon for him -
Vhy then, faid I, he would do well to difcover
what he knows to my Lord Shaftefbury 5 for I was
with my Lord, and he fays he will meddle no
more, unlefs he will give it under his Hand
what he has to fay. And he did confels to me in
my own Yard, for there we were together,
that he faw my Lord of Danby come into the
Chapel at Somerfet Houfe, when the Body of Sir
LEdmuibury Godfrey lay under the Altar,

L. C. 7. Here hath been nothing of this made
appear by Proof.

Colledze. My Lord, 1 only tell you which
way they introduced themlelves into my Ac-
quaintance.

L.C.¥. You may obferve what you will up-
on the Evidence, as we told you ; but you ram-
ble from the Matter you are to fpeak to. And
as we told Mr, Aworney, that what he faid thould
oo for nothing, unlefls he made 1t out by Proof ;
fo muft we fay to you, what you fay goes for no-
thing, further than you have proved ir. Now
you have quitted the Proof quite, and not fpoke
to that, but run into other Stortes. I would have
you keep yourfelf to your Proofs, and make your
Obfervations upon them.

Colledge, *Tis, as I humbly conceive ir, to my
Purpofe, but 1 hope my Ignorance may excule
me, if Ierr, I tell you thetruth of Things, thus

1{ was.

L. C. ¥ Truth! Why if yours or any Man’s
Word in your cafe fhould go for Truth, no Man
that ftands at 2 Bar, could be conviéted : For eve-
ry Man will fay he is an honeft Man, and all the
plaufible Things in the World. Make you your
Obfervations upon the Proof, that is proper for
you to do ; and urge it as well as you can, and
to the beft Purpofe you can: But totell us long
Stories of Paflages between you and others that
are not a whit proved, “that is not ufual, nor per-
tinent,

Colledge. 1 thought it had been to the Point,
when this Man pretends to have a Familarity with
e, to fhew how his Acquaintance begun.

Mr, Juft. Fones. Why do you think ’tis an An-
{wer to him in what he proves upon his Oath ?
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Have you proved one Jotof it? Not that I have
heard. *Tis your Part to fum up the Evidence
on your own Side, and to anfwer that which is
proved upon you, if youcan, Do that, and we
will hear you fpeak to it as long as you can.
But to tell Stories to amufe the Jury with that
ar¢ not proved, and to run out into rambling
Difcourfes to no Purpofe, that is not to be allowed,
nor ever was, in any Court of Juftice,

Mr. Juft. Raymond. Not one of your Witneffes
have mentioned any Thing that you fay.

Mr, Juft, Levinz. 1 wonder, Mr. Cofledge, you
fhould forget yourfelf fo much : For you found
faule with Mr. Actorney at the beginning for
opening the Evidence, and you were told, and
the Jury were told at your requeft, that what he
fard, and did not prove, paffed for nothing,
But I muft tell you, ’tis much worfe in your Cafe:
For Mr, Attorney only opened what he mighe
prove afterwards, but your Oblervations are up-
on what hath been proved already ; and yet
you run out into Stories of what hath not been
proved atall, after our Proof is patt. .

Colledge, Sir, I could not prove this otherwife
than by Jvy, who hath been {fworn againft me,

Mr. Jult. Fones. Would you have the Jury to
believe you upon your Word ?

Colledge. ‘There is no more than his Qath a-
gainft me 5 and why my Oath, being an Enuglifp-
man and a Proteftant, fhould not be taken as well
as his that is an Irifbman, and hath been a Papift,
I know not,

L.C.f. You go upon that Ground that your
Word is to be taken, asappears by your Defence
but I muft tell you, all the Courfe of Juftice
were deftroyed, and no Juftice againft Malefac-
tors were to be had, if the Word of him that is
accufed fhould pafs for Proof to acquit him.

Colledge. My Lord, I have given your Lord-
fhip an Account of thefe Fellows Converfations ;
and what other Proofs to make, I know not : For
I knew not what they would fwear againft me,
and I bad not Witnefles in my Pockets to con-
front them.

Mr., Juft, Levinz. Well, the Jury have heard
it over and over again, [irft upon your requeft,
that nothing 1s to be taken Notice of that is not
proved.

Colledge. Pray, my Lord, then as to Hayzes.
My Lord, I do obferve that there was a Witnefs
for me that did prove, he owned he was one that
was employed to make a Proteftant Plot, and
another that did hear him Swear, damn him, he
would fwear any Thing againft any Body for
Money, for it was his Trade,

Mr, Juft, Levinz. Now youare right 3 fpeak
as much as you will as to your Proofs,

Colledge. My Lord, ! think Turbervile and
Dugdale {wear as to the tenth of March in Oxon ;
I defire it may be proved I was in Oxford the
tenth of March,

Mr, Juftice Fones, You yourfelf came down the
middle of March.

L.C. 7. 1donot remember tha: they faid the
tenth of March.

Colledge. Did not the Indiétment fay {o ?

Mr, Attor, Gen. It is only in the Indiétment,

L. C. ¥. As to the Time mentioned 1n the In-
ditment, it 15 not material 3 that is the conftant
rule in Trials upon Indiétments ; as if an Horfe
be laid to be ftole the tenth, if it be proved the
Prifoner ftole it another Day, it will be fufi-

Eece clent,
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ueftion 1s,

cient, the Time is not material 5 the Qu
whether the Indiftment be true 1n Subftance. Mr.
Colledge, my Brothers will all tell you chat the
Law is fo.

Mr, Jult, Levinz. Though it 1s laid the tenth
of March, yetif it be proved the firft or twentieth
before or after, it is all one 5 fo the Thing be
proved, they are not bound toa Day.

Colledge. My Lord, the Punétitios of Law I
know not, but it was the twenty fourth or twenty
fifth ere I came down.

L.C. 7. Well, goon, Sir.

Colledge, Dugdale fays 1 meant by the Word
Rowley, the King,

Mr, Juftice Fones. He does fo.

Colledge. How does he come to know, that by
that Word I meant the King ?

L.C.J. That we did afk him, and he fays,
you uled fo to expound it _

Mr., Juft, Fones. 'Why, look you, hefaid you
and he ufed to have frequent Communication
concerning the King, and youdid moft frequently
{fpeak of the King by the Name of Rowley.

Colledee.  But, 1fay, my Lord, I never fpake
of the King by the Name of Rowley in my Life.

Mr. Juft, Foues, You fay it, and he {wears the
CONtrary.

Colledge. 1 don't remember that he fays, I de-
clare it {o ; but he faid, 1 meant it; for if I had
declared it, then it had been the fame Thing for
.me to have named the King downright.

Mr. J. Levinz, Look you, Mr, Colledge, asto
that, when any Wimefs had done his Evidence,
you had Liberty to crofs-examine him,

L.C.¥. Would you have him called up again
to clear this?

Colledge.  Yes, if you pleale,

L. C. ¥#. Swand up, Mr. Dugdale. 1 under{tood
by your Teftimony, when Mr. Collzdge and you
difcourfed of the King, you fometimes difcour-
fed of him by the Name of Rowley, and that he
explained that Name to be the King,.

Mr. Dupdale. The firlt Time I ever heard
what Rowlzy meant, was from him 3 for I afked
him what he meant by the Name Rowley; 1 heard
it before, but I did no: underftand i,

Mr. Jult, Fones, Where was 1t ?

Mr. Dugdale. At Richard’s Coffee-Houfe,

M. Juft. Fones. What wasthe Anfwer he made

ou?

’ Mr. Dugdale. He faid it was the King,

Colledge.  Upon what Occafion did I explain it
to you ¢

Mr., Dugdalz, Upon the Account of the Pic-
tures,

Colledge, 1 know not which of the Pictures has
the Name of Rowley in 1.

Mr. Dugdale. It was then we were talking of
one of the Pitures you brought in Rowley, and
Mac and Mac was the Duke of 2ork, and Row-
ley was the King.

Coll.  Upon what Pi¢ture was it, that T took
Occafion to explain the Name Rowley to you ?

Mr. Dugdale, 1 am not certain,

Colledze. Remember, you have an Account to
give as well as .

Mr, Dugdale. You have fo many Pictures, that
I can’t remember them ; you have fhewed me
more than have bren produced in Court,

Colledge., Where had you that Picture from me

that they call the Rary Shew ¢
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Mr. Dugdale. Truly Ireceived of them twice
at Richard's Coffee-Houfe,

Colledge.  "Twice, do you fay ?

Mr, Dugdale. Yes, two of them at two feve.
ral Times 3 for you having promifed me one, yoy
brought it according to your Word,

Colledge. 'When was that ?

Mr. Dugdale. 1 did not keep an Account of the
Day of the Month ; and another I do remember,
at the Green Dragon Tavern you thruft into my
Pocket, and Mr, Baldwin was by at that Time,
And, faid he, Mr. Colledge, you will be fo open,
that you will come to be difcovered at laft.

Colleage. "Then will I be willing to die for it,
if he and I and Mr. Baldwin were at the Grees
Dragon Tavern together,  When was it that I
gave you any PiCtores there ? Was it fince che
Parliament at Oxon ¢

Mr, Dugdale. Do I charge you fince the Par-
liament ¢

Colledge, I never faw the Rary Shew before
the Parliament at Oxsford,

Mr. Dugdale. 1 do not fay it was that ; you
gave me one of the others,

Colledge. *Tis ftrange you will ftick to nothing
When was it we were at the Green Dragen Ta.
vern ?

Mr, Dugdale, 'We were there before the Par.
liament fat at Oxon 5 it was fince Chriftmas,

Colleage.  What PiCture was it I gave you
there ¢

Mr, Dugdale. It may be, 1 can’t remember
which of them it was, it was not Rary Shew s I
fuppofe you gave me one of them concerning the
Bifhops, where you put Bifhop Mew kiffing the
Pope’s Toe ; for 1t was a Bifhop with a Pach
on, and that you teld me was Bifhop Mew,

Colledge. 1 putit, did T make 1t ?

Mr, Dugdale, You faid you were the Author,

Mr. Jult, Fones, Mr, Colledge, Will you con-
fider upon what Mr. Dugdale was called upabout,
the Expofition of the Name Rowley 2

Colledge. 1 did examine him, and he hath con-
tradicted himfelf ; for he hath faid at the Gree
Dragen Tavern I gave him a Pifture of RaryShew.

Mr. Jult, Founes. He faid no fuch Thing ; he
faid, he did not know which it was.

Colledge, 1 am certain he meant that then
when he {pake it 5 for he named it before, that
he had two from me at Richard’s Coffee-Houlfe,
and onc [ throft into his Pocket at the Tavern ;
and I fay, I never wasat the Green Dragon Tavern
with Mr. Dugdale and Mr, Baldwin, nor in the
‘Tavern thefe three quarters of a Year,

Mr. Jult. Levinz,  Mr., Colledge, you were in
the right Way juft now to manage your Evi-
dence, in Oppofition to the other Evidence 5 go
on in that Way,

Colledge, My Lord, I dont know well what
was faid, for I could not hear half, nor write a
quarter of it 3 but, my Lord, I hope your Jord-
thEJ hath taken Notes of ir, and will remember
it for me, You are my Council as well as my
Judges.

L. C. 7. In Matter of Faét we are,

Colledge, My Life and your Souls lie at Stake
to do me Juftice 5 cherefore I hope you will take
Notice of what Thave not had the Opportunity to
write down, [ have obferved that cvery one
of my Witnefls have fpoken materially ro con-
tradict what they have faid, to prove that this

Wd§
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was done for Money, and that there hath been
Confeffions from every Man of them, that they
were hired to do it 5 that {:hEY'dId it for a Livelt-
hood ; and one of them faid, it wasa good Trade,
damn him, he would do any thing for Money :
And I hope then you will confider the improba-
bility, thatl fhould fpeak to an‘Irg/Z;mmz whom
I had never feen before in my Life; and that I
thould at the firlt Dafh utter tl_mr Treafon that
he gives In Evidence, 1 th’ink. it cannot confilt
with any Man’s Underftanding to believe me fo
mad or fo weak, _ |

M. Taft, Levinz. That s as to Haynes only.

Colledge. AS L0 Smith now, 1 fuppofe, it does
not come within the Reach of the Statute 3 for the
Dinner that was made by Alderman Wilcok, was
made before laft Fuly was Twelve-month s all
the Witnefles do fay 1t was before Chriftmas, and
Dr. Oates {ays, it was in the Summer ; | know it
by a very good Obfcrvation s becaufe- 1 went to
Aftrop Waters after thac; angl I faw Sir.Crefwell
T cvinz atthe #ells: Now, Sir, you were there be-
fore this Time Twelve-month,  So then whatever
he fays [ faid to him there, I cannot be charged
withal by the Statute, more or les, if I had never
2 Witnels againft bims; but I have Witneffes
that have contradicted him fufficiently that he is
forfworn in thats and if fo, he is not to be be-
lieved in any thing clfe; for he fays, he and I
went to the Coffee-houle together, and we dif-
courfed fuch and fuch things, which is not above
half a Bow's fhot, and he made it, I fay, a quar-
cr of a Mile’s Difcourfe s if 1 bad had all the
Talk, the Difcourfe could not be fo long, though he
had ftid never a Word : So you fee what a kind
of Witnels he is. And Dr. Oates’s Brother did fay,
That I did go along with Dr. Qafes, and offered
t0 be one of his Guard, and I did fay fo, and
went along with them 5 but Mr. Smith he came
after. And as to what he fays, he 1s {ufficiently
confuted 3 that is, about the going into Cabals
after Dinner 3 for it is proved, That I fell afleep
behind the Table, and Dr. Oates was difcourfing
with Mr. Savage upon Points of Divinity; but I
take no Notice of it, neither did 1 fee Smith any
more ; but he went away, and fo did the reft
of the Company. But, my Lord, when Hayies
was taken, Swmith came to me that Day to my
Houfe at the Ditch-fide, and {ends in a Man for
me, hisMan; I was writing 1n my Parlour, and
drawing the Defign for Wainlcotting Alballows’s
Church, a Platform for it; his Man told me,
His Mafter would ipeak with me, and Haynes
was taken that Morning: But, as 1 underftand
fince, it was by Agreement and his own Confent,
though he hath pretended otherwife, You hear,
fays he, Haynes is taken? Yes, fays I, 1 do, he
hath been ever fince g 0’Clock before the Secretary
vpon Examination, and he was till 5 0'Clock at
Night examining, faid he: I believe he confefles
a grear deal, fuid I+ Of what, faid he? Of fome
Defigrr of the Proteftants, faid 1, What, againft
the Government? I do not know what they
may affright him into ; he Is a great Rogue, if
it be true all that he hath faid of limlelt: He
fays, he was concerned in the Fare of London, and
knew of a Defign to deftroy the Proteftants then ;
of a Rebellion that was to be in Ireland s of Plun-
ket’s being made Primate, and a great many of
thofe things : So that if he fpeaks Truth, be hath
been a great Rogue, and as he hath pretended

alfo, he was a great Coward, So then, Ibelieve,
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he rhay fay any Thing to excufe himfelf ;' fays
Mr. Smith, I. with you are fafe : This was the
very Night before I was taken,

; Mr. Jult, fones. Have you proved any Thing
of this? 3

Colledge. My Lord, Pray give me Leave to
tell: you what is Proof. |

Mr. Jult, Fowes, You are not to repeat this,

unlefs you prove it, Sir, .
. Colledge.  He fpake cautioully to me, asif he
would have ntimated to me, he would have had
me run away. Said he, 1 believe you are not
fafe, I would have you rake care of yourfelf : For
you were concerned with him, Now, my Lord,
if 1 had been a guilty Perfon, I had Time enough
to get away ; and to prove this, I can only fay,
this was betwixt bim and 1. But, my Lord, you
hear, Dr, Oates fays, that this very Smith did fwear
he would have my Blood, and thar was upon this
Occalion of my vindicating Sampfon, whom he
had {truck and abufed ; and I atked, Why he did
it? Said he, I value no Man’s Life, if he affrone
me, if *tis any Man in England, 1 value him
not. My Lord, upon this Occalfion the Words
rofe between us; and when he came out of Doors,
and was going away, Dr, Oafes faid, he fwore he
would have my Blood, and that was the Occafion
of his fpeaking that Blafphemy.

L.C. 7. Dr. Oates did fay fo.

Mr. Jult, Levinz, Well, you are right now, if
you will go in that Way.

Colledge. My Lord, this is for Smith and
Haynes, that Haywes thould fay it was a good
Trade, and damn him he would fwear any T hing
for Money, and that Smith thould fwear, damn
him, he would have my Blood. I cannot fum up
the reft of them, for I have not them here,

Mr. Jult, Foues, There is Turberviley, and Dug-

dale, and Smuth 5 we will help you as to the Per-
jons,

Mr, Jult. Levizz. Pray keep to the Bufinefs,
and do not run out,

Colledge. Pray, my Lord, I haveone Thing to
fay about Smith 5 he fays, 1 fhewed him my Arms,
which I have had for any Time almolt thefe three
Years, ever fince the Plot brake our, I have been
armed ready to oppole the Papilts, and I did my
Duty in the City in Perfon in the Trained-Bands ;
but Smith fays, thefe Arms were to deftroy the
King’s Guards ; but he does not prove that 1 was
Confederate with any other Perlon ; but inftead
of that, there were other Perfons that fay, with
his own Mouth, that he did not believe there was
any Proteftant Plot ; nay, he did believe I faid it
only in Wantonnefs, This is all ; then how pro-
bable was 1t, that I mylelf fhould feize the King,
or deftroy his Guards ¢

Mr, Juft, fones, You remember Captain Brows,
Captain Clinton, and Don Lewes, Mr. Colledge.

Colledge. Did he fwear they were all in my
Company at Oxon 2

Mr. Jult. Zones. Yes, Dugdale Cid.

Colledge. My Lord, Caprain Brows and Lewes
were Friends to my Lord Howard, with whom
and other Compary I came down to Oxon, and
they lay with me at the Cheguer, and they were in
my Company, becaufe they were Guefts in the
Houfe, and we came along together ; but he
does not fay they were either of them armed
more than my felf, nor was he ever in Company
with us 3 how then does he know we were in 2
Confpiracy ?
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